
 

 
 

 
 

APPLICATION FOR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 
 

FOR WATER AND WASTEWATER INFRASTRUCTURE PROJECTS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 

TWDB Use Only 
 

Name of Applicant:  ________________________ 
 
Date application received: ______________ 

 
Date administratively complete: ________________ 
 
 
 

 
This application is comprehensive, covering all loan and grant assistance applications for water 
and wastewater infrastructure financing through the various Texas Water Development Board 
(TWDB) programs.  The format of the application is intended to expedite the review process for 
both the applicant and TWDB staff. This application can be used by political subdivisions, 
including water supply corporations.  
 
Please submit one double-sided original and one indexed, electronic copy, via electronic storage 
media such as CD or flash drive using MS Word, Excel and/or Adobe Acrobat. 
 
Please submit your application to: 
 

Texas Water Development Board  
Water Supply and Infrastructure-Regional Water Planning and Development 
P O Box 13231 
1700 N. Congress Avenue, 5th Floor 
Austin, Texas  78711-3231 
(78701 for courier deliveries) 

A complete application consists of all of the applicable information and forms requested in this 
document. When preparing this application please review the Application and all Guidance and 
Forms, listed at the end.   

For more information, please contact your Regional Project Implementation Team at: 

http://www.twdb.texas.gov/financial/programs/swift/regional_project_teams.asp 

Thank you. 

 

 

 

http://www.twdb.texas.gov/financial/programs/swift/regional_project_teams.asp


TWDB-0148 
Version: 6-2-15 

 
Please label each attachment with the number of the pertinent application section (i.e. “Part D5”) 
 

2 

Contents 
Part A: General Information .......................................................................................................... 3 
Part B: Legal Information .............................................................................................................. 7 
Part C: Financial Information ...................................................................................................... 11 
Part D: Project Information ......................................................................................................... 19 
Part E: State Water Implementation Fund for Texas (SWIFT) Applicants Only: ......................... 24 
Part I: Summary of attachments to application ........................................................................... 25 
 
 
  



TWDB-0148 
Version: 6-2-15 

 
Please label each attachment with the number of the pertinent application section (i.e. “Part D5”) 
 

3 

Part A: General Information 
1. The legal authority under which the applicant was created and operates.   

a)  TYPE A GENERAL-LAW MUNICIPALITY (Texas Local Gov’t Code Sec. 5.001) 
b)  TYPE B GENERAL-LAW MUNICIPALITY (Texas Local Gov’t Code Sec. 5.002) 
c)  TYPE C GENERAL-LAW MUNICIPALITY (Texas Local Gov’t Code Sec. 5.003) 
d)  HOME-RULE MUNICIPALITY (Texas Local Gov’t Code Sec. 5.004) 
e)  SPECIAL-LAW MUNICIPALITY (Texas Local Gov’t Code Sec. 5.005) 
f)  NONPROFIT ORGANIZATION (Business Organization Code Chapter 22) 
g)  NONPROFIT WATER SUPPLY OR SEWER SERVICE CORP. (Texas Water Code Chapter 67)  
h)  ALL DISTRICTS (Texas Water Code Chapter 49)  
i)  OTHER (attach)  

 
2. Applicant Name and Contact Information: 

Name: North Fort Bend Water Authority 
County: Fort Bend 
Physical 
Address: 

N/A 

Mailing 
Address: 

c/o ABHR LLP, 3200 Southwest Freeway, Suite 2600  
Houston, Texas 77027 

Phone: 713-860-6465 
Fax: 713-860-6665 
Website: www.nfbwa.com 

 
3. Brief description of the project. 
 

The Surface Water Supply Project (SWSP) (formerly the Second Source Transmission Line) is a large 
96-inch transmission system waterline that will bring treated surface water approximately 40 miles 
from the expanded Northeast Water Purification Plant (NEWPP) on the east side of Houston at Lake 
Houston to the West Harris County Regional Water Authority (WHCRWA) and the North Fort Bend 
Water Authority (NFBWA) on the west side of Houston.  The project also includes two large booster 
pump stations that will push the water along the route.  Several large meter stations will be required as 
well.  This project is directly sponsored by the WHCRWA although the general cost share is 
approximately 55% WHCRWA and 45% NFBWA.  Joint Facilities Waterline Projects (Segments 3, 5-
13) associated with the SWSP and various other smaller waterline projects that will be shared by the 
NFBWA and the WHCRWA that are needed to transfer the treated water to various areas.  These 
projects are sponsored by the WHCRWA but some percentage is paid by the NFBWA, the percentage 
amount varying by project.  This project is needed to convert from groundwater to surface water to 
comply with the Fort Bend Subsidence District Regulatory Plan. 

 
4. Applicant’s Officers and Members:  

 
Name 

 
Office Held 

David H. Spell Assistant Secretary 
Robert Darden Assistant Vice President 
Bruce Fay Assistant Secretary 
Melony Gay Secretary 
Robert Patton Vice President 
Peter Houghton President 
Pat Hebert Assistant Secretary 

http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/Docs/LG/htm/LG.5.htm#5.001
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/Docs/LG/htm/LG.5.htm#5.002
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/Docs/LG/htm/LG.5.htm#5.003
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/Docs/LG/htm/LG.5.htm#5.004
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/Docs/LG/htm/LG.5.htm#5.005
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/Docs/BO/htm/BO.22.htm
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/Docs/WA/htm/WA.67.htm
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/Docs/WA/htm/WA.49.htm
http://www.nfbwa.com/


TWDB-0148 
Version: 6-2-15 

 
Please label each attachment with the number of the pertinent application section (i.e. “Part D5”) 
 

4 

5. Applicant’s primary contact person for day-to-day project implementation. 
Name: Lindsay Kovar 
Title: Authority Engineer 
Address: 10777 Westheimer Road, Suite 400 Houston, Texas 77042 
Phone: 281-558-8700 
Fax: 713-488-8250 
Email: LKovar@bgeinc.com 

 
6. Applicant’s Consultants (Attach copies of all draft and/or executed contracts for consultant 

services to be used by the Applicant in applying for financial assistance or constructing the 
proposed project.): 

 
a) Applicant Engineer                              N/A      

Firm 
Name: 

BGE, Inc. 

Contact: Lindsay Kovar 
Address: 10777 Westheimer Road, Suite 400 Houston, Texas 77042 
Phone: 281-558-8700 
Fax: 713-488-8250 
Email: LKovar@bgeinc.com 

 
b) Bond Counsel                      N/A      

Firm 
Name: 

Allen Boone Humphries Robinson LLP 

Contact: David Oliver 
Address: 3200 Southwest Freeway, Suite 2600 Houston, Texas 77027 
Phone: 713-860-6465 
Fax: 713-860-6665 
Email: doliver@abhr.com 

 
c) Financial Advisor                     N/A      

Firm 
Name: 

Post Oak Municipal Advisors 

Contact: Terrell Palmer 
Address: 2000 West Loop South, Suite 1800 
Phone: 713-328-0990 
Fax: N/A 
Email: tpalmer@postoakma.com 

 
d) Certified Public Accountant (or other appropriate rep)                 N/A      

Firm 
Name: 

Avanta Services 

Contact: Pam E. Lightbody 
Address: 5635 Northwest Central Drive, No. 104E Houston, Texas 77092 
Phone: 713-934-9110 
Fax: 713-934-9443 
Email: pelightbody@avantaserv.com 

 
 

mailto:LKovar@bgeinc.com
mailto:LKovar@bgeinc.com
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e) Legal Counsel (if other than Bond Counsel)                  N/A      
Firm 
Name: 

           

Contact:            
Address:            
Phone:            
Fax:            
Email:            

 
f) Any other consultant representing the Applicant before the Board   N/A      

Firm 
Name: 

           

Contact:            
Address:            
Phone:            
Fax:            
Email:            

 
7.   List the counties within the Applicant’s service area.  Fort Bend 
 
8.  Identify the Applicant’s total service area population: 238,600   
 
9.     Applicant is requesting funding from which programs?  Check all that apply. 

 
PROGRAM     AMOUNT REQUESTED 

a)   Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (DWSRF)    $       
b)   Clean Water State Revolving Fund (CWSRF)   $       
c)   Texas Water Development Fund (DFund)   $       
d)   State Participation      $       
e)   Rural Water Assistance Fund (RWAF)       $       
f)   State Water Implementation Fund for Texas (SWIFT) $ 154,535,000 
g)   Economically Distressed Areas Program (EDAP)   $       
h)   If other please explain:           $       

 
10.       Other Funding Sources:  Provide a list of any other funding source(s) being utilized to complete 

the project, including Applicant’s local contribution, if any, or commitments applied for and/or 
received from any other funding agency for this project or any aspect of this project.  Provide 
commitment letters if available.  Additional funding sources must be included within the 
Project Budget (TWDB-1201). 

Funding 
Source 

Type of Funds 
(Loan/Grant) Amount ($) 

Date Applied 
 for Funding 

Anticipated or 
Funding Secured 

Date 
SWIFT Loan $220,770,000 2015 2018-2022 

Total 
Funding 
from All 
Sources 

  
$220,770,000 

  

 
Comments:            
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11. Applicant is requesting funding for which phase(s)?  Check all that apply. 
 

 Planning 
  Acquisition 
  Design 

 Construction 
 
12. Is Applicant requesting funding to refinance existing debt? 

 Yes If yes, attach a copy of the document securing the debt to be refinanced.   
   Attached document 

 No 
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Part B: Legal Information 
 
13. Cite the legal authority under which the Applicant can issue the proposed debt including the 

authority to make a proposed pledge of revenues. Pursuant to Subchapter D, Section 8813.151 
of the Texas Special District Local Laws Code, the NFBWA is authorized and has the power to 
issue, sell, and deliver the revenue (including junior lien revenue) bonds for the purpose, among 
others, of financing construction and acquisition of water treatment and conveyance facilities.    

 
14. What type of pledge will be used to repay the proposed debt? 

  Systems Revenue 
 Taxes 
 Combination of systems revenues and taxes 

  Other (Contract Revenue, etc.) 
 

15. Provide the full legal name of the security for the proposed debt issue(s).   Anticipated name of 
security for the proposed debt: “North Fort Bend Water Authority Water System Junior Lien Revenue 
Bonds, Series _____” 
 
16. Describe the pledge being offered and any existing rate covenants.  The proposed debt issue (the 
“Bonds”) is being issued pursuant to an Indenture of Trust, dated as of June 1, 2009, and a proposed 
Supplemental Indenture of Trust (collectively with all other supplemental indentures, the “Indenture”), 
both between the NFBWA and Regions Bank, as trustee (the “Trustee”). The bonds are being issued as 
“Junior Lien Bonds” under the Indenture. Under the Indenture, Parity Bonds, Parity Notes and Parity 
Obligations are secured by a lien on Pledged Revenues that is senior and superior to the lien on Pledged 
Revenues securing the Junior Lien Bonds, Junior Lien Notes and Junior Lien Obligations. The Bonds 
(together with the outstanding bonds and any future Parity Bonds, Parity Notes and Parity Obligations or 
future Junior Lien Bonds, Junior Lien Notes and Junior Lien Obligations) are limited obligations of the 
NFBWA payable solely from and to the extent of its Pledged Revenues and Pledged Funds pledged for 
that purpose under the Indenture. Pledged Revenues consist of Net Revenues (hereinafter described) 
and amounts transferred from the NFBWA’s Coverage Fund to its Revenue Fund. Net Revenues consist 
primarily of collections of groundwater pumpage fees/user fees imposed by the NFBWA and water sale 
revenues remaining after payment of the NFBWA’s maintenance and operating expenses. The Bonds 
are obligations solely of the NFBWA and are not obligations of the State of Texas, the City of Houston, 
Harris County, Fort Bend County, any of the Retail Utilities, Contract Retail Utilities, Private Well Owners, 
or any entity other than the NFBWA. The Bonds do not constitute a general obligation of the NFBWA and 
are not payable from funds raised or to be raised by ad valorem or other property taxes. The NFBWA 
has no property taxing power. 
 
17. Attach the resolution from the governing body requesting financial assistance. 

TWDB-0201A (http://www.twdb.texas.gov/financial/instructions/)   
 Attached Resolution  

 
18.  Attach the Application Affidavit   

TWDB-0201 (http://www.twdb.texas.gov/financial/instructions/) 
 Attached Applicant Affidavit 

 
19.  Attach the Certificate of Secretary  

TWDB-201B (http://www.twdb.texas.gov/financial/instructions/)  
 Attached Certificate of Secretary 

 

http://www.twdb.texas.gov/financial/instructions/
http://www.twdb.texas.gov/financial/instructions/
http://www.twdb.texas.gov/financial/instructions/
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 20. Is the applicant a Water Supply Corporation (WSC)?  
         Yes If yes, attach each of the following: 
    Articles of Incorporation 
    Certificate of Incorporation from the Texas Secretary of  

State evidencing that the current Articles of Incorporation are 
on file with the Secretary 

    By-laws and any amendments  
 Certificate of Status from the Texas Secretary of State (i.e. 

Certificate of Existence) 
 Certificate of Account Status from the Texas Comptroller of 

Public Accounts (certifies that the WSC is exempt from the 
franchise tax and that the WSC is in good standing). 

          No 
 
21. Is the applicant proposing to issue revenue bonds? 

 Yes If yes, attach copies of the most recent resolution/ordinance(s) authorizing  
any outstanding parity debt. This is essential to insure outstanding bond 
covenants are consistent with covenants that might be required for TWDB 
financing. 

 Attached resolution/ordinance(s) – in lieu of resolution the 
draft Eighth Supplemental Indenture is attached in Attachment E71a.  

 
 No 

 
22. Does the applicant possess a Certificate of Convenience and Necessity (CCN)? 

 Yes If yes, attach a copy of the CCN and service area map showing the areas  
the applicant is allowed to provide water or wastewater services. 

 Attached CCN and service area map 
   No  If no, indicate the status of the CCN.             

 N/A 
 
23. Has the applicant been the subject of any enforcement action by the Texas Commission on 

Environmental Quality (TCEQ), the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), or any other entity 
within the past three years?  

 Yes If yes, attach a brief description of every enforcement action within  
  the past three years and action(s) to address requirements.  

     Attached 
  No 

 
24. Are any facilities to be constructed or the area to be served within the service are of a 

municipality or other public utility?  
 Yes If yes, has the applicant obtained an affidavit stating that the utility does not  

object to the construction and operation of the services and facilities in its 
service area? 

 If yes, attach a copy of the affidavit. 
  Attached affidavit 

 If no, provide an explanation as to why not.  
See generally, Section 8813.101 of the Texas Special District Local Laws 
Code relating to the powers and duties of the NFBWA. The NFBWA has 
the right to coordinate water services provided inside, outside, or into the 
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NFBWA, as well as provide wholesale and retail water services to any 
users or customers within the NFBWA’s boundaries without being required 
to execute contracts with those users or customers. As such, the NFBWA 
is not obligated to obtain an affidavit indicating that the individual users 
(including but not limited to municipal utility districts within its boundaries) 
do not object to the provision by the NFBWA of those services. 

   No 
 
25. If the assistance requested is more than $500,000 a Water Conservation Plan (WCP) is required.  

The WCP cannot be more than FIVE years old and must have been adopted by the applicant. 
Has the applicant adopted a Board-approved WCP?  (Check one and attach requested 
information, if any.) 

 Yes  Enter date of Applicant’s WCP adoption: 2014, see attached Water 
Conservation Plan and Utility Profile 

  No If no, attach a copy of a draft Water Conservation Plan and Drought  
   Contingency Plan prepared in accordance with the TWDB WCP Checklist  
   (http://www.twdb.state.tx.us/financial/instructions/doc/TWDB-1968.pdf)  
    Attached Draft WCP and Drought Contingency Plan 

 Attached Utility Profile TWDB-1965 
http://www.twdb.state.tx.us/financial/instructions/doc/TWDB-1965.pdf 

 N/A  (Request is $500,000 or less per Water Code §§ 15.106(c), 17.125(c),  
17.277(c), and 17.857(c)) 

 
Note: If the applicant will utilize the project financed by the TWDB to furnish services to 
another entity that in turn will furnish services to the ultimate consumer, the requirements 
for the WCP may be met through contractual agreements between the applicant and the 
other entity providing for establishment of a water conservation plan. The provision 
requiring a WCP shall be included in the contract at the earliest of: the original execution, 
renewal or substantial amendment of that contract, or by other appropriate measures. 

 
26.  Does the applicant provide retail water services? 

  Yes  If yes, has the applicant already submitted to the TWDB the annual water  
   use survey of groundwater and surface water for the last THREE years?  

 Yes 
        No If no, please download survey forms and attach a copy of  

the completed water use surveys to the application. 
http://www.twdb.texas.gov/waterplanning/waterusesurvey/index.asp 

       Attached Water Use Survey 
 No 

 
27. Is the applicant a retail public utility that provides potable water? 

   Yes If yes, has the applicant already submitted the most recently required water  
   loss audit to the TWDB?  

 Yes 
 No If no, and if applying for a water supply project, please  

complete the online TWDB Water Audit worksheet found at  
http://www.twdb.texas.gov/conservation/resources/waterloss
-resources.asp and attach a copy to the application.   

       Attached TWDB Water Audit worksheet 
   No  

http://www.twdb.texas.gov/conservation/resources/waterloss-resources.asp
http://www.twdb.texas.gov/conservation/resources/waterloss-resources.asp
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28.  Does the Applicant provide wastewater services? 
   Yes    

 No 
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Part C: Financial Information 
 
Regional or wholesale providers, complete questions 29-31.  
Retail providers, complete questions 32-34.  
 
29. List top TEN customers of the system by annual usage in gallons and percentage of total usage, 
including whether any are in bankruptcy. 

 

Customer Name 
Annual Usage 

(gal) Percent of Usage 
Bankruptcy 

(Y/N) 
Cinco MUD 1 1,940,830,000 15.28% N 
Cinco Southwest MUD 1 1,039,510,000 8.19% N 
Fort Bend MUD 34 628,526,000 4.95% N 
Grand Mission MUD 1 603,227,000 4.75% N 
City of Fulshear 555,641,000 4.38% N 
Fort Bend MUD 134 539,078,500 4.25% N 
Grand Lakes MUD 4 534,452,000 4.21% N 
Fort Bend MUD 151 486,141,500 3.83% N 
Fort Bend MUD 58 486,018,000 3.83% N 
Fort Bend MUD 57 429,502,000 3.37% N 

 
 Comments:            
 
 
30. List the top TEN customers of the system by gross revenues and percent of total revenues, including 
whether any are in bankruptcy 

Customer Name 
Annual 

Revenue($) Percent of Revenue 
Bankruptcy 

(Y/N) 
Cinco MUD 1 $5,919,532 14.47% N 
Cinco Southwest MUD 1 $3,450,658 8.43% N 
Fort Bend MUD 34 $2,059,205 5.03% N 
Grand Mission MUD 1 $2,025,261 4.95% N 
Fort Bend MUD 134 $1,783,999 4.36% N 
Grand Lakes MUD 4 $1,773,294 4.33% N 
City of Fulshear $1,694,705 4.14% N 
Fort Bend MUD 58 $1,638,996 4.01% N 
Fort Bend MUD 151 $1,482,732 3.62% N 
Fort Bend MUD 30 $1,441,497 3.52% N 
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31. Provide a summary of the wholesale contracts with customers 
 
 

Contract Type 

 
Minimum 
annual 
amount 

 
Usage fee 
per 1,000 
gallons 

Annual 
Operations 

and 
Maintenance 

 
Annual 
Capital 
Costs 

 
 

Annual 
Debt 

Service 

 
 
 

Other 

Water Supply 
Contract with 
Grand Mission 
MUD 1 

900,000 
GPD 

The 
NFBWA 
Surface 
Water Fee 

N/A N/A N/A  

Water Supply 
Contract with 
Fort Bend 
MUD 58 

955,000 
GPD 

The 
NFBWA 
Surface 
Water Fee 

N/A N/A N/A  

Water Supply 
Contract with 
Fort Bend 
MUD 142 

600,000 
GPD 

The 
NFBWA 
Surface 
Water Fee 

N/A N/A N/A  

Water Supply 
Contract with 
Fort Bend 
MUD 134A 

466,667 
GPD 

The 
NFBWA 
Surface 
Water Fee 

N/A N/A N/A  

Water Supply 
Contract with 
Fort Bend ID 
24 

200,000 
GPD 

The 
NFBWA 
Surface 
Water Fee 

N/A N/A N/A  

Water Supply 
Contract with 
Fort Bend 
MUD 133 

165,000 
GPD 

The 
NFBWA 
Surface 
Water Fee 

N/A N/A N/A  

Water Supply 
Contract with 
Fort Bend 
MUD 30 

800,000 
GPD 

The 
NFBWA 
Surface 
Water Fee 

N/A N/A N/A  

Water Supply 
Contract with 
Fort Bend 
MUD 146 

960,000 
GPD 

The 
NFBWA 
Surface 
Water Fee 

N/A N/A N/A  

Water Supply 
Contract with 
Fort Bend 
MUD 206 

TBD The 
NFBWA 
Surface 
Water Fee 

N/A N/A N/A  
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32. List top TEN customers of the water and/or wastewater system by annual revenue with 
corresponding usage and percentage of total use, including whether any are in bankruptcy. 
 

a. WATER – N/A 

Customer Name 
Annual Usage 

(gal) 
Percent of Total Water 

Revenue 
Bankruptcy 

(Y/N) 
                                            
                                            
                                            
                                            
                                            
                                            
                                            
                                            
                                            
                                            

 
b. WASTEWATER – N/A, the NFBWA does not provide wastewater.  

Customer Name 
Annual Usage 

(gal) 
Percent of Total 

Wastewater Revenue 
Bankruptcy 

(Y/N) 
                                            
                                            
                                            
                                            
                                            
                                            
                                            
                                            
                                            
                                            

 
 
33. Current Average Residential Usage and Rate Information – N/A 

Service 

 
Date of Last 

Rate 
Increase 

Avg. 
Monthly 
Usage 

(gallons) 

 Avg. 
Monthly Bill 

($) 

Avg. 
Monthly 
Increase 

Per 
Customer($) 

Projected Monthly 
Increase Necessary 

($) 
Water                                                        
Wastewater                                                        
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34. Provide the number of customers for each of the past five years. – N/A 
Year Number of 

Customers 
20                 
20                 
20                 
20                 
20                 

  
All applicants complete questions 35-51 of the financial section, as applicable. 
 
35. Disclose all issues that may affect the project or the applicant's ability to issue and/or repay debt 

(such as anticipated lawsuits, judgments, bankruptcies, major customer closings, etc.).  
 None. 
 
36. Has the applicant ever defaulted on any debt?  
  Yes If yes, disclose all circumstances surrounding prior default(s).            
  No 
 
37. Does the applicant have taxing authority?  
  Yes  
  No 
 
38. Provide the last five-years of data showing total taxable assessed valuation including net ad 

valorem taxes levied, corresponding tax rate (detailing debt service and general purposes), and 
tax collection rate. N/A, the NFBWA does not have taxing authority 

 
Comments:            
 
39.  Attach the last five-years of tax assessed values delineated by Classification (Residential, 

Commercial and Industrial). If applicant does not have taxing authority, provide the 
assessed values of the county. 

 
a)  2015 attached 
b)  2014 attached 
c)  2013 attached 
d)  2012 attached 
e)  2011 attached 
 

Fiscal 
Year 

Ending 
Net Taxable 

Assessed Value ($) 
Tax 
Rate 

General 
Fund 

Interest & 
Sinking 
Fund 

Tax 
Levy 

$ 

Percentage 
Current 

Collections 

Percentage 
Total 

Collections 
20                                                
20                                                
20                                                
20                                                
20                                                
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40.  Attach the direct and overlapping tax rate table: N/A, the NFBWA does not have taxing 
authority 

  Attached tax rate table 
 
41. Provide the current top TEN taxpayers showing percentage of ownership to total assessed 

valuation. State if any are in bankruptcy and explain anticipated prospective impacts in the 
Comments blank, below.  If any of these have changed in the past three years, please provide 
information on the changes to the top ten. N/A, the NFBWA does not have taxing authority 
 

Taxpayer Name Assessed Value Percent of Total Bankruptcy (Y/N) 
                                            
                                            
                                            
                                            
                                            
                                            
                                            
                                            
                                            
                                            

 
Comments:            
 

42. Provide the maximum tax rate permitted by law per $100 of property value.  N/A, the NFBWA 
does not have taxing authority 

 
43. Does the applicant collect sales tax?  
  Yes Provide the sales tax collection history for the past five years. 

 
Fiscal Year 

Ending Total Collections 
20                 
20                 
20                 
20                 
20                 

 
  No 
 
44.  Indicate the tax status of the proposed loan? 
  Tax-Exempt 
  Taxable 
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45. Proforma (Select one of the four listed below) Please be sure the proforma reflects the 
schedule requested, including multi-phased funding options.  
a. System revenues are anticipated to be used to repay the proposed debt.  Attach a proforma   

indicating the following information for each year the debt is outstanding: 
  projected gross revenues 
  operating and maintenance expenditures 
  outstanding and proposed debt service requirements 
  net revenues available for debt service and coverage of current and proposed 

debt paid from revenues 
 

b. Taxes are anticipated to be used to repay the proposed debt.  Attach a pro forma indicating 
the following information for each year the debt is outstanding: 
  outstanding and proposed debt service requirements 

    the tax rate necessary to repay current and proposed debt paid from taxes 
   list the assumed collection rate and tax base used to prepare the schedule 

 
c. Combination of system revenues and taxes to be used to repay the proposed debt.  Attach a 

pro forma indicating the following information for each year the debt is outstanding: 
  projected gross revenues, operating and maintenance expenditures, net revenues 

available for debt service 
   outstanding and proposed debt service requirements 
  the tax rate necessary to pay the current and proposed debt 
  list the assumed collection rate and tax base used to prepare the schedule 
 

d. Another type of pledge will be used to repay the proposed debt.  Attach a pro forma with 
information for each year the debt is outstanding, which includes projected revenues, annual 
expenditures, outstanding debt requirements, and revenues available for debt service. 

 Attached 
 
46. Attach a FIVE year comparative system operating statement (not condensed) including audited 

prior years and an unaudited year-to-date statement.  Unaudited year-to-date statement must 
reflect the financial status for a period not exceeding the latest six months. 
  Attached Operating Statement. 

 
47. Attach ONE copy of an annual audit of financial statements, including the management letter, for 

the preceding fiscal year prepared by a certified public accountant or firm of accountants and, if 
the last annual audit was more than 6 months ago, then, provide interim financial information. 
  Attached Annual Audit 
  Attached Management Letter – See email explaining why Management Letter 

was not needed for Audit 
  If applicable, attached interim financial information 

 
48. Does the applicant have any outstanding debt? (Check all that apply) 
  Yes, General obligation debt 
  Yes, Revenue debt 
  Yes, Authorized but unissued debt 
  No 
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49.   Attach a listing of total outstanding debt and identify the debt holder. Segregate by type (General  
 Obligation or Revenue) and present a consolidated schedule for each, showing total annual  
 requirements.  Note any authorized but unissued debt.  

a. General Obligation Debt: 
   Yes 
    Attached schedule.  The schedule should also identify the debt  
    holder. 
   No 
 
 b. Revenue: 
   Yes 
    Attached schedule.  The schedule should also identify the debt  
    holder. 
   No 
   
 c. Authorized by Unissued Debt: 
   Yes 
    Attached schedule.  The schedule should also identify the debt  
    holder. 
   No 
 
50. List the ten largest employers of the Applicant’s service area: 

Name Number of Employees 
Fort Bend ISD 9,085 

Lamar CISD 2,884 

Fluor Corporation 2,430 

Methodist Sugar Land Hospital 2,200 

Schlumberger Technology Corp. 1,750 

United Parcel Service 1,200 

Oak Bend Medical Center 1,164 

Nalco Company Energy Services Division 1,100 

Frito-Lay, Inc. 994 

Texana Center 867 

  
Comments (example, any anticipated changes to the tax base, employers etc.) The NFBWA is 
primarily residential. Therefore, the employers above reflect the largest in Fort Bend County. 
Source: Fort Bend County. 
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51. Provide any current bond ratings with date received. As of April 17, 2018 
 

 
Standard 
& Poor’s 

Date 
Received Moody’s 

Date 
Received Fitch 

Date 
Received 

Water System 
Revenue Bonds – 

Senior Lien A+ 12/28/2012 NA NA A+ 7/3/2017 
Water System 

Revenue Bonds – 
Junior Lien NA NA NA NA NA NA 

 
52. Is the project intended to allow the applicant to provide or receive water or sewer services to or 

from another entity? 
  Yes.   If yes, the applicant must attach, at a minimum, the proposed agreement, contract,  
   or other documentation establishing the service relationship, with the final and  
   binding agreements provided prior to loan closing. 

 Attached  
  No. 
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Part D: Project Information – Please refer to the West Harris County Regional Water 
Authority’s application for the project “WHCRWA/NFBWA Transmission Line” for the 
information in this section.  
 
53. Description of Project Need (for example, is the project needed to address a current compliance 

issue, avoid potential compliance issues, extend service, expand capacity, etc.): 
  
 See WHCRWA application for the SWSP.  
 
54. Description of Project, including a bulleted list of project elements/components, and alternatives 

considered (including existing facilities): 
  

See WHCRWA application for the SWSP.  
 

A complete preliminary engineering feasibility data must include:  
a. A description and purpose of the project, including existing facilities.  

• Note: CWSRF and DWSRF must address issues scored in Intended Use Plan 
submittal 

  Attached  
b. If project is for Construction only, then attach the appropriate Engineering   

Feasibility Report: 
a) Water (TWDB-0555 at 
http://www.twdb.texas.gov/financial/instructions/doc/TWDB-0555.pdf)  

 Attached 
 

b) Wastewater (TWDB-0556 at 
http://www.twdb.texas.gov/financial/instructions/doc/TWDB-0556.pdf) 

 Attached 
 

c. DWSRF applicants must complete a Projected Draw Schedule  
(TWDB-1202 at http://www.twdb.texas.gov/financial/instructions/doc/TWDB-1202.xls) 

 
55. Water Made Available (For projects requesting a construction component): See WHCRWA 

application for the SWSP.  
 

a. New supply______________(acre-feet/year) _________($) capital cost 

o The increase in the total annual volume of water supply that will be made available to the 
recipient(s) by the proposed project. 

o Water Plan project examples: new groundwater wells, reservoir development, pipelines to 
sources. 
 

b. New Conservation savings______________(acre-feet/year)  _________($) capital cost 

o Annual volume of anticipated water savings resulting from implementation of the proposed 
conservation project including water loss) and other conservation activities,  

o Water Plan project examples: municipal conservation, advanced Water Conservation, on-
farm conservation, brush control, irrigation conservation. 
 

http://www.twdb.texas.gov/financial/instructions/doc/TWDB-0555.pdf
http://www.twdb.texas.gov/financial/instructions/doc/TWDB-0556.pdf
http://www.twdb.texas.gov/financial/instructions/doc/TWDB-1202.xls
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c. New Reuse supply ______________(acre-feet/year)                _________($) capital cost 

o Increase in the annual volume of (direct or indirect) reuse water supply that will be made 
available to the recipient(s) by the proposed project. 

o Water Plan project examples: direct reuse, non-potable reuse, recycled water programs. 
 

d. Maintenance of Current Supply______________(acre-feet/year)  _________($) capital cost 

o Volume of recipients’ current supplies that will be maintained by implementing the 
proposed project 

o Water Plan project examples: None. Not a water plan project.  (Examples of these type 
projects: treatment rehabilitation, system storage facilities, system upgrades). 

 
56. Project Location: 
  

See WHCRWA application for the SWSP.  
 
 Attach a map of the service area and drawings as necessary to locate and describe the project.  

The map should show the project footprint and major project components. 
 Attached 

 
57.  Attach the Census tract numbers in which the applicant’s service area is within.  The Census 

tracts within your area may be found at: 
http://factfinder.census.gov/faces/nav/jsf/pages/index.xhtml 

   
   Please follow these steps:   

• Select Advanced Search.  
• Select the Geographies button located below Topics (left side of page).  
• On the top of the window select the Name tab.  
• In the text box, type "All Census Tracts within___" (Fill in the blank with the name 

of a County Subdivision or a Place.) Select "Go".  
• If your town is a County Subdivision, select the geography labeled "All Census 

Tracts (or parts) within City, County, State" from the Geography Results. If your 
town is a place select the geography labeled "All Census Tracts (or parts) full-or-
partially within City, State" from the Geography Results.  

• Close the Geographies Search window.  
• Use the Topics on the left side of the page to further refine your search or to select 

a table(s) from your search results. 
 

 Attached Census tracts – Census tracts for the NFBWA only.  
 
58. Project Schedule: See WHCRWA application for the SWSP.  
 

a) Requested loan closing date.   
           

b) Estimated date to submit environmental planning documents. 
           

c) Estimated date to submit engineering planning documents.  
           

http://factfinder.census.gov/faces/nav/jsf/pages/index.xhtml
http://factfinder2.census.gov/help/en/glossary/p/place.htm
http://factfinder2.census.gov/help/en/glossary/c/county_subdivision.htm
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d) Estimated date for completion of design.   
           

e) Estimated Construction start date for first contract.   
           

f) Estimated Construction end date for last contract.  
            
 

59. Attach a copy of current and future populations and projected water use or wastewater flows.  
Include entities to be served.   

  Attached – NFBWA population and water use projections only.  
 
60. Attach the most current itemized project cost estimate (include all costs and funding sources).  

Utilize the budget format provided (TWDB-1201 at   
http://www.twdb.texas.gov/financial/instructions/ .  If applying for pre-construction costs only (i.e., 
P, A, D) then itemize only the relevant portions in the attached budget template See WHCRWA 
application for the SWSP.  

 Attached 
 
61. Attach the appropriate Project Information Form: See WHCRWA application for the SWSP.  

 Wastewater:  Attached a completed Wastewater Project Information Form  
WRD-253a  http://www.twdb.texas.gov/financial/instructions/index.asp 

 
  Water:  Attached a completed Water Project Information Form  

WRD-253d http://www.twdb.texas.gov/financial/instructions/index.asp 
 

62.     If the project is for Construction only, wastewater projects that involve the construction of a new 
plant or the expansion of an existing plant and/or associated facilities, attach evidence that an 
application for a new Texas Pollution Discharge Elimination System Permit or amendment to an 
existing permit related to the proposed project has been filed with the Texas Commission on 
Environmental Quality (TCEQ).  Final permit authorization must be obtained from the TCEQ 
before funds can be released for construction activities. See WHCRWA application for the 
SWSP.  

 Attached 
 No.  Provide explanation:       

 
63. If this project will result in: (a) an increase by the applicant in the use of groundwater, (b) drilling a 

new water well, or (c) an increase by the applicant in use of surface water, then the applicant 
must demonstrate that it has acquired – by contract, ownership or lease – the necessary property 
rights, groundwater permits, and/or surface water rights sufficient for the project before funds can 
be released for construction. See WHCRWA application for the SWSP.  

 
a) Does the applicant currently own all the property rights, groundwater permits and surface 

water rights needed for this project? 
 Yes If yes, please attach the completed, appropriate form. 

1. WRD 208A (http://www.twdb.texas.gov/financial/instructions/index.asp) (Surface Water) 
  Attached            

2. WRD 208B ( http://www.twdb.texas.gov/financial/instructions/index.asp) (Groundwater) 
   Attached            

 No     
     N/A    

http://www.twdb.texas.gov/financial/instructions/
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b) If all property rights, groundwater permits, and surface water rights, needed for this project 
have not yet been acquired, identify the rights and/or permits that will need to be acquired 
and provide the anticipated date by which the applicant expects to have acquired such rights 
and/or permits. 

Type of 
Permit 

Water Right 

Entity from which 
the permit or right 
must be acquired 

Acquired by lease 
or full ownership 

Expected 
acquisition date 

Permit / Water 
Right ID No. 

                              
                              
                              
                              
                              
                              
                              

 
c) List any major permits not identified elsewhere that are necessary for completion of project. 

Also, list any more necessary minor permits that may involve particular difficulty due to the 
nature of the proposed project. 

Permit Issuing Entity Permit Acquired (Y/N) 
                  
                  
                  
                  

 
 
64. Has the applicant obtained all necessary land and easements for the project? See WHCRWA 

application for the SWSP.  
 
  Yes. If yes, attach the site certificate (ED-101 at   
   http://www.twdb.texas.gov/financial/instructions/index.asp 
    Attached 
 

 No.   If no, fill out the table below and describe the land or easements that will need to  
be acquired, provide the anticipated date by which the applicant expects to have 
the land or easements, and indicate if funding from TWDB is to be used for the 
acquisition. 

Description 
of Land or 
Easement 

Permit 

Entity from which 
the permit or right 
must be acquired 

Acquired by lease 
or full ownership 

Expected 
acquisition 

date 
To Be Funded by 
TWDB (Yes/No) 
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65.  Has a Categorical Exclusion (CE), Determination of No Effect (DNE), Finding of No Significant 
Impact (FONSI), Record of Decision (ROD), or any other environmental determination been 
issued for this project? See WHCRWA application for the SWSP.  
 

 Yes      
  Attach a copy of the finding. 

  No 
 
66. Is the project potentially eligible for a Categorical Exclusion (CE)/ Determination of No Effect 

(DNE) because it involves only minor rehabilitation or the functional replacement of existing 
equipment? See WHCRWA application for the SWSP.  

 
      Yes  
 No 

 
67. Are there potentially adverse environmental or social impacts that may require mitigation or 

extensive regulatory agency or public coordination (e.g. known impacts to properties eligible for 
listing on the National Register of Historic Places; potentially significant public controversy; need 
for an individual permit from the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers)? See WHCRWA application for 
the SWSP.  

 
      Yes   

  If yes, attach additional information 
 No 
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Part E: State Water Implementation Fund for Texas (SWIFT) Applicants Only: 
 
68. Identify the type of SWIFT funding (If more than one funding option is being requested indicate 

the amount of funding for each): 
  Deferred      $      
 Low Interest Loan   $154,535,000 
 Board Participation   $      

 
69. For multi-year funding request or phased commitments, provide a schedule reflecting the closing 

dates for each loan requested. 
 Attached 

 
70. Notice to SWIFT Applicants: Texas Water Code Sec. 15.435(h) requires all recipients of 

financial assistance from the SWIFT to acknowledge any applicable legal obligations in federal 
law, related to contracting with disadvantaged business enterprises, and state law, related to 
contracting with historically underutilized businesses. Checking the boxes below serves as this 
acknowledgement.  

 
 As an applicant for financial assistance from SWIFT, I acknowledge that this project must 

comply with any applicable legal obligations in federal law related to contracting with 
disadvantaged business enterprises.  

 
 As an applicant for financial assistance from SWIFT, I acknowledge that this project must 

comply with applicable legal obligations in state law (Texas Government Code Chapter 2161 and 
Texas Administrative Code Chapter 20, Subchapter B) related to contracting with historically 
underutilized businesses.  

 
71.   Provide drafts of the following documents: 

   a. Proposed Bond Ordinance  
  Attached 

b. Private Placement Memorandum 
 Attached 
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Part I: Summary of attachments to application 
 
Following is a list of the documents that may be necessary in order to process this application. While not all of the 
listed information below may be required for all projects, an applicant should review the application carefully 
because incomplete applications will not be processed until all of this information has been provided.  In addition, 
please make sure your entity system name appears on every attachment.  Label each attachment with the 
number of the pertinent application section (i.e. “Part B5”).  

 
Check list for your convenience 

 
Part A   General Information 

No. 6  Draft or executed consulting contracts (engineering, financial advisor, bond counsel) 
 

Part B   Legal  
No. 17 Resolution (TWDB-0201A) 
No. 18 Application Affidavit (TWDB-0201) 
No. 19 Certificate of Secretary (TWDB-201B) 
No. 21  Resolution/ordinance authorizing the issuance of parity debt 
No. 25 Two copies of the Water Conservation Plan (TWDB-1968 and TWDB-1965)  

 
Part C   Financial  

No. 39 Assessed Values by Classifications 
No. 45 Proforma for each year of debt outstanding 
No. 46 Five year comparative system operating statement. 
No. 47 Annual audit and management letter 
No. 49 Outstanding debt schedule 
No. 52 Service provider contracts 

  
Part D   Project Information   

No. 57 Census Tract(s) 
No. 59 Current and future populations and projected water use or wastewater flows 

 
Part E  State Water Implementation Fund for Texas 

 No. 69 Multi-year/phased commitment schedule 
 No. 71a Draft Bond Ordinance 
 No. 71b Private Placement Memorandum 
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FINANCIAL ADVISORY AGREEMENT 

This Financial Advisory Agreement (the “Agreement”) is made and entered into by and 
between the North Fort Bend Water Authority (the “Issuer”) and Post Oak Municipal Advisors 
LLC (“POMA”) effective as of April 10, 2018 (the “Effective Date”). 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, the Issuer may have under consideration from time to time the authorization 
and issuance of indebtedness in amounts and forms which cannot presently be determined and, 
in connection with the authorization, sale, issuance and delivery of such indebtedness, Issuer 
desires to retain an independent financial advisor; and 

WHEREAS, the Issuer desires to obtain the professional services of POMA to advise the 
Issuer regarding the issuance and sale of certain evidences of indebtedness or debt obligations 
that may be authorized and issued or otherwise created or assumed by the Issuer (hereinafter 
referred to collectively as the “Debt Instruments”) as well as the purchase of certain notes from 
various financial institutions (“Notes”) under the Issuer’s Note Purchase Program (the “Note 
Purchase Program”) from time to time during the period in which this Agreement shall be 
effective; and 

WHEREAS, POMA is willing to provide its professional services and its facilities as 
financial advisor in connection with all programs of financing as may be considered and 
authorized by Issuer during the period in which this Agreement shall be effective. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Issuer and POMA, in consideration of the mutual covenants and 
agreements herein contained and other good and valuable consideration, do hereby agree as 
follows: 

SECTION I 
DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES 

Upon the request of an authorized representative of the Issuer, POMA agrees to perform 
the financial advisory services stated in the following provisions of this Section I; and for having 
rendered such services, the Issuer agrees to pay to POMA the compensation as provided herein. 

A. Financial Planning.  At the direction of the Issuer, POMA shall: 

1. Survey and Analysis.  Conduct a survey of the financial resources of the 
Issuer to determine the extent of its capacity to authorize, issue, and service 
any Debt Instruments contemplated.  This survey will include an analysis of 
any existing debt structure as compared with the existing and projected 
sources of revenues which may be pledged to secure payment of debt service 
and, where appropriate, will include present and future revenue 
requirements of the Issuer.  In the event revenues of existing or projected 
facilities operated by the Issuer are to be pledged to repayment of the Debt 
Instruments then under consideration, the survey will take into account any 
outstanding indebtedness payable from the revenues thereof, additional 
revenues be available from any proposed rate increases and additional 
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revenues, as projected by consulting engineers employed by the Issuer, 
resulting from improvements to be financed by the Debt Instruments under 
consideration.  The survey provided under this Section I may also include, 
where appropriate, the analysis of the Issuer’s rates, the impact of capital 
contributions to the Issuer by members of the Authority, and the analysis of 
financing alternatives for payments due the City of Houston or others from 
the Issuer. 

2. Future Financings.  Consider and analyze future financing needs as 
projected by the Issuer’s consultants and consulting engineers or other 
experts, if any, employed by the Issuer. 

3. Recommendations for Debt Instruments.   On the basis of the information 
developed by the survey described above, and other information and 
experience available, submit to the Issuer recommendations regarding the 
Debt Instruments under consideration, including such elements as the date 
of issue, interest payment dates, schedule of principal maturities, options of 
prior payment, security provisions, and such other provisions as may be 
appropriate in order to make the issue attractive to investors while achieving 
the objectives of the Issuer.  All recommendations will be consistent with the 
goal of designing the Debt Instruments to be sold on terms which are 
advantageous to the Issuer, including the lowest interest cost consistent with 
all other considerations. 

4. Market Information.  Advise the Issuer of our interpretation of current bond 
market conditions, other related forthcoming bond issues and general 
information, with economic data, which might normally be expected to 
influence interest rates or bidding conditions so that the date of sale of the 
Debt Instruments may be set at a favorable time. 

5. Rates.  Annual review of rates and provision of recommendations regarding 
Issuer’s Pumpage and Surface Water Fees. 

6. Meetings.  In the event our attendance is required at a regularly scheduled 
Issuer meeting, at other public meetings, at meetings of a finance committee 
or other committee, at a meeting with the City of Houston or any other 
meeting specifically requested by the Issuer, a member or members of 
POMA will attend. 

B. Debt Management and Financial Implementation.  At the direction of Issuer, POMA 
shall: 

1. Method of Sale.  Evaluate the particular financing being contemplated, 
giving consideration to the complexity, market acceptance, rating, size and 
structure in order to make a recommendation as to an appropriate method 
of sale, and: 

a. If the Debt Instruments are to be sold by an advertised competitive sale, 
POMA will: 
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(1) Supervise the sale of the Debt Instruments; 

(2) Disseminate information to prospective bidders, organize such 
informational meetings as may be necessary, and facilitate 
prospective bidders’ efforts in making timely submission of proper 
bids; 

(3) Assist the consultants of the Issuer in coordinating the receipt of 
bids, the safekeeping of good faith checks and the tabulation and 
comparison of submitted bids; and 

(4) Advise the Issuer regarding the best bid and provide advice 
regarding acceptance or rejection of the bids. 

b. If the Debt Instruments are to be sold by negotiated sale, POMA will: 

(1) Recommend for Issuer’s final approval and acceptance one or more 
investment banking firms as managers of an underwriting 
syndicate for the purpose of negotiating the purchase of the Debt 
Instruments. 

(2) Cooperate with and assist any selected managing underwriter and 
their counsel in connection with their efforts to prepare any Official 
Statement or Offering Memorandum.  POMA will cooperate with 
and assist the underwriters in the preparation of a bond purchase 
contract, an underwriters agreement and other related documents.  
The costs incurred in such efforts, including the printing of the 
documents, will be paid in accordance with the terms of the Issuer’s 
agreement with the underwriters, but shall not be or become an 
obligation of POMA, except to the extent specifically provided 
otherwise in this Agreement or assumed in writing by POMA. 

(3) Assist the consultants of the Issuer in the safekeeping of any good 
faith checks, to the extent there are any of such, and provide a cost 
comparison, for both expenses and interest which are suggested by 
the underwriters, to the then current market. 

(4) Advise the Issuer as to the fairness of the price offered by the 
underwriters. 

2. Offering Documents.  Assist in the preparation and compilation of the notice 
of sale and bidding instructions, official statement, official bid form and such 
other documents (the “Offering Documents”) as may be required and submit 
all such documents to the Issuer for examination, approval and certification.  
The Issuer acknowledges that it is subject to and may be held liable under 
federal or state securities laws for violations thereof, including misleading or 
incomplete disclosure in the Offering Documents.  After such examination, 
approval and certification, POMA shall provide the Issuer with a supply of 
all such documents sufficient to its needs and distribute by mail or, where 
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appropriate, by electronic delivery, sets of the same to prospective 
purchasers of the Debt Instruments.  Also, POMA shall provide copies of the 
final Official Statement to the purchaser of the Debt Instruments in 
accordance with the Notice of Sale and Bidding Instructions. 

3. Credit Ratings.  Make recommendations to the Issuer as to the advisability 
of obtaining a credit rating or ratings, for the Debt Instruments and/or 
municipal bond insurance, and, when directed by the Issuer, coordinate the 
preparation of such information as may be appropriate for submission to the 
rating agency, or agencies and/or municipal bond insurance providers.  In 
those cases where the advisability of personal presentation of information to 
the rating agency, or agencies, may be indicated, POMA will arrange for such 
personal presentations, utilizing such composition of representatives from 
the Issuer as may be finally approved or directed by the Issuer. 

4. Trustee, Paying Agent, Registrar.  Upon request, counsel with the Issuer in 
the selection of a Trustee and/or Paying Agent/Registrar for the Debt 
Instruments, and assist in the negotiation of agreements pertinent to these 
services and the fees incident thereto. 

5. Financial Publications.  When appropriate, advise financial publications of 
the forthcoming sale of the Debt Instruments and provide them with all 
pertinent information. 

6. Consultants.  After consulting with and receiving directions from the Issuer, 
arrange for such reports and opinions of recognized independent 
consultants as may be appropriate for the successful marketing of the Debt 
Instruments. 

7. Auditors.  In the event formal verification by an independent auditor of any 
calculations incident to the Debt Instruments is required, make 
arrangements for such services. 

8. Issuer Meetings.  Attend meetings of the governing body of the Issuer, its 
consultants, representatives or committees as requested at all times when 
POMA may be of assistance or service and the subject of financing is to be 
discussed. 

9. Printing.  To the extent authorized by the Issuer, coordinate all work incident 
to printing of the offering documents and the Debt Instruments. 

10. Delivery of Debt Instruments.  As soon as a bid for the Debt Instruments is 
accepted by the Issuer, coordinate the efforts of all concerned to the end that 
the Debt Instruments may be delivered and paid for as expeditiously as 
possible and assist the Issuer in the preparation or verification of final closing 
figures incident to the delivery of the Debt Instruments. 
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11. Debt Service Schedule.  After the closing of the sale and delivery of the Debt 
Instruments, deliver to the Issuer a schedule of annual debt service 
requirements for the Debt Instruments. 

C. Note Purchase Program.  In conjunction with the Issuer’s Note Purchase Program, 
at the direction of Issuer, POMA shall: 
 
1. Evaluate the Note issuance being contemplated, giving consideration to 

alternate methods of project financing, market acceptance, size, and structure, 
and role of Note issuance within the Issuer’s overall financing plan; 
 

2. Assist the consultants of the Issuer in coordinating with the appropriate 
financial institutions regarding negotiations and documentation related to the 
Note Purchase Program and the issuance of any Note(s) thereunder;  
 

3. Attend meetings of the governing body of the Issuer, its consultants, 
representatives or committees as requested at all times with POMA may be of 
assistance or service and the subjects relating to the Note Purchase Program 
are to be discussed; and  
 

4. Monitor the expiration of any Notes issued under the Note Purchase Program 
to ensure permanent or replacement financial plans are in place for any 
amounts due and owing on the Note prior to its expiration.   

SECTION II 
TERMINATION 

This Agreement may be terminated with or without cause by the Issuer or POMA upon 
the giving of at least thirty (30) days’ prior written notice to the other party of its intention to 
terminate, specifying in such notice the effective date of such termination.  However, it is 
understood that POMA may not be terminated during the pendency of a competitive bond issue 
once the Issuer has authorized the advertisement of the sale of such bonds and until the delivery 
of such bonds.  No penalty will be assessed for termination of this Agreement. 

SECTION III 
COMPENSATION AND EXPENSE REIMBURSEMENT 

The fees due to POMA for the services set forth and described in Section I, A1 through A6 
of this Agreement with respect to financial planning and meetings prior to the issuance of bonds 
shall be calculated in accordance with the schedule set forth or Appendix A attached hereto.  The 
fees due to POMA for the services set forth and described in Section I, B1 through B11 and Section 
I, D1 through D4 of this agreement with respect to the issuance of Debt Instruments and Notes 
shall be calculated in accordance with the schedule set forth on Appendix B attached hereto.  
Unless specifically provided otherwise in Appendices A and B or in a separate written agreement 
between Issuer and POMA, such fees, together with any other fees as may have been mutually 
agreed upon and all expenses for which POMA is entitled to reimbursement, shall become due 
and payable as shown in Appendices A and B. POMA shall invoice the Issuer for all fees and 
reimbursable expenses due from the Issuer hereunder, and all invoices shall be signed by POMA. 
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SECTION IV 
MISCELLANEOUS 

1. Choice of Law.  This Agreement shall be construed and given effect in accordance with the 
laws of the State of Texas. 

2. Binding Effect; Assignment.  This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit 
of the Issuer and POMA, their respective successors and assigns; provided however, neither 
party hereto may assign or transfer any of its rights or obligations hereunder without the 
prior written consent of the other party. 

3. Entire Agreement.  This instrument contains the entire agreement between the parties 
relating to the rights herein granted and obligations herein assumed.  Any oral or written 
representations or modifications concerning this Agreement shall be of no force or effect 
except for a subsequent modification in writing signed by all parties hereto. 

4. Additional Certifications. Additionally, POMA represents and verifies that, to the extent 
this contract represents a contract for goods and services within the meaning of Section 
2270.002 of the Texas Government Code, as amended, and solely for purposes of Chapter 
2270 of the Texas Government Code, at the time of execution of this contract and through 
the termination of this contract, except to the extent otherwise required by applicable 
federal law, POMA neither boycotts or will boycott Israel. The terms “boycott Israel” and 
“boycotts Israel” as used in this paragraph have the meanings assigned to the term “boycott 
Israel” in Section 808.001 of the Texas Government Code, as amended.  

Further, by executing this contract, POMA also represents and certifies that, to the extent 
this contract represents a governmental contract within the meaning of Section 2252.151 of 
the Texas Government Code, as amended, and solely for purposes of Chapter 2252 of the 
Texas Government Code, at the time of execution and delivery of this contract and through 
the termination of this contract, except to the extent otherwise required by applicable 
federal law, POMA neither: (i) engages in business with Iran, Sudan, or any foreign terrorist 
organization as described in Chapters 806 or 807 of the Texas Government Code, or 
Subchapter F of Chapter 2252 of the Texas Government Code; or (ii) is a company listed by 
the Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts under Sections 806.051, 807.051, or 2252.153 of 
the Texas Government Code. The term “foreign terrorist organization” in this paragraph 
the meaning assigned to such term in Section 2252.151 of the Texas Government Code. 

 

[SIGNATURE PAGES FOLLOW.]
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POST OAK MUNICIPAL ADVISORS LLC 

 

By:   __________________________ 
__________________________ 

 

 

NORTH FORT BEND WATER AUTHORITY 

 

By:   ___________________________ 
Title:  ___________________________ 
Date:  ___________________________ 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________ 
Secretary 
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APPENDIX A 

The fees due POMA for services set forth and described in Section I, A1 through A6, shall be 
accrued on an hourly basis as follows: 
 

Senior Vice Presidents/Managing Directors $______ per hour 
Other Vice Presidents/Analysts $______ per hour 
Administrative $ ______per hour 

 
With respect to the method of billing used by POMA, if two senior vice presidents and/or 
managing directors are in attendance or involved in a project, the Issuer will only be invoiced for 
$______ per hour.  However, if a senior vice president and/or managing director and another 
vice president or analyst is necessary at the attendance of a meeting or involved in a project, the 
Issuer will be invoiced for both of those professionals. 

If POMA seeks payment for any such services, POMA shall invoice the Issuer for any such 
services on a quarterly basis.  Hourly fees shall be due and payable within 60 days of the date of 
the invoice. 

The Issuer shall be responsible for the following expenses, if and when applicable, whether they 
are charged to the Issuer directly as expenses or charged to the Issuer by POMA as reimbursable 
expenses: 

Travel expenses 
Miscellaneous, including copy, delivery, word processing, and phone charges 



DRAFT 5.3.18 

716140_2 

APPENDIX B 

Bonds 

The fees due POMA with respect to the services as set forth in Section I, B1 through B11 for the 
issuing of Debt Instruments that are bonds are as follows: 

  Minimum Fee $50,000 
First  $3,000,000: ____% of the Principal Amount 

$3,000,001 to $5,000,000: ____% of the Principal Amount 
$5,000,001 to $10,000,000: ____% of the Principal Amount 

$10,000,001 to $20,000,000: ____% of the Principal Amount 
$20,000,001 to $30,000,000: ____% of the Principal Amount 
$30,000,001 to $50,000,000: ____% of the Principal Amount 

Over to $50,000,000: ____% of the Principal Amount 
 

The payment of fees described above for financial advisory services shall be contingent upon the 
delivery of bonds and shall be due at the time that bonds are delivered. 

Notes 

The fees due POMA with respect to the services as set forth in Section I, D1 through D4 for the 
issuance of Notes under the Authority’s Note Purchase Program are as follows: 

 $_____ for each Note issuance. 

Other 

The fees due POMA for Debt Instruments that are not bonds or notes will be mutually determined 
by the Issuer and Team by separate written agreement. 

The Issuer shall be responsible for the following expenses, if and when applicable, whether they 
are charged to the Issuer directly as expenses or charged to the Issuer by POMA as reimbursable 
expenses: 

Bond counsel, legal or tax opinion, counsel to underwriter, securities or disclosure counsel, or 
any other counsel 
Bond printing 
Bond ratings 
Credit enhancement 
CPA fees for refunding 
Official statement preparation and printing and distribution 
Paying agent/registrar/trustee 
Travel expenses 
Publication of Notices in newspapers, financial publications and other publications 
Miscellaneous, including copy, delivery, word processing, and phone charges 
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The payment of reimbursable expenses that POMA has assumed on behalf of the Issuer shall not 
be contingent upon the delivery of bonds and shall be due at the time that services are rendered 
and payable upon receipt of an invoice therefor submitted by POMA. 

In the event that either party to this contract determines that it is necessary to retain securities or 
disclosure counsel to review documents and proceedings related to the offering of bonds by the 
Issuer and to provide other services customarily provided by securities disclosure counsel, such 
counsel will be retained. 
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Attachment C46
5-Year Operating Statement

NORTH FORT BEND WATER AUTHORITY

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Fiscal Year ended December 31,

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
(Unaudited)

Operating Revenues:
Pumpage Fee Revenue 13,809,530$   16,113,230$   14,359,514$   14,637,440$   16,944,838$   19,720,754$    
Surface Water Sales 4,125,599       7,708,816       13,267,599     16,458,019     19,731,702     21,312,549      
Conservation / Reuse Credits -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       (737,668)          
Other 134,701          355,450          37,301            27,692            46,897            167,172            

Total Operating Revenues 18,069,830$   24,177,496$   27,664,414$   31,123,151$   36,723,437$   40,462,807$    

Operating Epenses:
Professional Fees 1,824,305$     2,174,250$     1,954,921$     2,047,771$     2,230,912$     2,047,190$      
Contracted Services 232,372          336,861          381,904          439,385          440,951          399,321            
Purchased Services 1,484,563       1,959,260       2,894,875       2,609,217       4,328,709       4,135,316         
Operations Maintenance 712,863          864,302          1,316,790       1,777,426       1,437,128       1,496,793         
Leased Payments - Pump St 227,712          233,405          198,539          -                       -                       -                         
Water Conservation Incentives -                       -                       -                       -                       305,604          318,508            
Other 275,346          310,605          417,923          417,979          390,053          684,971            

Total Operating Expenses 4,757,161$     5,878,683$     7,164,952$     7,291,778$     9,133,357$     9,082,099$      

Net Operating Revenues 13,312,669$  18,298,813$  20,499,462$  23,831,373$  27,590,080$  31,380,708$    

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses):
Interest Income 176,117          154,016          134,177          122,539          276,816          330,816            
Interest Expense (6,499,292)      (9,446,904)      (9,326,197)      (10,190,545)   (10,165,126)   (12,813,302)     
Professional Fees (450,131)         (354,285)         (387,654)         (379,003)         (944,096)         (441,844)          
Capital Contributions 910,665          -                       -                       -                         
Loan Forgiveness Grant -                       -                       1,632,000       -                         
Gain on Sale of Fixed Assets 30,000            -                       -                       -                         
Waterline Connections (1,176,998)      (3,293,126)      (885,546)         (4,778)             -                       -                         
Other -                       (80,104)           (55,222)           (330,769)         (616,683)         239,208            

Net Revenue 5,362,365$     5,278,410$     10,919,685$  13,048,817$  17,772,991$  18,695,586$    
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Independent Auditors’ Report 
 
 
Board of Directors 
North Fort Bend Water Authority 
Fort Bend County, Texas 
 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business type activities of North 
Fort Bend Water Authority (the “Authority”), as of and for the year ended December 31, 2016, 
and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Authority’s basic 
financial statements as listed in the table of contents.  
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these basic financial statements based on our audit. 
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the basic financial statements are free of material 
misstatement.  
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control 
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express 
no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting principles 
used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.  
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion.  



Board of Directors 
North Fort Bend Water Authority 
Fort Bend County, Texas 
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Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the business type activities of the Authority, as of December 31, 
2016, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows thereof for the year then 
ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Other-Matters 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management’s discussion and analysis be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. 
Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it be an essential part of financial 
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic or 
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary 
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the 
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our 
inquiries, the basic financial statements and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the 
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the 
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express 
an opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
 

 
 
Houston, Texas 
May 3, 2017
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
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Using this Annual Report 
 
Within this section of the financial report of the North Fort Bend Water Authority (the “Authority”), the 
Authority’s management provides narrative discussion and analysis of the financial activities of the 
Authority, for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2016. This analysis should be read in conjunction with 
the basic financial statements that follow this section.   
 
Overview of the Financial Statements 
 
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Authority’s basic financial 
statements, which are comprised of the following:  
 
The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the Authority’s assets, deferred outflows of 
resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources and net position.  Over time, increases or decreases in 
net position may serve as a useful indicator of changes in the financial position of the Authority. 
 
The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position presents information showing how the 
Authority’s net position changed during the year.  All changes in net position are reported as soon as the 
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows.  Thus, 
revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will result in cash flows in future 
fiscal periods (e.g., accounts receivable). 
 
The Statement of Cash Flows presents information on the Authority’s cash inflows and outflows during the 
year. Cash flows are categorized as operating activities, capital and related financing activities and investing 
activities. This statement includes a reconciliation of cash provided by the Authority’s operating activities 
to operating income as reported on the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position. 
 
The Notes to the Financial Statements provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of 
the data provided in the financial statements.  
 
Financial Analysis of the Authority 
 
The Authority’s net position at December 31, 2016 was $36,523,188. Net position is the residual of assets, 
plus deferred outflows of resources, less liabilities, less deferred inflows of resources. Accounting 
standards establish the following three components of net position:  
 

 The net investment in capital assets component represents the Authority’s investments in capital 
assets, less any outstanding debt or other borrowings used to acquire those assets. Resources 
needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves 
cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. 

 The restricted component of net position consists of financial resources that are restricted for a 
specific purpose by enabling legislation or external parties. 

 The unrestricted component of net position represents resources not included in the other 
components. This component includes non-spendable assets, such as unamortized prepaid bond 
insurance.  
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A comparative summary of the Authority’s overall financial position, as of December 31, 2016 and 
December 31, 2015 is summarized as follows, based on information contained in the Statement of Net 
Position: 
 

2016 2015

Current and other assets 121,223,528$   100,523,783$   

Capital assets 217,752,715    214,429,477    

Total assets 338,976,243 314,953,260

Current liabilities 12,065,269 11,558,349

Long term liabilities 290,387,786 280,262,268

Total liabilities 302,453,055 291,820,617

Net Position

Net investment in capital assets (33,324,474) (42,264,515)

Restricted 32,034,856 30,980,746

Unrestricted 37,812,806 34,416,412

Total net position 36,523,188$    23,132,643$    

 
The Authority’s net operating income for the period ended December 31, 2016, was $23,207,634 with net 
non-operating expense of $9,817,089, resulting in an increase in net position of $13,390,545. Non-
operating revenues consist of interest income from the Authority’s investments and Build America Bond 
rebates and revenues received from the Texas Water Development Board (“TWDB”) loan forgiveness 
grant. Non-operating expenses consist of interest on long term debt, debt issuance costs and construction-
related administrative costs. 
 
A comparative summary of the Authority’s operations for the period ended December 31, 2016 and 
December 31, 2015 is summarized as follows, based on information in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses 
and Changes in Net Position:  
 

2016 2015

Operating revenues 36,723,437$    31,123,151$    

Operating expenses (13,515,803)     (11,294,832)     

Net operating income       23,207,634 19,828,319      

Net non-operating expense (9,817,089)       (10,782,556)     

Change in net position 13,390,545      9,045,763        

Net position, beginning of year 23,132,643      14,086,880      

Net position, end of year 36,523,188$    23,132,643$    
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Capital Assets 
 
Capital assets held by the Authority at the end of the current year and previous year are summarized as 
follows: 
  

2016 2015

Capital assets not being depreciated

Land and right of way acquisition 8,627,739$          8,378,229$          

Land and right of way acquisition - joint facilities 12,876,226          11,103,222          

Construction in progress 7,869,953            15,294,254          

Total capital assets not being depreciated 29,373,918          34,775,705          

Capital assets being depreciated or amortized, net

Water distribution system 94,417,219          86,139,990          

Joint facilities 32,001,412          33,241,828          

Capital Contributions - City of Houston 61,960,166 60,271,954

Total capital assets being depreciated or amortized, net 188,378,797        179,653,772        

Total capital assets, net 217,752,715$      214,429,477$      

 
During the current year, significant capital additions were: 
 

 land and right-of-way acquisition costs 

 capital contributions to the City of Houston’s Northeast Water Purification Plant (NEWPP) 

 capital contributions to the City of Houston’s Northeast Transmission Line (NETL) 

 water service lines to Segment 10A 

 meter station communication upgrades 

 various system wide projects 
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Long-Term Obligations 
 
During the year, the Authority issued $20,445,000 in Water System Junior Lien Revenue Bonds.  Total 
long term obligations as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 are as follows: 
 

2016 2015

Revenue Bonds

Water System Revenue Bonds, Series 2009 122,425,000$    126,685,000$      

Water System Revenue Bonds, Series 2010A 37,160,000        39,215,000          

Water System Revenue Bonds, Series 2010B 18,785,000        18,785,000          

Water System Revenue Bonds, Series 2011 76,775,000        79,100,000          

Water System Junior Lien Revenue Bonds, Series 2015 8,300,000          8,670,000           

Water System Junior Lien Revenue Bonds, Series 2016A 9,420,000          

Water System Junior Lien Revenue Bonds, Series 2016B 11,025,000        

Unamortized discount/premium (379,063)           (406,114)             

283,510,937      272,048,886        

Share of Water Infrastructure Fund Bonds, Series 2012 14,738,425        15,674,590          

Capital Contributions 2,484,957          2,556,577           

Total long term obligations 300,734,319$    290,280,053$      

 
The Water Infrastructure Fund Bonds, Series 2012 in the preceding table is for the Authority’s pro-rata 
share of annual debt service on bonds issued by West Harris County Regional Water Authority pursuant to 
an agreement to jointly design, construct, finance, operate and maintain certain facilities (see Note 12).  
 
The Authority’s parity revenue bonds (Series 2009, Series 2010A, Series 2010B and Series 2011) carry an 
underlying rating of “A+” from Standard & Poor’s and Fitch Ratings. The bonds also carry an insured 
rating of “AA” based on insurance issued by Assured Guaranty Municipal Corporation. 
 
Request for Information 
 
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Authority’s finances. Questions 
concerning any information provided in this report or requests for additional information should be 
addressed to North Fort Bend Water Authority, c/o Allen Boone Humphries Robinson LLP, 3200 
Southwest Freeway, Suite 2600, Houston, Texas 77027. 
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North Fort Bend Water Authority

Statement of Net Position

December 31, 2016

Assets

Current assets

Cash 6,874,175$            

Investments 24,206,309

Accounts receivable 2,528,616

Other receivables 1,500,960

Accrued interest receivable 44,860

Prepaid expenses 1,680

Operating reserve - joint facilities 8,585

     Total current assets 35,165,185

Noncurrent assets

Restricted cash 30,624,195

Restricted investments 32,303,340

Water conservation credits 999,995

Unamortized prepaid bond insurance 3,288,528

Joint facilities - future capital costs (Note 12) 18,842,285

Capital assets

Land, easements and rights-of- way 21,503,965

Construction in progress 7,869,953

Capital assets, net 188,378,797

    Total noncurrent assets 303,811,058

    Total assets 338,976,243          

Liabilities

Current liabilities 

Accounts payable 613,546

Accounts payable from restricted assets 384,594

Retainage payable from restricted assets 132,744

Accrued interest payable 587,852

Capital contributions, due within one year 75,368

Joint facilities WIF bonds share obligation, due within one year 936,165

Bonds payable, due within one year 9,335,000

    Total current liabilities 12,065,269

Noncurrent liabilities

Capital contributions, due in more than one year 2,409,589

Joint facilities WIF bonds share obligation, due in more than one year 13,802,260

Bonds payable, due in more than one year 274,175,937

    Total noncurrent liabilities 290,387,786

    Total liabilities 302,453,055          

Net position

Net investment in capital assets (33,324,474)

Restricted for debt service 29,413,202

Restricted  for water conservation credits 999,995

Restricted for operations and maintenance reserve 1,621,659

Unrestricted 37,812,806

Total net position 36,523,188$           

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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North Fort Bend Water Authority

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

For the Year Ended December 31, 2016

Operating revenues

Pumpage fees 16,944,838$        

Surface water 19,731,702

Other 46,897

Total operating revenues 36,723,437

Operating expenses

Professional fees 2,230,912

Contracted services 440,951

Operations and maintenance 1,437,128

Purchased water 4,328,709

Depreciation and amortization 4,382,446

Other 695,657

Total operating expenses 13,515,803

Net operating income 23,207,634

Non-operating revenues (expenses)

Interest income 276,816              

Build America Bonds rebate 368,565

Debt issuance costs (554,079)             

Professional fees (944,096)             

Interest expense (10,533,691)         

TWDB loan forgiveness grant 1,632,000

Other (62,604)               

Net non-operating expense (9,817,089)

Change in net position 13,390,545          

Beginning net position 23,132,643

Ending net position 36,523,188$        

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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North Fort Bend Water Authority

Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended December 31, 2016

Cash flows from operating activities

Receipts from participants 41,302,633$           

Payments to contractors and vendors (9,170,381)              

Net cash provided by operating activities 32,132,252             

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities

Paid for acquisition and construction of capital assets (4,914,224)              

Payment of interest on bonds (12,766,198)            

Payment of bond principal (9,010,000)              

Payment of WIF bond share obligation (1,094,152)              

Build America Bonds interest rebate 368,565                 

Bond proceeds 20,445,000             

Payments to contractors and vendors (1,000,278)              

TWDB loan forgiveness grant 1,632,000               

Debt issuance costs (554,079)                

Net cash used by capital and related financing activities (6,893,366)              

Cash flows from investing activities

Interest received 288,437                 

Net cash provided by investing activities 288,437                 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 25,527,323             

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year 62,964,765             

Cash and cash equivalents - end of year 88,492,088$           

Operating income 23,207,634$           

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash used by 

  operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization expense 4,382,446               

Non-cash revenue from capital contribution credits (196,719)                

Change in assets and liabilities:

Decrease in accounts receivable 4,775,915               

Decrease in prepaid expense 570                        

Increase in conservation credits (139,476)                

Decrease in accounts payable 101,882                 

Total adjustments 8,924,618               

Net cash provided by operating activities 32,132,252$           

Cash and cash equivalents per Statement of Net Position:

Cash 6,874,175$             

Cash Equivalents Reported as Investments 24,206,309             

Restricted Cash            30,624,195             

Cash Equivalents Reported as Restricted Investments 26,787,409             

88,492,088$           

See Notes to Financial Statements.

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by operating activities:
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Note 1 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
The North Fort Bend Water Authority (the “Authority”) was created in 2005 under Article 16, Section 
59 of the Texas Constitution by Senate Bill 1798, as passed by the Texas Legislature and as amended 
and codified in Chapter 8813, Texas Special District Laws Code (the “Act”). The Authority began 
operations in September, 2005.  The Act empowers the Authority to provide for the conservation, 
preservation, protection, recharge and prevention of waste of groundwater and for the reduction of 
groundwater withdrawals.  
 
The Authority charges a fee based on the amount of water pumped from a well or surface water 
delivered to the owner of wells located in the Authority’s boundaries, unless exempted. The Authority 
also charges a fee for importation of water into the Authority’s boundaries.  The fees established by the 
Board of Directors should be sufficient to: (1) achieve water conservation, prevent waste of water, 
serve as a disincentive to pumping groundwater and make available alternative water supplies; and (2) 
enable the Authority to meet operation and maintenance expenses and pay the principal and interest 
on any debt issued by the Authority. 
 
The Authority has contracted with various consultants to provide services to operate and administer 
the affairs of the Authority.  The Authority has no employees, related payroll or pension costs.   
 
The accounting policies of the Authority conform with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America as promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).  
The following is a summary of the most significant policies: 
 
Reporting Entity 
 
The Authority is a political subdivision of the State of Texas governed by an appointed seven-member 
Board. As required by generally accepted accounting principles, these financial statements have been 
prepared based on considerations regarding the potential for inclusion of other entities, organizations 
or functions as part of the Authority’s financial reporting entity.  No other entities, organizations or 
functions have been included in the Authority’s financial reporting entity. Additionally, as the 
Authority is considered a primary government for financial reporting purposes, its activities are not 
considered a part of any other governmental or other type of reporting entity. 
 
Considerations regarding the potential for inclusion of other entities, organizations or functions in the 
Authority’s financial reporting entity are based on criteria prescribed by generally accepted accounting 
principles.  These same criteria are evaluated in considering whether the Authority is a part of any 
other governmental or other type of reporting entity. The overriding elements considered in 
determining that the Authority’s financial reporting entity status is that of a primary government are: 
that it has a separate governing body; it is legally separate; and it is fiscally independent of other state 
and local governments. Additional criteria include (1) considerations pertaining to organizations for 
which the primary government is financially accountable and (2) considerations pertaining to other 
organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the primary government 
are such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity’s financial statements to be misleading or 
incomplete. 
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Note 1 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 
Basic Financial Statements 
 
The basic financial statements include the Statement of Net Position, Statement of Revenues, Expenses and 
Changes in Net Position, Statement of Cash Flows and Notes to Financial Statements.  These statements focus 
on the sustainability of the Authority as an entity and the change in aggregate financial position 
resulting from these activities for the fiscal year.  
 
Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting  
 
The Authority follows proprietary fund accounting and reporting requirements, which utilize the 
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Proprietary funds 
distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues and 
expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection 
with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The Authority’s principal operating revenues 
are charges to participants for pumpage fees and water supply. Operating expenses include the cost of 
services and administrative expenses. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are 
reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.  
 
Net position is classified, when applicable, into the following three components: 
 

 Net investment in capital assets – this component of net position consists of capital assets, 
including restricted capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation/amortization and reduced 
by the outstanding balances of any bonds, notes or other borrowings. 

 Restricted – resources that can be spent only for specific purposes because constraints on the 
use of these resources are either externally imposed by creditors (such as through debt 
covenants), grantors, contributors or laws or regulations of other governments or imposed 
through enabling legislation. 

 Unrestricted – amounts that do not meet the definition of the previous two categories. 
Included in the Authority’s unrestricted net assets of $37,812,806, is $29,863,679 which the 
Authority has deposited into separate bank/investment accounts and has designated as the 
improvement fund.  

 
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is generally the Authority’s 
policy to use restricted resources first.  
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
For the purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the Authority considers investments in investment 
pools and certificates of deposit to be cash equivalents. 
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Note 1 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 
Receivables 
 
All receivables are reported at their gross value and, where appropriate, are reduced by an allowance 
for amounts considered uncollectible. At December 31, 2016, an allowance was not considered 
necessary for possible uncollectible accounts. 
 
Capital Assets 
 
The Authority defines capital assets as assets with an initial cost of $5,000 or more and an estimated 
useful life in excess of one year.  Capital assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical 
cost.  Donated capital assets are recorded at the estimated fair market value at the date of donation. 
The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the assets or materially 
extend assets lives are not capitalized. 
 
Capital assets, except for land, easements, rights-of-way and construction in progress, are depreciated 
using the straight-line method as follows: 
 

Assets  Useful Life 

Water distribution system  45 years 
Joint facilities   20 - 45 years 

Capital contributions   80 years (max) 
 
Interest costs on assets acquired with tax-exempt borrowings are capitalized, net of interest earned on 
related interest-bearing investments acquired with proceeds of the related borrowings, from the date of 
borrowing until the assets are ready for their intended use. During the current fiscal year, the Authority 
incurred interest costs of $10,533,691 on construction-related borrowings and capitalized $2,773,312 of 
net interest. 
 
Budgeting 
 
The Board of Directors annually adopts an unappropriated budget for the Authority. 
 
Use of Estimates 
 
The preparation of financial statements, in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles, 
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets 
and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements 
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.  Actual amounts 
could differ from those estimates. 
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Note 2 – Deposits and Investments 
 
Deposit Custodial Credit Risk 
 
Custodial credit risk as it applies to deposits (i.e. cash and certificates of deposit) is the risk that, in the 
event of the failure of the depository institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits 
or will not be able to recover collateral securities. The Public Funds Collateral Act (Chapter 2257, Texas 
Government Code) requires that all of the Authority’s deposits with financial institutions be covered 
by federal depository insurance and, if necessary, pledged collateral held by a third party custodian. The 
act further specifies the types of securities that can be used as collateral. The Authority’s written 
investment policy establishes additional requirements for collateralization of deposits.   
 
Restricted Cash 
 

At December 31, 2016, restricted cash was comprised of the following: 
 

Capital improvements 5,775,732$       

TWBD escrow 24,848,463

30,624,195$      

 
Investments 
 
The Authority is authorized by the Public Funds Investment Act (Chapter 2256, Texas Government Code) 
to invest in the following: (1) obligations of the United States or its agencies and instrumentalities, (2) 
direct obligations of the State of Texas or its agencies and instrumentalities, (3) certain collateralized 
mortgage obligations, (4) other obligations, which are unconditionally guaranteed or insured by the 
State of Texas or the United States or its agencies or instrumentalities, including obligations that are 
fully guaranteed or insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or by the explicit full faith 
and credit of the United States, (5) certain A rated or higher obligations of states and political 
subdivisions of any state, (6) bonds issued, assumed or guaranteed by the State of Israel, (7) insured or 
collateralized certificates of deposit, (8) certain fully collateralized repurchase agreements, (9) bankers’ 
acceptances with limitations, (10) commercial paper rated A-1 or P-1 or higher and a maturity of 270 
days or less, (11) no-load money market mutual funds and no-load mutual funds, with limitations, (12) 
certain guaranteed investment contracts, (13) certain qualified governmental investment pools and (14) 
a qualified securities lending program. 
 
The Authority has adopted a written investment policy to establish the principles by which the 
Authority’s investment program should be managed. This policy further restricts the types of 
investments in which the Authority may invest. 
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Note 2 – Deposits and Investments (continued) 
 
Investment Credit and Interest Rate Risk  
 
Investment credit risk is the risk that the investor may not recover the value of an investment from the 
issuer, while interest rate risk is the risk that the value of an investment will be adversely affected by 
changes in interest rates. The Authority’s investment policies do not address investment credit and 
interest rate risk beyond the rating and maturity restrictions established by state statutes.  
  
As of December 31, 2016, the Authority’s investments and maturities are as follows: 
 

Type 

Carrying

Value

Percentage 

of Total Less than 1 1-5

TexPool

Unrestricted - Improvement fund  $  20,955,750 36%  $  20,955,750  $              -   

TexSTAR

Unrestricted           195,880 

Restricted - Operations and maintenance        1,621,659 

Restricted - Debt service      15,287,150 

Restricted - Acquisition of capital assets           707,986 

     17,820,795 32% 17,820,795     

Certificates of Deposit

Restricted - Debt service        9,170,612 

Unrestricted - Improvement Fund        3,046,561 

     12,217,173 22% 12,217,173                        

Treasury Notes

Restricted - Debt service        4,972,634 9% 4,972,634     

San Antonio Independent School District Bond

Restricted - Debt service           543,297 1%         543,297 

 $  56,509,649 100%  $  50,993,718  $  5,515,931 

Maturities in Years

The Authority considers the investments in TexPool and TexSTAR to have a maturity of less than one 
year because the weighted average maturities of these pools are 85 days and 96 days, respectively. 
TexPool and TexSTAR are rated AAAm by Standard and Poor’s and the San Antonio Independent 
School District Bonds are rated Aa2 by Moody’s.  
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Note 2 – Deposits and Investments (continued) 
 
Investment Valuation 
 
The Authority’s investments in U.S. treasuries, municipal bonds and TexSTAR are reported at fair 
value in the Statement of Net Position. The Authority implemented GASB Statement No. 72, “Fair Value 
Measurement and Application,” during the current fiscal year. This statement establishes a hierarchy of 
inputs used to measure fair value as follows: Level 1 inputs are based on quoted prices for identical 
securities in active markets, Level 2 inputs are based on significant other observable inputs, and Level 3 
inputs are based on significant unobservable inputs. 
 
Fair value measurements of the Authority’s investments as of December 31, 2016 are as follows: 
 

 U.S. Treasury Notes: valued at $4,972,634 based on quoted market prices (level 1 inputs). 

 San Antonio Independent School District bonds: valued at $543,297 based on yield curves, 
which are adjusted throughout the day based on trades and other pertinent market information 
(level 2 inputs). 

 TexSTAR: valued at $17,820,795 based on published fair value per share (level 1 inputs). 
 
TexPool  
 
The State Comptroller of Public Accounts exercises oversight responsibility over the Texas Local 
Government Investment Pool (TexPool). Such oversight includes (1) the ability to significantly 
influence operations, (2) designation of management and (3) accountability for fiscal matters. 
Additionally, the State Comptroller has established an advisory board composed of both participants in 
TexPool and other persons who do not have a business relationship with TexPool. The Advisory 
Board members review the investment policy and management fee structure.  
 
As permitted by GAAP, TexPool uses amortized cost (which excludes unrealized gains and losses) 
rather than market value to compute share price and seeks to maintain a constant dollar value per 
share. Accordingly, the fair value of the Authority’s position in TexPool is the same as the value of 
TexPool shares. Investments in TexPool may be withdrawn on a same day basis, as long as the 
transaction is executed by 3:30 p.m.  
 
TexSTAR 
 
The Texas Short Term Asset Reserve fund (TexSTAR) is managed by First Southwest, a division of 
Hilltop Securities, Inc., and J.P. Morgan Investment Management, Inc. First Southwest provides 
participant and marketing services while J.P. Morgan provides investment management services. 
Custodial and depository services are provided by J.P. Morgan Chase Bank N.A. or its subsidiary.  
 
The Authority’s investment in TexSTAR is reported at fair value because TexSTAR uses fair value to 
report investments. Investments in TexSTAR may be withdrawn via wire transfer on a same day basis, 
as long as the transaction is executed by 4 p.m. ACH withdrawals made by 4 p.m. will settle on the 
next business day.  
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Note 3 – Water Conservation Credits 
 
The Authority participates in the Water Wise Program sponsored by the Fort Bend Subsidence District 
(“FBSD”). This program is an educational program dedicated to teaching local students about the 
importance of water conservation. The Authority receives a Certificate of Deposit water conservation 
credit equal to 84,000 gallons of groundwater for each student sponsored. Redemption of the 
Certificate of Deposit requires the FBSD to increase the redeemer’s groundwater allocation by the 
amount of the water conservation credit, provided however, that the Certificates of Deposit issued 
beginning with the 2001-2002 school year (Series B) may only be applied to a maximum of 30 percent 
of the permittee’s total water demand. The Authority began purchasing water conservation credits 
from other municipalities in 2007. The cost paid to the FBSD to sponsor each student and the cost 
paid to other municipalities to purchase water conservation credits is recorded as an asset and will be 
expensed in the year in which the credits(s) are redeemed. As of December 31, 2016, the Authority has 
invested $999,995 in water conservation credits. 
 
Note 4 – Other Receivables 
 
Other receivables as of December 31, 2016 are comprised of the following: 
 

Due from City of Houston (Note 11) 567,279$          

Due from West Harris County RWA (Note 12) 933,681

1,500,960$       

 



North Fort Bend Water Authority 
Notes to Financial Statements 
December 31, 2016 
 
 

20 

Note 5 – Capital Assets 
 
A summary of capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2016 is as follows: 
 

Beginning  Ending

Balance Additions Retirements Balance

Capital assets not being depreciated

Land and ROW acquisition 8,378,229$      249,510$        -$              8,627,739$       

Land and ROW acquisition - joint facilities 11,103,222     1,773,004       12,876,226       

Construction in progress 15,294,254     2,980,577       (10,404,878)   7,869,953         

Subtotal non-depreciable capital assets 34,775,705     5,003,091       (10,404,878)   29,373,918       

Capital assets being depreciated/amortized

Water distribution system 91,989,578     10,404,881     102,394,459     

Joint facilities 35,048,686     35,048,686       

Capital Contributions - City of Houston 69,394,098     2,702,590       72,096,688       

Subtotal 196,432,362    13,107,471                          209,539,833     

Less accumulated depreciation/amortization

Water distribution system (5,849,588)      (2,127,652)      (7,977,240)        

Joint facilities (1,806,858)      (1,240,416)                       (3,047,274)        

Capital Contributions - City of Houston (9,122,144)      (1,014,378)      (10,136,522)      

Subtotal (16,778,590)    (4,382,446)                       (21,161,036)      

Subtotal depreciable capital assets, net 179,653,772    8,725,025                        188,378,797     

Total capital assets, net 214,429,477$  13,728,116$   (10,404,878)$ 217,752,715$   

Depreciation/amortization expense for the current year was $4,382,446. 
 
Note 6 – Bonds Payable 
 
Bonds payable as reported on the Statement of Net Position is comprised of the following: 
 

Bonds payable 283,890,000$      

Unamortized discounts/premium (379,063)

Total 283,510,937$      

Due within one year 9,335,000$         

Due after one year 274,175,937       

283,510,937$      
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Note 6 – Bonds Payable 
 
The Authority’s bonds payable at December 31, 2016, consisted of the following individual issues: 
 

Water System Water System Water System Water System

Revenue Bonds Revenue Bonds Revenue Bonds Revenue Bonds

Series 2009 Series 2010A Series 2010B Series 2011

Amount outstanding, $122,425,000 $37,160,000 $18,785,000 $76,775,000

end of year

Interest rates 3.00% - 5.25% 3.00% - 5.00% 6.018% 2.00%-5.25%

Maturity dates: December 15, December 15, December 15, December 15,

(beginning - ending) 2011-2020 2015-2030 2011-2035 2014-2036

2024, 2034

Interest payment dates June 15 and June 15 and June 15 and June 15 and 

December 15 December 15 December 15 December 15

Callable dates December 15, December 15, December 15, December 15,

2019* 2020* 2020* 2021*

 
 

Junior Lien Junior Lien Junior Lien

Water System Water System Water System

Revenue Bonds Revenue Bonds Revenue Bonds

Series 2015 Series 2016A Series 2016B

Amount outstanding, $8,300,000 $9,420,000 $11,025,000

end of year

Interest rates 0.19% - 2.41% 0.0% - 1.02% 0.65% - 3.04%

Maturity dates: December 15, December 15, December 15,

(beginning - ending) 2016-2035 2018-2040 2018-2046

Interest payment dates June 15 and June 15 and June 15 and 

December 15 December 15 December 15

Callable dates December 15, December 15, December 15,

2026* 2026* 2026*

 
 
* Or any date thereafter, callable at par plus unpaid accrued interest in whole or in part at the option of the 

Authority.  Series 2009 term bonds maturing December 15, 2024 and December 15, 2034 are subject to 
mandatory redemption beginning December 15, 2021, and December 15, 2025, respectively.  Series 2010B 
term bonds maturing December 15, 2035 are subject to mandatory redemption beginning December 15, 
2031. The Series 2010B bonds are Direct Subsidy Bonds that provide a current federal subsidy of 35% of the 
interest paid on the bonds to the issuer, a program of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009. 
The Series 2011 term bonds maturing December 15, 2036 are subject to mandatory redemption beginning 
December 15, 2032. 
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Note 6 – Bonds Payable (continued) 
 
The Series 2010B bonds are direct subsidy Build America Bonds. The Build America Bond program 
was enacted as part of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009. The program allows 
state and local governments to issue taxable bonds (instead of the tax-exempt bonds usually issued by 
governmental entities) for the construction of public infrastructure and to receive a direct federal 
subsidy equal to thirty-five percent of the amount of interest paid to bondholders. Bond proceeds may 
be used only for those purposes for which tax-exempt bonds may be issued. In order to receive the 
subsidy, the Authority must file the appropriate return with the Internal Revenue Service between 90 
and 45 days before the scheduled interest payment date. During the current fiscal year, the Authority 
received subsidies in the amount of $368,565. 
 
The Texas Water Development Board (“TWDB”) made a commitment to the Authority for financial 
assistance in the amount of $555,845,000 from the State Water Implementation Revenue Fund. The 
TWDB agreed to purchase water system junior lien revenue bonds from the Authority each year from 
2015 through 2022. The proceeds are to be used for the Northeast Water Purification Plant Expansion 
in the amount of $251,845,000 and Surface Water Supply Project in the amount of $304,000,000. 
During the current fiscal year, the Authority sold $11,025,000 of water system junior lien Series 2016B 
bonds to the TWDB related to this commitment. 
 
The Authority also sold $9,420,000 of water system junior lien Series 2016A bonds to the TWDB, 
funded from the Clean Water State Revolving Fund (CWSRF), and received a loan forgiveness grant of 
$1,632,000 from the TWDB from the CWSRF. 
 
The following is a summary of transactions regarding bonds payable for the year ended December 31, 
2016: 
 

Bonds payable, beginning of year 272,455,000$    

Add: Bonds issued 20,445,000       

Less:  Bonds retired (9,010,000)        

Bonds payable, end of year 283,890,000$    

Total original bonds issued 312,615,000$    
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Note 6 – Bonds Payable (continued) 
 
As of December 31, 2016, the debt service requirements on the bonds outstanding were as follows: 
 

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total

2017 9,335,000$         12,770,222$       22,105,222$       

2018 10,320,000 12,357,726 22,677,726

2019 10,725,000 11,960,204 22,685,204

2020 11,145,000 11,537,147 22,682,147

2021 11,585,000 11,102,961 22,687,961

2022-2026 65,905,000 47,647,826 113,552,826

2027-2031 81,870,000 31,869,451 113,739,451

2032-2036 76,230,000 10,566,940 86,796,940

2037-2041 4,210,000 623,788 4,833,788

2042-2046 2,565,000 238,944 2,803,944

283,890,000$     150,675,207$     434,565,207$     

 
Note 7 - Indenture of Trust  
 
The Authority entered into the Indenture of Trust (the “Indenture”) dated as of June 1, 2009, the First 
Supplemental Indenture of Trust, dated as of June 1, 2009, the Second Supplemental Indenture of 
Trust, dated as of September 1, 2010, the Third Supplemental Indenture of Trust, dated as of October 
1, 2011, the Fourth Supplemental Indenture of Trust, dated as of November 1, 2015, the Fifth 
Indenture of Trust, dated as of August 15, 2016, and the Sixth Supplemental Indenture of Trust, dated 
October 1, 2016, with Regions Bank, in its capacity as Trustee (the “Trustee”) for the purpose of 
establishing various funds and assigning and pledging the monies held by the Trustee to secure the 
payment of principal and interest on the bonds and payments of certain obligations. The Fourth 
Supplement established slightly less restrictive requirements for the junior lien bonds. The Trustee is 
responsible for allocating certain available monies of the Authority in accordance with the terms of the 
Indenture. The following are certain requirements and provisions of the Indenture: 
 

A. The Authority is required to maintain a Coverage Fund. The Authority is required to establish 
by each fiscal year end a balance of 1) for Parity Bonds, Parity Notes, and Parity Obligations, 
twenty-five percent (25%) of its maximum annual debt service requirement, and 2) for Junior 
Lien Bonds, Junior Lien Notes, and Junior Lien Obligations, twenty-five percent (25%) of their 
maximum annual debt service requirements. The maximum annual debt service requirement 
for Parity Bonds is currently $21,231,750 with 25% being $5,307,938. The maximum annual 
debt service requirement for Junior Lien Bonds is currently $1,569,340, with 25% being 
$392,335. As of December 31, 2016, the Coverage Fund cash balance is $5,700,273. 
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Note 7 - Indenture of Trust (continued) 
 

B. The Indenture also calls for the establishment of a Reserve Fund Requirement. The Reserve 
Fund Requirement is established and stipulated to be $21,231,750, which is the lesser of (i) the 
maximum annual debt service requirement or (ii) 125% of the average annual aggregate debt 
service requirement. The Reserve Fund Requirement has been satisfied by cash deposits and 
interest earnings thereon from proceeds of the Series 2009 bonds, Series 2010A bonds, Series 
2010B bonds, Series 2011 bonds, Series 2015 bonds, Series 2016A bonds, and Series 2016B 
bonds, totaling $21,231,750 as of December 31, 2016. 
 

C. The Agreement calls for the establishment of a Junior Lien Reserve Fund Requirement, which 
for Junior Lien Bonds and Junior Lien Notes, is the average annual aggregate debt service 
requirement on the Junior Lien Bonds and Junior Lien Notes, calculated as of the date of 
issuance of each series. Upon issuance of the Series 2016B Bonds, the amount of the Junior 
Lien Reserve Fund Requirement is established to be $1,220,147.  The Junior Lien Reserve 
Fund Requirement was satisfied by cash deposits and interest earnings thereon from proceeds 
of the Series 2015, Series 2016A and Series 2016B bonds, totaling $1,220,147 as of December 
31, 2016. 
 

D. The Indenture states that the Authority will provide continuing disclosure of certain financial 
information and operating data to the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board’s electronic 
municipal market access system. This information, along with the audited annual financial 
statements, is to be provided within six months after the end of each fiscal year. 
 

E. The Authority has covenanted that it will take all necessary steps to comply with the 
requirement that rebatable arbitrage earnings on the investment of the gross proceeds of the 
bonds, within the meaning of section 148 (f) of the Internal Revenue Code, be rebated to the 
federal government. The minimum requirement for determination of the rebatable amount is 
on the 5th year anniversary of each issue.  

 
Note 8 – Capital Advance and Reimbursement Procedures  
 
Prior to each new bond issue, the Authority may opt to adopt a Resolution Authorizing Capital 
Advance and Reimbursement Procedure (each a “Resolution”) pursuant to Section 8813.104 of the 
Act to provide each district or municipality within its boundaries information regarding the share of 
capital costs allocable to such district or municipality, and to provide each district or municipality the 
opportunity to fund its share of the capital costs and to provide a mechanism for the reimbursement 
credit thereof. 
 
During 2008, and pursuant to a Resolution, two districts elected to make capital contributions totaling 
$3,047,771. Contributions were received from Cinco Municipal Utility District No. 8 (“Cinco 8”) in 
February 2010 in the amount of $1,847,771. As of December 31, 2016, the Authority has not received 
contributions from the other district.  
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Note 8 – Capital Advance and Reimbursement Procedures (continued) 
 
With the addition of an issuance cost component, the total principal amount of the reimbursement 
credit to be received by Cinco 8 is $1,861,676. The reimbursement credit, which includes interest, will 
be provided in 310 equal monthly credits to be applied against all fees, rates and charges due to the 
Authority for groundwater pumpage and/or surface water purchased. The monthly reimbursement 
credit to Cinco 8 for these capital contributions is $11,115. 
 
During 2012, Cinco 8 made an additional capital contribution in the amount of $990,496 to the 
Authority to fund its share of capital costs. With the addition of an issuance cost component, the total 
principal amount of the reimbursement credit to be received by Cinco 8 is $998,123. The 
reimbursement credit, which includes interest, will be provided in 304 equal monthly credits to be 
applied against all fees, rates and charges due to the Authority for groundwater pumpage and/or 
surface water purchased. The monthly reimbursement credit to Cinco 8 for this capital contribution is 
$5,575.  
 
During the current fiscal year, the interest cost on all contribution credits was $128,657. The following 
is a schedule of the credits and interest to be given to Cinco 8 by the Authority. 
 

Year Principal Interest Total

2017 75,368$          124,910$         200,278$         

2018 79,310            120,967          200,277          

2019 83,461            116,816          200,277          

2020 87,830            112,448          200,278          

2021 92,429            107,849          200,278          

2022-2026 540,059          461,328          1,001,387        

2027-2031 697,317          304,071          1,001,388        

2032-2036 763,929          104,081          868,010          

2037 65,254            1,703              66,957            

2,484,957$      1,454,173$      3,939,130$      

Payable Within One Year 75,368$          124,910$         200,278$         

Payable After One Year 2,409,589$      1,329,263$      3,738,852$      

 
The change in the Authority’s liability for capital contributions during the year is as follows: 
 

Balance at beginning of year 2,556,577$        

Principal reductions (71,620)             

Balance at end of year 2,484,957$        
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Note 9 – Over-Conversion Credit Policy  
 
The FBSD has adopted a policy by which the FBSD issues over-conversion credits (1) achieved 
through the reuse of wastewater treatment plant effluent ("Effluent") in the amount of 1.5 gallons for 
each gallon of Effluent over-conversion, and (2) achieved through the use of any metered alternative 
water supply other than Effluent ("Non-Effluent Alternative Water Supply") in the amount of one 
gallon for each gallon of metered alternative water supply. On November 21, 2013, the Authority 
adopted an amended and restated Over-Conversion Credit Policy (the "Policy"), under which the 
Authority is willing to consider proposals for all Effluent and Non-Effluent Alternative Water Supply 
projects on a case by case basis. While the Authority reserved the right to consider any proposals that 
were not directly contemplated by the Policy, the Policy contains the following guidelines. 
 
For Effluent and Non-effluent water supply projects, the Authority shall endeavor to enter into written 
contracts ("Contracts") for the use of Effluent within its boundaries. Such Contracts may include a 
credit of up to $0.75 per 1,000 gallons for each 1,000 gallons of metered Effluent or Non-Effluent 
Alternative Water Supply used ("Credits") to be applied against pumpage fees (or any other fees) due 
the Authority. The credits may be earned for a period equal to the life of the bonds used to finance 
such projects or such other period as determined by the Authority to allow for reasonable recovery of 
some or all project costs. FBSD over-conversion credits associated with the Effluent during the life of 
the reuse system will belong to the Authority for the benefit of the Authority's groundwater reduction 
plan (the "GRP"). The Contracts will include a provision that Credits shall only be awarded to the 
extent the Authority receives the over-conversion credit from FBSD. 
 
Note 10 – Groundwater Reduction Plan Participation Agreements 
 
The Authority entered into Groundwater Reduction Plan Participation Agreements with The George 
Foundation, Kingdom Heights Homeowners Association, Inc., Champion Technologies, Inc., City of 
Arcola, Royal Valley Utilities, Inc., Chemical Lime, Ltd., Fort Bend County Fresh Water Supply 
District No. 1, Fort Bend County Municipal Utility District No. 189, Fort Bend County Municipal 
Utility District No. 131, and Orbit Systems, Inc. (the "participants"). The participants are located 
outside the Authority's boundaries. The Authority agreed to include the participants into the 
Authority's groundwater reduction plan as non-voting members and the participants agreed to pay the 
Authority the monthly water well pumpage fee. The term of each agreement is 40 years and shall 
automatically renew for successive five-year periods, unless the other party gives written notice of its 
intent to terminate. The Authority has also entered into a Groundwater Participation Agreement with 
Fort Bend Municipal Utility District No. 141 and a water well Permitting and Groundwater Reduction 
Plan Responsibility Agreement with Cinco Municipal Utility District No. 1 for one permitted water 
well located in Harris County. 
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Note 11 – Water Supply Contract with the City of Houston 
 
The Authority receives its surface water supply from the City of Houston (the “City”). The Authority 
entered into a Water Supply Contract (the “Contract”) with the City, on July 29, 2008, as subsequently 
supplemented and amended, for the purchase of capacity in certain of the City’s untreated water 
facilities (i.e, reservoirs, canals, etc.) and treated water facilities, including transmission facilities. The 
original Contract provided the Authority with 19.5 mgd capacity in both treated and untreated 
facilities.    
  
The City is responsible for the design, construction, ownership, maintenance and operation of the 
water facilities that are upstream of the point(s) of delivery to the Authority. The Authority is 
responsible for the design, construction, ownership, maintenance and operation of its water facilities 
located downstream of the point(s) of delivery.   
 
The City has executed similar contracts with West Harris County Regional Water Authority, the North 
Harris County Regional Water Authority, and the Central Harris County Regional Water Authority (the 
“Other Authorities”). 
 

Pursuant to the original Contract, the Authority paid the City $47,087,533 for treated water facilities. 
The payment consisted of $26,184,758 for plant facilities, $17,342,197 for surface water transmission 
lines, and $4,842,139 for the Southwest re-pump station, less an interest adjustment of $1,281,561.  
The Authority also paid $13,712,603 in capital costs for untreated water facilities.  
 
Luce Bayou Interbasin Transfer Project (First Supplement) 
 
In January 2009, the Authority and the City executed the First Supplement (the “First Supplement”) to 
the Water Supply Contract to finance, design, and construct the Luce Bayou Interbasin Transfer 
Project (“Luce Bayou”) that will deliver approximately 400 million gallons per day of untreated surface 
water from the Trinity River to Lake Houston in order to increase untreated surface water supplies 
available to the City, the Authority, and Other Authorities receiving surface water from the City. The 
First Supplement provides that the Coastal Water Authority (the “CWA”) will serve as the project 
manager for the purpose of designing and constructing Luce Bayou and the City will issue (or cause 
CWA to issue) bonds, notes, or other obligations to finance Luce Bayou.  
 
In 2012, the CWA received financial assistance in the amount of $28,754,000 from the State of Texas 
under the State Participation program. The First Supplement was subsequently amended in 2013 by 
the First Amendment to the First Supplement to Water Supply Contract (the “Amendment”) to 
address the impact of this obligation on the Authority’s payments to the City. 
 
Under the terms of the contract, the Authority will make the following payments to the City: 
 

 Lump Sum Payments for Project Right of Way Costs and Payment of CWA Interest Costs; 

 Payments for Existing Untreated Water Supply Facilities; and 

 Payments for Phases 1 and 2 Annual New Untreated Water Facilities. 
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Note 11 – Water Supply Contract with the City of Houston (continued) 
 
Luce Bayou Interbasin Transfer Project (First Supplement) (continued) 
 
Lump Sum Payments: As of December 31, 2016, the Authority paid the City $1,514,000 for its pro-rata 
share of the estimated right-of-way costs. The City and the Authority agreed to “true-up” the payments 
made by the Authority for the right-of-way costs such that if the Authority has underpaid, taking into 
account interest accrued, it will pay the City for the shortfall within 60 days of receiving the final 
accounting and the City agrees to refund the Authority any overpayment within 60 days of receiving 
the final accounting.  During the current fiscal year, the City refunded $95,080 related to the true-up of 
land and mitigation costs, and the Authority paid $33,824 for its share of CWA interest costs. 
 
Payments for Existing Untreated Water Facilities: The Authority seeks to increase its Untreated Water 
Facilities Demand from 19.5 mgd to 75.3 mgd, which is currently estimated to be the Authority’s 
surface water demand in the year 2040. Under the terms of the First Supplement, the Authority is 
required to make four payments to the City for Existing Untreated Water Facilities. Each payment is 
based on a formula defined in the First Supplement based on the Authority’s water demand needs in 
2025, 2030, 2035 and 2040. The payments are projected to be due on October 1, 2020, 2025, 2030, and 
2035, respectively. 
 
Payment for Phases 1 and 2 Annual New Untreated Water Facilities: Payments made to the City for 
Phase 1 and Phase 2 Annual New Untreated Water Facilities are to be used only for the purpose of 
making debt service payments on obligations issued by either the City or CWA for the construction of 
Phase 1 and Phase 2 of Luce Bayou. The formulas used to calculate payments are defined in the 
contract and take into consideration the Authority’s 75.3 mgd untreated water reservation, the total 
amount of untreated water sold by the City to all customers and the City’s annual debt service 
requirement. As previously mentioned, the CWA received financial assistance in the amount of 
$28,754,000 in the 2013 fiscal year from the State of Texas under the State Participation Program. The 
Authority’s pro-rata share of debt service payments on this obligation will be repaid over 33 years, 
beginning in 2018. 
 
Monthly Payments and Annual True-ups: The Authority is required to reimburse the City on a periodic 
basis for the expenses incurred by the City in producing and treating the water delivered to the 
Authority. The Authority makes monthly payments to the City based upon its actual usage and the 
City’s estimated costs as budgeted for the fiscal year (as a rate per 1,000 gallons). The payments consist 
of an operation and maintenance component (i.e., purchased water) and a rehabilitation capital cost 
component. The City is required to engage an independent auditor to prepare a true-up based on actual 
costs at the end of each fiscal year.  
 
During the current fiscal year, the Authority recorded an expense of $4,328,709 for purchased water, 
which includes true-up costs for fiscal year 2016 of $224,511. The Authority also reduced capital 
contributions for rehabilitation costs in the amount of $959,575. As of December 31, 2016, the 
Authority has recorded a receivable from the City in the amount of $567,279 for the 2014, 2015 and 
2016 true-ups.  
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Note 11 – Water Supply Contract with the City of Houston (continued) 
 
Northeast Water Purification Plant Expansion Project (Second Supplement) 
 
On February 25, 2015, the Authority and the City executed the Second Supplement to the Water 
Supply Contract to increase the supply of treated water to the Authority from 19.5 mgd to 88 mgd. In 
order to provide this additional capacity, the City will expand the Northeast Water Purification Plant in 
2 phases. Phase 1 will provide the Authority with an additional 11.46 mgd capacity no later than 
August 31, 2021 and Phase 2 will provide an additional 57.04 mgd of capacity no later than June 30, 
2024. 
 
The Second Supplement provides that the Authority’s estimated share of total costs is approximately 
$270 million; however, these cost assumptions are currently under review by the parties participating in 
the project and it is anticipated that, upon completion the review, the cost estimate will increase, the 
phasing may be adjusted and the delivery dates may be delayed.  These revisions could substantially 
increase the cost of the project and delay completion of the project. The City will issue cash calls as 
needed to fund the expansion. As of December 31, 2016, the Authority has paid the City $2,755,730 in 
cash calls and has deposited $4,579,510 into an escrow account with the City of Houston pursuant to 
the Second Supplement to the Water Supply Contract. The Authority also paid the City $391,461 for 
costs incurred for the project prior to December 1, 2014. 
 
Northeast Transmission Line (Third Supplement) 
 
On November 10, 2015, the Authority and the City executed the Third Supplement to the Water 
Supply Contract to clarify and agree to the terms for the cost sharing, permitting, engineering, 
surveying, construction, operation and maintenance necessary for the Segment 1 of the Northeast 
Transmission Line. The Authority’s Segment 1 reservation is 68.5 mgd. The Authority’s estimated 
share of the total costs is approximately $3,035,683. During the current year, the Authority paid to the 
City $407,653 for design costs. The City will invoice the Authority prior to engaging a design engineer 
and prior to awarding the construction contract.  
 
The Water Supply Contract and all supplements remain in effect until January 1, 2080. 
 
Note 12 – Joint Facilities Agreement 
 
On July 1, 2011, as amended March 1, 2012, the Authority and West Harris County Regional Water 
Authority (the “West Harris Authority”) entered into a Joint Facilities Agreement (the “Agreement”) 
to jointly design, acquire, construct, finance, operate and maintain certain booster pump stations and 
water transmission facilities to receive water from the City of Houston for ultimate delivery to the 
Authorities’ respective customers. 
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Note 12 – Joint Facilities Agreement (continued) 
 
Segments 0 & 1A. The Authority is responsible for the design and construction of Segments 0 & 1A. 
The West Harris Authority will pay to the Authority its pro rata share of total project costs which 
varies depending on the segment. The Authority will hold legal title to the segments for the benefit of 
both parties. Each authority will have an equitable interest to the extent of its pro rata share. The 
Authority’s independent auditor performed a final accounting of project costs to determine the 
amount due from the West Harris Authority. As of December 31, 2016, the estimated amount due is  
from the West Harris Authority is $30,286 for Segment 0, $346,891 for Segment 1A, and $800 for 
accounting fees. These amounts are included in Other Receivables on the Statement of Net Position. 
 
Bellaire Pump Station. The Authority is responsible for the purchase of land for the Bellaire Pump 
Station as well as the design and construction of Phases 1 and 2. In previous fiscal years, the West 
Harris Authority paid the Authority $364,550 for its portion of realty costs associated with the Bellaire 
Pump Station, and $6,201,866 for its share of pump station construction costs. Phase 1 of the Bellaire 
Pump Station was completed in 2014. The Authority’s independent auditor performed a final 
accounting of project costs. The estimated amount due from the West Harris Authority as of 
December 31, 2016, is  $555,704, which is included in Other Receivables on the Statement of Net Position. 
 
Phase 2 is planned to add capacity to the Bellaire Pump Station for the benefit of the West Harris 
Authority. The Authority will design and construct Phase 2 provided that the West Harris Authority 
pays all Phase 2 project costs. The Authority will invoice the West Harris Authority for 100% of Phase 
2 design and construction costs. 
 
Surface Water Supply Project. The Surface Water Supply Project consists of water mains, pump 
stations, re-pump stations, re-pressurization stations and related appurtenances needed to convey water 
from Houston’s Northeast Water Plant to the authorities. Under the Agreement, the Surface Water 
Supply Project is required to be complete no later than June 30, 2019. On January 9, 2013, the Harris 
Galveston Subsidence District (“HGSD”) delayed the 70% alternate water supply requirement that is 
required by the year 2020 under HGSD’s regulations until 2025. Accordingly, the Agreement provides 
that the June 30, 2019 date is extended to June 30, 2024. The agreement provides a total cost estimate 
of approximately $542,419,000 for the Surface Water Supply Project and provides the West Harris 
Authority will update such estimate annually. The West Harris Authority will own and operate the 
Surface Water Supply Project for the benefit of both parties. Each authority will have an equitable 
interest to the extent of its pro-rata share. 
 
The West Harris Authority will invoice the Authority for estimated engineering costs based on its 
estimated pro-rata share of 70%. No earlier than 12 months after the 70% invoice is sent, the 
Authority will be billed 100% of construction costs. All deposits are to be deposited into a separate 
bank account and the bookkeeper will provide monthly reports of the application of each authority’s 
payment for project costs and of related interest earnings. The West Harris Authority will own and 
operate the Surface Water Supply Project, with each party having an equitable share to the extent of its 
pro-rata share in each segment. The Authority has paid $7,689,145 to the West Authority for its 
portion of the estimated Surface Water Supply Project realty costs. 
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Note 12 – Joint Facilities Agreement (continued) 
 
Water Infrastructure Fund Bonds. The West Harris Authority is authorized to issue bonds financed 
through the Water Infrastructure Fund (WIF) of the Texas Water Development Board to fund a 
portion of the Surface Water Supply Project project costs. Debt service requirements for these bonds 
will be shared between the West Harris Authority and the Authority on a pro-rata basis. The Authority 
is required to make two payments to the West Harris Authority each year equal to the Authority’s pro-
rata share of the annual debt service on the bonds.  
 
In 2012, the West Harris Authority issued its $41,965,000 Series 2012 Water System Revenue Bonds 
related to this Agreement. The Authority’s pro-rata share of these bonds is $18,842,285, which was 
recorded on the Statement of Net Position. During the current year, the Authority paid the West Harris 
Authority $1,094,152 for its pro-rata share of the annual debt service payment, which consists of a 
principal reduction of $936,165 and an interest component of $157,987. As of December 31, 2016, the 
outstanding balance of the liability is $14,738,425.    
 
As of December 31, 2016, the debt service requirements on the WIF obligation outstanding were as 
follows: 
 

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total

2017 936,165$         157,987$       1,094,152$        

2018 936,165           157,987         1,094,152          

2019 936,165           156,677         1,092,842          

2020 940,655           153,868         1,094,523          

2021 945,145           149,071         1,094,216          

2022-2026 4,853,690        616,019         5,469,709          

2027-2031 5,190,440        276,194         5,466,634          

14,738,425$    1,667,803$    16,406,228$      

 
Operation of Joint Facilities. The responsible authority, which means the Authority for Segment 0, 
Segment 1A, and the Bellaire Pump Station and the West Harris Authority for the Surface Water 
Supply Project, will maintain, repair and operate the joint facilities for which it is responsible. Each 
party will pay their respective shares of operation and maintenance expenses which will be allocated 
based on the authorities’ pro-rata share of the applicable joint facility. After the facilities go into 
service, each authority will pay a fraction of the monthly operation and maintenance expenses based on 
the amount of water received by each Authority from such facility. Each authority is required to 
establish a separate joint facilities account. All funds received and any expenses related to the joint 
facilities shall be accounted for through this account. Each month, the responsible authority will 
provide a bill for its respective share of the actual expenses made from the joint facilities account. 
Additionally, an initial deposit of one-fourth of the annual budget prepared for the joint facilities 
account will be billed. The authorities will establish a capital replacement account for each joint facility, 
the amount and timing of which will be mutually agreed upon. 
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Note 12 – Joint Facilities Agreement (continued) 
 
The West Harris Authority established the required joint facilities account for costs associated with the 
Surface Water Supply Project and associated right of way. Additionally, the Authority paid $8,585 to 
the West Harris Authority for its portion of the operating reserve and $125,295 for its share of right of 
way maintenance expenses. 
 
Note 13 – Water Trunkline Agreements  
 
During 2013, the Authority and Fort Bend County Municipal Utility District No. 58 (“MUD 58”) and 
Fort Bend County Municipal Utility District No. 142 (“MUD 142”) entered into Water Trunkline 
Financing Agreements (the “Agreements”). In connection with the Agreements, the two districts 
requested that the Authority supply surface water to their water plants prior to the date originally 
planned by the Authority. In consideration for the early delivery of surface water, each district agreed 
to finance a portion of the costs to construct the required water trunkline systems. MUD 58 has paid 
the Authority a total of $342,651 and MUD 142 has paid the Authority a total of $520,137.  
 
On March 23, 2016, the Authority, Fort Bend Improvement District No. 24 (“ID 24”) and ID 24’s 
developer, Sage Fulshear, West LLC., entered into a Water Trunkline Financing Agreement pursuant 
to which the Authority agreed to supply surface water to serve ID 24’s water plant prior to the date 
originally planned by the Authority. Under the terms of the agreement, the Authority agreed to 
construct a water line that will deliver a minimum of 200,000 gallons per day to ID 24.  In 
consideration for the early delivery, ID 24 agreed to finance a portion of the costs to construct the 
water trunkline system.    
 
Note 14 – Risk Management 
 
The Authority is exposed to various risks related to: theft of, damage to and destruction of assets; 
errors and omissions; and natural disasters.  The Authority’s risk management program encompasses 
various means of protecting the Authority against loss by obtaining property, casualty and liability 
coverage through commercial insurance carriers. There have been no significant reductions in 
insurance coverage from the prior year. Settlement amounts have not exceeded insurance coverage 
from the current year or the two prior years.  
 
Note 15 - Unused Letter of Credit 
 
The Authority was required to issue an Irrevocable Standby Letter of Credit in the amount of 
$1,000,000 for the benefit of CenterPoint Energy Houston Electric, LLC (“CenterPoint”) to satisfy a 
security deposit requirement associated with a right of entry agreement for construction on property 
owned by CenterPoint. During the current fiscal year, the Letter of Credit was amended to extend the 
expiration date to June 4, 2017. 
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Note 16 – Subsequent Event 
 
On May 3, 2017, the Authority approved a resolution authorizing a short term borrowing program in 
order to address timing differences between the Authority’s obligations to the City (see Note 11) and 
financing approved by the TWDB (see Note 6) and planned open market bond financing. This 
program permits the Authority to enter into one or more note purchase agreements, initially with 
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. (“JPMorgan”), under which it can issue variable rate, short term notes in 
the aggregate amount not to exceed $150,000,000. The notes are secured by a lien on future bond 
proceeds and other available revenues, which are specifically defined as gross revenues less operating 
expenses less amounts needed to pay principal and interest on existing debt and to meet annual 
Reserve Fund and Coverage Fund requirements. The notes will be issued in increments of $100,000 
and must be issued for less than 364 days. The interest rate on the notes is calculated as 70% of 
LIBOR plus an additional percentage based on the Authority’s underlying credit rating.  JPMorgan’s 
initial commitment to participate in the note purchase program is for a two year term, which may be 
extended. 
 
When it enters into a note purchase agreement, the Authority will be required to pay a facility fee equal 
to 0.35%.  Once a note is issued pursuant to a note purchase agreement, the drawn amount will be 
charged interest and the undrawn amount will be charged the facility fee.  Interest on notes will be due 
monthly, while principal payments are due on maturity from bond proceeds or proceeds from a 
replacement note.  As of the date of this audit, the Authority has not entered into any note purchase 
agreements. 
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Shayna Johnson

From: Colette Garcia <colette@mcgrath-co.com>

Sent: Tuesday, April 10, 2018 9:05 AM

To: Pam Lightbody

Subject: RE: NFBWA Financial Statement Audit

There wasn’t a management letter due to McCall’s pre-audit.  

 

From: Pam Lightbody [mailto:pelightbody@avantaserv.com]  

Sent: Tuesday, April 10, 2018 9:03 AM 

To: Colette Garcia <colette@mcgrath-co.com> 

Subject: RE: NFBWA Financial Statement Audit 

Importance: High 

 

The TWDB SWIFT application requires us to submit several items including the Management Letter for FYE 12/31/16. 

I don’t believe I received a copy.  Could you please forward ASAP? 

Thanks 

 

Pam 

 

From: Colette Garcia [mailto:colette@mcgrath-co.com]  
Sent: Tuesday, May 16, 2017 6:37 PM 

To: Justine Cherne (jcherne@abhr.com) 
Cc: Pam Lightbody; Pamela Logsdon; Terrell Palmer (tpalmer@firstsw.com); Christina Miller ; David Oliver; Mark McGrath 

Subject: NFBWA Financial Statement Audit 

 

Attached is a PDF of the final audited financial statements for the Authority. Please note that we do not file the 

Authority’s audit with TCEQ.  Hard copies of the report will be mailed in a couple of weeks.  

 

Thanks, 

 

Colette Garcia, CPA 

McGrath & Co., PLLC 

2500 Tanglewilde, Suite 340 

Houston, Texas 77063 

713.493.2602 

 

SJohnson
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Attachment C49.
Oustanding Debt 

North Fort Bend Water Authority

Senior Lien Bonds
Series 2009 Series 2010A Series 2010B Series 2011

Year Ending Principal Coupon Interest Total Principal Coupon Interest Total Principal Coupon Interest Total Principal Coupon Interest Total
12/15/2018 4,610,000      4.25% 6,007,226      10,617,226    2,185,000     3.00% 1,292,850    3,477,850    -               0.00% 1,130,481   1,130,481   2,515,000       5.25% 3,488,638       6,003,638       
12/15/2019 4,805,000      4.40% 5,811,301      10,616,301    2,250,000     3.00% 1,227,300    3,477,300    -               0.00% 1,130,481   1,130,481   2,650,000       5.25% 3,356,600       6,006,600       
12/15/2020 5,015,000      4.38% 5,599,881      10,614,881    2,315,000     3.00% 1,159,800    3,474,800    -               0.00% 1,130,481   1,130,481   2,790,000       5.00% 3,217,475       6,007,475       
12/15/2021 5,235,000      5.00% 5,380,475      10,615,475    2,385,000     3.13% 1,090,350    3,475,350    -               0.00% 1,130,481   1,130,481   2,925,000       5.00% 3,077,975       6,002,975       
12/15/2022 5,500,000      5.00% 5,118,725      10,618,725    2,460,000     3.25% 1,015,819    3,475,819    -               0.00% 1,130,481   1,130,481   3,075,000       4.50% 2,931,725       6,006,725       
12/15/2023 5,775,000      5.00% 4,843,725      10,618,725    2,540,000     5.00% 935,869        3,475,869    -               0.00% 1,130,481   1,130,481   3,210,000       4.50% 2,793,350       6,003,350       
12/15/2024 6,060,000      5.00% 4,554,975      10,614,975    2,665,000     3.63% 808,869        3,473,869    -               0.00% 1,130,481   1,130,481   3,355,000       4.50% 2,648,900       6,003,900       
12/15/2025 6,365,000      5.25% 4,251,975      10,616,975    2,765,000     3.75% 712,263        3,477,263    -               0.00% 1,130,481   1,130,481   3,505,000       4.00% 2,497,925       6,002,925       
12/15/2026 6,700,000      5.25% 3,917,813      10,617,813    2,865,000     3.75% 608,575        3,473,575    -               0.00% 1,130,481   1,130,481   3,650,000       4.13% 2,357,725       6,007,725       
12/15/2027 7,050,000      5.25% 3,566,063      10,616,063    2,975,000     3.75% 501,138        3,476,138    -               0.00% 1,130,481   1,130,481   3,800,000       4.25% 2,207,163       6,007,163       
12/15/2028 7,420,000      5.25% 3,195,938      10,615,938    3,085,000     4.00% 389,575        3,474,575    -               0.00% 1,130,481   1,130,481   3,960,000       4.25% 2,045,663       6,005,663       
12/15/2029 7,810,000      5.25% 2,806,388      10,616,388    3,210,000     4.00% 266,175        3,476,175    -               0.00% 1,130,481   1,130,481   4,130,000       4.38% 1,877,363       6,007,363       
12/15/2030 8,220,000      5.25% 2,396,363      10,616,363    3,340,000     4.13% 137,775        3,477,775    -               0.00% 1,130,481   1,130,481   4,310,000       4.50% 1,696,675       6,006,675       
12/15/2031 8,650,000      5.25% 1,964,813      10,614,813    3,475,000   6.02% 1,130,481   4,605,481   4,505,000       4.50% 1,502,725       6,007,725       
12/15/2032 9,105,000      5.25% 1,510,688      10,615,688    3,610,000   6.02% 921,356      4,531,356   4,705,000       5.00% 1,300,000       6,005,000       
12/15/2033 9,585,000      5.25% 1,032,675      10,617,675    3,750,000   6.02% 704,106      4,454,106   4,940,000       5.00% 1,064,750       6,004,750       
12/15/2034 10,085,000    5.25% 529,463         10,614,463    3,900,000   6.02% 478,431      4,378,431   5,190,000       5.00% 817,750           6,007,750       

4,050,000   6.02% 243,729      4,293,729   5,445,000       5.00% 558,250           6,003,250       
5,720,000       5.00% 286,000           6,006,000       

117,990,000 62,488,484    180,478,484 35,040,000   10,146,356  45,186,356  18,785,000 18,174,360 36,959,360 74,380,000     39,726,650     114,106,650   

Post Oak Municipal Advisors LLC
5/2/2018
8:49 AM



Attachment C49.
Oustanding Debt 

North Fort Bend Water Authority

Junior Lien Bonds
Series 2015 Series 2016A Series 2016B Series 2017

Year Ending Principal Coupon Interest Total Principal Coupon Interest Total Principal Coupon Interest Total Principal Coupon Interest Total
12/15/2018 385,000         0.56% 136,200         521,200         340,000        0.00% 57,914          397,914        285,000      0.65% 244,417      529,417      -                   0.00% 2,853,469       2,853,469       
12/15/2019 390,000         0.72% 134,044         524,044         340,000        0.00% 57,914          397,914        290,000      0.76% 242,564      532,564      -                   0.00% 2,542,695       2,542,695       
12/15/2020 390,000         0.87% 131,236         521,236         345,000        0.00% 57,914          402,914        290,000      0.84% 240,360      530,360      -                   0.00% 2,542,695       2,542,695       
12/15/2021 395,000         1.01% 127,843         522,843         350,000        0.00% 57,914          407,914        295,000      0.91% 237,924      532,924      -                   0.00% 2,542,695       2,542,695       
12/15/2022 400,000         1.16% 123,853         523,853         355,000        0.00% 57,914          412,914        295,000      0.99% 235,240      530,240      -                   0.00% 2,542,695       2,542,695       
12/15/2023 405,000         1.30% 119,213         524,213         360,000        0.03% 57,914          417,914        300,000      1.09% 232,319      532,319      -                   0.00% 2,542,695       2,542,695       
12/15/2024 415,000         1.39% 113,948         528,948         365,000        0.20% 57,806          422,806        305,000      1.20% 229,049      534,049      -                   0.00% 2,542,695       2,542,695       
12/15/2025 420,000         1.47% 108,180         528,180         370,000        0.32% 57,076          427,076        310,000      1.29% 225,389      535,389      -                   0.00% 2,542,695       2,542,695       
12/15/2026 425,000         1.64% 102,006         527,006         375,000        0.42% 55,892          430,892        315,000      1.37% 221,390      536,390      -                   0.00% 2,542,695       2,542,695       
12/15/2027 435,000         1.81% 95,036           530,036         380,000        0.55% 54,317          434,317        320,000      1.57% 217,075      537,075      -                   0.00% 2,542,695       2,542,695       
12/15/2028 445,000         1.96% 87,162           532,162         385,000        0.64% 52,227          437,227        330,000      1.69% 212,051      542,051      3,250,000       1.92% 2,542,695       5,792,695       
12/15/2029 455,000         2.10% 78,440           533,440         395,000        0.69% 49,763          444,763        335,000      2.01% 206,474      541,474      3,350,000       2.14% 2,480,295       5,830,295       
12/15/2030 465,000         2.20% 68,885           533,885         405,000        0.74% 47,038          452,038        340,000      2.18% 199,740      539,740      3,450,000       2.33% 2,408,605       5,858,605       
12/15/2031 475,000         2.28% 58,655           533,655         415,000        0.79% 44,041          459,041        350,000      2.29% 192,328      542,328      3,555,000       2.52% 2,328,220       5,883,220       
12/15/2032 485,000         2.32% 47,825           532,825         425,000        0.84% 40,762          465,762        360,000      2.33% 184,313      544,313      3,660,000       2.63% 2,238,634       5,898,634       
12/15/2033 495,000         2.37% 36,573           531,573         435,000        0.89% 37,192          472,192        370,000      2.39% 175,925      545,925      3,770,000       2.71% 2,142,376       5,912,376       
12/15/2034 510,000         2.39% 24,842           534,842         445,000        0.93% 33,321          478,321        380,000      2.52% 167,082      547,082      3,880,000       2.78% 2,040,209       5,920,209       
12/15/2035 525,000         2.41% 12,653           537,653         455,000        0.96% 29,182          484,182        390,000      2.50% 157,506      547,506      4,000,000       2.83% 1,932,345       5,932,345       
12/15/2036 470,000        0.98% 24,814          494,814        400,000      2.54% 147,756      547,756      4,120,000       2.88% 1,819,145       5,939,145       
12/15/2037 480,000        0.99% 20,208          500,208        415,000      2.71% 137,596      552,596      4,240,000       2.91% 1,700,489       5,940,489       
12/15/2038 495,000        1.00% 15,456          510,456        425,000      2.71% 126,350      551,350      4,370,000       2.97% 1,577,105       5,947,105       
12/15/2039 510,000        1.01% 10,506          520,506        440,000      2.71% 114,832      554,832      4,500,000       3.10% 1,447,316       5,947,316       
12/15/2040 525,000        1.02% 5,355            530,355        455,000      2.71% 102,908      557,908      4,635,000       3.12% 1,307,816       5,942,816       
12/15/2041 465,000      2.71% 90,578         555,578      4,775,000       3.12% 1,163,204       5,938,204       
12/15/2042 480,000      3.04% 77,976         557,976      4,915,000       3.13% 1,014,224       5,929,224       
12/15/2043 495,000      3.04% 63,384         558,384      5,065,000       3.21% 860,385           5,925,385       
12/15/2044 515,000      3.04% 48,336         563,336      5,215,000       3.21% 697,798           5,912,798       
12/15/2045 530,000      3.04% 32,680         562,680      5,375,000       3.20% 530,397           5,905,397       
12/15/2046 545,000      3.04% 16,568         561,568      5,535,000       3.19% 358,397           5,893,397       
12/15/2047 5,700,000       3.19% 181,830           5,881,830       

7,915,000      1,606,590      9,521,590      9,420,000     982,439        10,402,439  11,025,000 4,780,107   15,805,107 87,360,000     56,509,207     143,869,207   

Post Oak Municipal Advisors LLC
5/2/2018
8:49 AM



Attachment C49.
Oustanding Debt 

North Fort Bend Water Authority

Senior Lien Bonds

Series
Principal 
Amount Current Holders

W Sys Rev Bds Ser 2011 74,380,000       Open Market
W Sys Rev Bds Ser 2010A 35,040,000       Open Market
W Sys Rev Bds Ser 2010B (Direct Subsidy Build America Bonds) 18,785,000       Open Market
W Sys Rev Bds Ser 2009 117,990,000    Open Market

246,195,000    

Junior Lien Bonds

Series
Principal 
Amount Current Holders

W Sys Jr Lien Rev Bds Ser 2017 87,360,000       TWDB
W Sys Jr Lien Rev Bds Ser 2016B 11,025,000       TWDB
W Sys Jr Lien Rev Bds Ser 2016A 9,420,000         TWDB
W System Jr Lien Rev Bds Ser 2015 7,915,000         TWDB

115,720,000    

Post Oak Municipal Advisors LLC
5/2/2018
8:49 AM
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JOINT FACILITIES AGREEMENT FOR 
SEGMENTS 0 & lA, BELLAIRE PUMP STATION, 

AND SECOND SOURCEWATERLINF/PUMP STATIONS 

THIS JOINT FACILITIES AGREEMENT FOR SEGMENTS 0 & lA, BELLAIRE PUMP 
STATION, AND SECOND SOURCE WATERLINF/PUMP STATIONS ("Agreement") is 
made as of July 1, 2011, ("Effective Date") between the WEST HARRIS COUNTY REGIONAL 
WATER AUTHORITY ("West Authority"), a political subdivision of the State of Texas, a 
governmental agency, and a body politic and corporate, created under Article 16, Section 59, of 
the Texas Constitution by House Bill 1842 of the 77th Legislature, Regular Session (2001), as 
amended, and the NORTH FORT BEND WATER AUTHORITY ("Fort Bend Authority"), a 
political subdivision of the State of Texas, a governmental agency, and a body politic and 
corporate, created under Article 16, Section 59, of the Texas Constitution by Senate Bill 1798 of 
the 79th Legislature, Regular Session (2005), as amended. The West Authority and the Fort 
Bend Authority are individually referred to as a "Party" or "Authority" and collectively 
referred to as the "Parties" or the "Authorities." 

RECITALS 

The City of Houston, Texas ("Houston"), and the West Authority entered into a Water 
Supply Contract effective April 8, 2003, as amended by the First Supplement to Water Supply 
Contract effective January 30, 2009, and any future amendments (the "West Contract''). 

Houston and the Fort Bend Authority entered into a Water Supply Contract effective 
July 29, 2008, as amended by the First Supplement to Water Supply Contract effective January 
30, 2009, and any future amendments (the "Fort Bend Contract"). The West Contract and the 
Fort Bend Contract are individually referred to as a "Contract" and collectively referred to as 
the "Contracts." 

Pursuant to the Fort Bend Contract, the Fort Bend Authority intends to receive 27 MGD 
(defined below) of Water (defined below) from Houston from one or more delivery points in 
the Mission Bend area of Harris County for delivery to its customers. In addition, the Fort Bend 
Authority intends to receive an additional 59 MGD of Water from Houston at Houston's 
Northeast Water Plant (defined below) and cause the transportation of said 59 MGD to the Fort 
Bend Authority. 

Pursuant to the West Contract, and in addition to other water received by the West 
Authority under the West Contract, the West Authority intends to receive 87 MGD of Water 
from Houston at Houston's Northeast Water Plant and cause the transportation of said 87 MGD 
to the West Authority. The West Authority intends to deliver 13.3 MGD out of said 87 MGD to 
the Mission Bend area of Harris County for delivery to its customers. 

Subject to the terms of this Agreement, the Boards of Directors of the Authorities have 
found and determined that jointly designing, acquiring, constructing, financing, operating, and 
maintaining certain booster pump station and water transmission facilities in the Mission Bend 
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area to receive Water from Houston for ultimate delivery to the Authorities' respective 
customers is in the best interests of the Authorities and will result in significant cost savings. 

Subject to the terms of this Agreement, the Boards of Directors of the Authorities have 
found and determined that jointly designing, acquiring, constructing, financing, operating, and 
maintaining one or more water mains, pump stations, re-pump stations, re-pressurization 
stations, and related appurtenances to receive and deliver Water from Houston's Northeast 
Water Plant to one or more delivery points in West Harris County for ultimate delivery to the 
Authorities' respective customers is in the best interests of the Authorities and will result in 
significant cost savings. 

The West Authority may also require an interim supply of Water in addition to its Water 
supply under the West Contract. The Fort Bend Authority has determined that, initially, it will 
have available, surplus Wate~ capacity under the Fort Bend Contract and that it is willing to 
lease such capacity, and certain capacity in the Upstream Portion of Segment 0 (defined below), 
for an interim period to the West Authority, on the terms and conditions established in this 
Agreement. 

The Authorities are currently in discussions with Houston and the North Harris County 
Regional Water Authority ("NHCRWA") regarding· a potential joint water main ("Potential 
Shared Line") involving the Authorities, Houston, and the NHCRWA that could deliver Water 
from Houston's Northeast Water Plant to a take-point for the Authorities in the general area of 
the intersection of Ella Boulevard and West Gulf Bank Road. If the Authorities, Houston, and 
NHCRWA (at the option and discretion of each of such entity) collectively enter into a written 
cost-sharing agreement regarding their joint funding and construction of the Potential Shared 
Line, then the Authorities intend that the routing of the Second Source Waterline that is 
reflected in Exhibit A would be modified (and the length of the waterline decreased) as allowed 
by the definition of "Second Source Waterline" below. 

The Authorities have each independently found and determined and hereby declare and 
represent that each is authorized to enter into this Agreement; that the terms, conditions and 
provisions of this Agreement are mutually agreeable, fair, and advantageous; that enterfug into 
this Agreement is in its best interests; and that each desires to enter into this Agreement for the 
purposes stated here and to provide specific terms and conditions for the design, acquisition, 
construction, financing, ownership, operation, and maintenance of the improvements described 
in this Agreement and for the interim lease of Water capacity from the Fort Bend Authority to 
the West Authority. 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the premises and the mutual covenants 
and agreements contained in this Agreement, the West Authority and the Fort Bend Authority 
agree as follows: 
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AGREEMENT 

Article I 
Recitals, Definitions, and Exhibits 

SectiQn 1.1. Recitals Confirmed. The matters set out above are declared true and 
correct and are hereby incorporated as part of this Agreement. 

Section 1.2. Definitions and Exhibits. In addition to the terms defined elsewhere in 
this Agreement, and unless the context requires otherwise, the following terms and phrases 
used in this Agreement shall have meanings as follows: 

Annual Debt Service Payment is defined in Section 10.1. 

Annual Letter is defined in Section 10.1. 

Annual Outstanding Debt Service is defined in Section 10.1. 

Applicable Bond Interest Rate means the yield of the applicable Authority bond 
issue(s), as computed by the applicable Authority's financial advisor in accordance with Section 
148 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. 

Bellaire Pump Station means the ground storage tanks, booster pumps, and all related 
appurtenances located now or in the future at the Bellaire Pump Station Site (as defined below) 
intended for the storage, pressurization, transportation, and delivery of 40.3 MGD of Water. 
The Bellaire Pump Station includes Bellaire Pump Station, Phase 1, and Bellaire Pump Station, 
Phase 2 (as defined below). 

Bellaire Pump Station, Phase 1 means the initial facilities necessary to store, pressurize, 
transport, and deliver 29.3 MGD via the Bellaire Pump Station. 

Bellaire Pump Station, Phase 1 Project Costs means the Realty Costs, Engineering 
Costs, and Construction Costs of the Bellaire Pump Station, Phase 1. 

Bellaire Pump Station, Phase 2 means the additional facilities necessary to store, 
pressurize, transport, and deliver an additional 11 MGD for the West Authority via the Bellaire 
Pump Station. 

Bellaire Pump Station, Phase 2 Project Costs means the Realty Costs, Engineering 
Costs, and Construction Costs of the Bellaire Pump Station, Phase 2. 

Bellaire Pump Station Site means the approximate 13.21 acres of land owned by the 
Fort Bend Authority pursuant to those 2 General Warranty Deeds recorded under Harris 
County Clerk's File No. 20080600956 and Harris County Clerk's File No. 20110017534 in the 
Official Public Records of Harris County, Texas. 

Capacity Adjustment Notice is defined in Section 4.1. 
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Certificate of Acceptance means a certificate signed by the applicable Authority 
accepting a Joint Facility. 

Certificate of Substantial Completion means the engineer's written certificate of 
substantial completion in substantial compliance with approved plans, as amended by 
approved change orders, for a particular Joint Facility. 

Committee means the Joint Facilities Committee described in Article VI below. 

Cook Road Take Point means the output flanges of the tap on Houston's 48-inch water 
line located along Cook Road that serves as a point of delivery for the Fort Bend Authority 
under the Fort Bend Contract, as shown on Exhibit B. 

Construction Costs means costs associated with the construction of a Joint Facility 
(including, but not limited to, costs of construction, acquisition, and installation, and costs of 
advertising), related legal and administrative costs, and all other related Authority costs and 
expenses, together with an amount for contingencies of estimated Construction Costs of not 
more than ten percent (10%) of the foregoing, provided that no contingency amount shall be 
included in "Construction Costs" once the Joint Facility is complete. The term "Construction 
Costs" does not include Realty Costs of a Joint Facility or Engineering Costs. 

Construction Index means the Engineering News Record Construction Cost Index 
(Dallas), as issued by the Engineering News Record, or such other index as may be mutually 
agreed upon in writing by the Authorities. 

Consultant/Contractor is defined in Section 5.15. 

Contract(s) is defined in the Recitals of this Agreement. 

Days means calendar days. 

Distribution System means the water line transmission system constructed, or to be 
constructed or acquired, by an Authority to receive water from the Joint Facilities for delivery to 
its customers, including, but not limited to, water lines, meters, vaults, casings, air gap or other 
backflow prevention controls, and valves and flow control devices. 

Downstream Portion of Segment 0 means that portion of Segment 0 that is located 
downstream of the Bellaire Pump Station facilities. 

Engineering Costs means all costs associated with the design of a Joint Facility, 
including, but not limited to, costs of preparation and approval of plans and specifications, 
construction management, and inspection of the Joint Facility; costs to apply for and secure all 
permits and approvals required for construction of the Joint Facility; surveying and staking 
costs; environmental consultant costs; testing and measurement costs; and all other costs and 
expenses of a similar nature reasonably required for engineering services in the design and 
construction of a Joint Facility. 

311111_13 4 



Estimated O&M Rate shall have the same meaning given in the Fort Bend Contract. 

First Series of WIF Bonds means the bonds, if any, issued by the West Authority to the 
TWDB by December 31, 2012, pursuant to the TWDB's Water Infrastructure Fund ("WIF") 
program. 

Fort Bend Authority Engineer means Brown & Gay Engineers, Inc., or any other 
engineering and/ or surveying firm(s) that may be designated in writing from time to time by 
the Fort Bend Authority. 

Fort Bend Authority Official means President of the Fort Bend Authority's Board of 
Directors (or different Fort Bend Authority director designated in writing by the Fort Bend 
Authority). 

Fort Bend Contract is defined in the Recitals, above. 

Fort Bend Contract Facilities means: (i) Houston's East Water Plant, and (ii) the 
Houston transmission facilities in which the Fort Bend Authority has heretofore acquired Water 
capacity pursuant to the Fort Bend Contract, which transmission facilities deliver Water from 
Houston's East Water Plant to the Cook Road Take Point. 

Fort Bend Contract Transmission Facilities means the Houston transmission facilities in 
which the Fort Bend Authority has heretofore acquired Water capacity pursuant to the Fort 
Bend Contract, which transmission facilities deliver Water from Houston's East Water Plant to 
the Cook Road Take Point. 

Global Second Source Waterline Consultant Cost(s) means, as reasonably determined 
by the West Authority, engineering (except for final design engineering), surveying, legal, 
environmental consultant, or other consultant costs related to or benefitting: (i) more than one 
Second Source Waterline Segment, (ii) overall project planning or administration for the Second 
Source Waterline, (iii) overall Realty Interest acquisition for the Second Source Waterline, or (iv) 
overall project design or construction for the Second Source Waterline. Media relations and 
public communications consultant costs (including website costs specific to the Second Source 
Waterline), whether or not covered by any of "(i)" through "(iv)" of the preceding sentence, 
shall be included in the definition of Global Second Source Waterline Consultant Costs. 

GRP means: (i) with respect to the West Authority, the West Authority's groundwater 
reduction plan approved by the HGSD, as amended from time to time; and (ii) with respect to 
the Fort Bend Authority, the Fort Bend Authority's groundwater reduction plan approved by 
the Fort Bend Subsidence District, as amended from time to time. 

HGSD means the Harris Galveston Subsidence District. 

HGSD Extension Period means the period of time, if any, that the HGSD delays the 
next required increase of alternate water supply under its regulations, so long as the HGSD 
implements such delay prior to March 1, 2013. For example, if the HGSD: (i) prior to March 1, 
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2013, modifies its regulations such that the current 70% alternate water supply requirement for 
the year 2020 is moved to 2025 (instead of 2020), then the HGSD Extension Period shall be five 
(5) years; (ii) prior to March 1, 2013, modifies its regulations such that the current 70% alternate 
water supply requirement for 2020 is moved to 2024 (instead of 2020), then the HGSD Extension 
Period shall be four (4) years; (iii) prior to March 1, 2013, modifies its regulations such that the 
current 70% alternate water supply requirement for 2020 is moved to 2025 (instead of 2020) and 
is reduced from 70% to 60% (or increased from 70% to 75%), then the HGSD Extension Period 
shall be five (5) years; or (iv) on or after March 1, 2013, modifies its regulations such that the 
current 70% alternate water supply requirement for 2020 is moved to 2026 (instead of 2020), 
then the HGSD Extension Period shall be zero (0) years because the HGSD did not implement 
the delay prior to March 1, 2013. 

Houston is defined in the Recitals, above. 

Houston's East Water Plant means Houston's water purification plant located at 2300 
Federal Road, Houston, Texas, 77015. 

Houston's Northeast Water Plant means Houston's water purification plant located at 
12121 North Beltway 8 East, Humble, Texas, 77396. 

Incurred Bellaire Pump Station Realty Costs means all Realty Costs for the Bellaire 
Pump Station Site paid by the Fort Bend· Authority, which costs are set forth in the attached 
Exhibit C. 

Incurred Second Source Waterline Realty Costs means all Realty Costs for the Second 
Source Waterline paid by the West Authority prior to the Effective Date. Estimates of the 
Incurred Second Source Waterline Realty Costs and the incurred Operation and Maintenance 
Expenses related to Second Source Waterline Realty Interests are shown in Exhibit F, which 
estimates total $9,192,000. 

110 Meter Station, as used in Exhibit D, means the Joint Facilities Meter(s) that will be 
installed at the general location shown as Q3 on Exhibit D, which shall measure Water that is 
received at such location into the Fort Bend Authority's Distribution System. 

Joint Facility(ies) means one or more of Segment 0, Segment 1A, the Bellaire Pump 
Station, and the Second Source Waterline, plus the Realty Interests related to any of same. 

Joint Facilities Account is defined in Section 5.6. 

Joint Facility Meter(s) means the meter(s), meter vault(s), and other measuring 
equipment installed by a Responsible Authority pursuant to Section 5.4. 

Lease is defined in Section 7.3. 

Lease Rate means the rate per 1,000 gallons that the Fort Bend Authority will charge the 
West Authority for the Water, if any, leased by the West Authority pursuant to Article VII. 
Such rate shall be calculated by adding $0.0193 to the then-applicable Estimated O&M Rate. For 
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example, if the then-applicable Estimated O&M Rate is $0.75, the Lease Rate will'be $0.7693 per 
1,000 gallons. 

MGD means million gallons per day of Water. 

Major Rehabilitation means a project required for a Joint Facility to function and 
provide service in accordance with the standard described in the first sentence of Section 5.1 
and estimated by the Responsible Authority to cost in excess of $500,000. Beginning in the year 
2012, such $500,000 figure shall be adjusted annually by the increase or decrease in the 
Construction Index. 

Mission Bend Meter Station, as used in Exhibit D, means the Joint Facilities Meter(s) 
that will be installed at the general location shown as Q6 on Exhibit D, which shall measure 
Water that is received at such location into the West Authority's Distribution System. 

Monthly Joint Facilities Account Report is defined in Section 5.6. 

O&M Expenses shall have the same meaning given in the Contracts. 

Operation and Maintenance Expense(s) means all costs and expenses reasonably 
incurred in or allocable to the operation and maintenance of a Joint Facility, including, without 
limitation, contractual payments for the services of a utility operator and/ or an independent 
contractor performing maintenance or repair functions on the Joint Facilities; supervision; 
chemicals; the purchase and carrying of stores; power; material and supplies; permit fees and 
costs, including costs of renewals of the permits; legal fees; auditing; engineering fees; testing; 
mowing; right-of-way and pipeline maintenance; insurance; repairs and replacements of 
damaged or worn-out parts; all other items and expenses of a like nature which may be 
reasonably required for the efficient maintenance. and operation of the Joint Facilities; and 
improvements, betterments, and modifications to keep the Joint Facilities in proper operation to 
render adequate services and to comply fully with all Regulatory Requirements. The term 
"Operation and Maintenance Expenses" shall also include payments for O&M Expenses due to 
Houston for the Water received from Houston into the Second Source Waterline, as further 
discussed in Section 8.4. The term "Operation and Maintenance Expenses" does not include 
Major Rehabilitations. 

Participant Authority means the West Authority for Segment 0, Segment 1A, and the 
Bellaire Pump Station and means the Fort Bend Authority for the Second Source Waterline. 

Points of Delivery means the point(s) of delivery along the Joint Facilities where the 
output flange(s) of the tap(s) on the Joint Facilities connect to the Participant Authority's 
Distribution System, as generally shown on Exhibit A and Exhibit B. The Points of Delivery 
may be modified (or additional Points of Deliver may be added) by a written instrument signed 
by the West Authority Engineer, the West Authority Official, the Fort Bend Authority Engineer, 
and the Fort Bend Authority Official. 

Points of Measurement means the location of the Joint Facility Meters installed 
pursuant to Section 5.4. 
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Potential Shared Line is defined in the Recitals, above. 

Pro Rata Share means the percentage derived by comparing the amount of capacity 
reserved for an Authority in any Joint Facility to the total amount of available capacity in such 
Joint Facility, as more fully set forth hereafter in this Agreement. 

Project Costs for Downstream Portion of Segment 0 are the portion of the Segment 0 
Project Costs attributable to the Downstream Portion of Segment 0, as reasonably determined 
pursuant to Section 2.4. 

Project Costs for Upstream Portion of Segment 0 are the portion of the Segment 0 
Project Costs attributable to the Upstream Portion of Segment 0, as reasonably determined 
pursuant to Section 2.4. 

Realty Costs means all costs associated with the acquisition of all Realty Interests, 
including, but not limited to, costs of engineering, surveying and staking, and legal fees; 
condemnation costs; abstractor costs; appraisal costs; platting costs; environmental consultant 
costs; title insurance costs; purchase costs; court costs; filing costs; and administrative costs. 

Realty Interests means easements, fee title tracts, and/ or other interests in real property 
necessary or convenient to lay, construct, install, maintain, repair, relocate, replace, remove, 
upgrade, change the size of, place, inspect, protect, alter, or operate a Joint Facility. 
Notwithstanding the preceding sentence, all property interests acquired by the West Authority 
pursuant to the Purchase and Sale Agreement between ExxonMobil Corporation, a New Jersey 
corporation, successor-in-interest to Humble Oil & Refining Company and West Harris County 
Regional Water Authority, dated December 7, 2006, that certain Grant of Exclusive Easement 
dated December 11, 2006, recorded under County Clerk's File Number 20060260677 in the 
Official Public Records of Real Property of Harris County, Texas, that certain Conveyance, 
Assignment and Bill of Sale dated December 11, 2006, recorded under County Clerk's File 
Number 20060260676 in the Official Public Records of Real Property of Harris County, Texas, 
and that certain Deed Without Warranty dated February 16, 2011, recorded under County 
Clerk's File Number 20110067203 in the Official Public Records of Real Property of Harris 
County, Texas shall be included in the definition of "Realty Interests," including, without 
limitation, the pipeline(s) acquired by the West Authority pursuant to such instruments. 

Regulatory Requirements means the requirements and provisions of any state or 
federal law, and any permits, requirements, rules, orders, or regulations issued or adopted from 
time to time by any regulatory authority, state, local, federal or other, having jurisdiction 
concerning water quality standards or otherwise having jurisdiction over the Joint Facilities, 
including, without limitation, the TCEQ Houston, and Harris County. 

Rehab Cost is defined in Section 5.12(b). 

Remittance Date is defined in Section 10.1. 
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Reservation means a written request from an Authority to Houston, at the Authority's 
option, seeking the Utility Official's approval to increase its then-current Untreated Water 
Facilities Demand Allocation and/ or its then-current Treated Water Facilities Demand 
Allocation pursuant to the provisions of the Authority's Contract. 

Responsible Authority means the Fort Bend Authority for Segment 0, Segment 1A, and 
the Bellaire Pump Station and means the West Authority for the Second Source Waterline. 

Responsible Authority Engineer means (i) the Fort Bend Authority Engineer when the 
Fort Bend Authority is acting as a Responsible Authority, and (ii) the West Authority Engineer 
when the West Authority is acting as a Responsible Authority. 

Second Source Waterline means the water mains and related pump station(s), re-pump 
station(s), re-pressurization station(s), and other appurtenances to be located generally along 
and nearby the routes shown in Exhibit A to convey Water from Houston's Northeast Water 
Plant to the Authorities. (The term "Second Source Waterline" does not include the Bellaire 
Pump Station, Segment 0, or Segment 1A.) Such routes of the Second Source Waterline shown 
in Exhibit A may be modified by the written agreement of the West Authority Official and the 
Fort Bend Authority Official. In the event of such a modification of route, a new Exhibit A shall 
be prepared and signed by the West Authority Official and the Fort Bend Authority Official. 

Second Source Waterline Fund means an interest-bearing fund held by the West 
Authority to pay for Second Source Waterline Project Costs. 

Second Source Waterline Plans means plans and specifications for the Second Source 
Waterline. 

Second Source Waterline Project Costs means the Realty Costs, Engineering Costs, and 
Construction Costs of the Second Source Water Line. 

Second Source Waterline Segment(s) mean the pump station(s), re-pump station(s), 
and segment(s) of waterline shown in Exhibit A. · 

Second Source Waterline Water means Water that an Authority obtains via the Second 
Source Line pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. 

Segment 0 means a 48-inch water main located along the alignment shown on 
ExhibitB. 

Segment 0 Additional Capacity Purchase Date means June 30, 2019, plus the HGSD 
Extension Period. 

Segment lA Additional Capacity Purchase Date means June 30, 2019, plus the HGSD 
Extension Period. 

Segment 0 Project Costs means the Realty Costs, Engineering Costs, and Construction 
Costs of Segment 0. 
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Segment lA means a 48-inch water main located along the aligrunent shown on 
Exhibit B. 

Segment lA Project Costs means the Realty Costs, Engineering Costs, and Construction 
Costs of Segment 1A. 

Selling Authority is defined in Section 12.5. 

TCEQ means the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality or any successor or 
successors exercising any of its duties and functions related to water conservation and 
reclamation districts. 

TexStar Interest Rate means the average Texas Short Term Asset Reserve Program 
("TexStar") interest rate that is applicable to West Authority funds invested with TexStar, as 
reasonably calculated by the West Authority's bookkeeper. 

Third Party means an individual, person, or entity: (i) that has its land or territory 
located wholly outside the boundaries of a Selling Authority; and (ii) that is not included in 
such Selling Authority's GRP. For purposes of Section 12.5, the determination of whether an 
individual, person, or entity meets both "(i)" and "(ii)" of the preceding sentence shall be made 
at the time a Selling Authority executes a written contract to sell Second Source Waterline Water 
to the individual, person, or entity. 

Transmission Capacity is defined in Section 8.3. 

Transmission Capacity Notice is defined in Section 8.3. 

Upstream Portion of Segment 0 means that portion of Segment 0 that is located 
upstream of the Bellaire Pump Station facilities. 

Utility Official means the Utility Official of the Department of Public Works and 
Engineering of Houston, or any other person who may hereafter exercise the functions of said 
Utility Official, as defined in the Contracts. 

Water means potable treated surface water received from Houston by an Authority 
pursuant to a Contract. 

West Authority Engineer means Dannenbaum Engineering Corp., or any other 
engineering and/ or surveying firm(s) that may be designated in writing from time to time by 
the West Authority. 

West Authority Official means the President of the West Authority's Board of Directors 
(or different West Authority director designated in writing by the West Authority). 

West Contract is defined in the Recitals, above. 

311111_13 10 



Water Demand Allocation shall have the same meaning given in the Contracts. 

Work is defined in Section 5.12(b). 

Article II 
Segments 0 & lA 

Section 2.1. Segment 0 - General. Segment 0 has adequate capacity to convey the 
ultimate Water capacities required by the Fort Bend Authority and the West Authority. 
Notwithstanding what is reflected in the Exhibits to this Agreement, as of the Effective Date, the 
Authorities have not yet determined whether Second Source Waterline Segment 3 will connect 
to the Upstream Portion of Segment 0 or will connect directly into the Bellaire Pump Station. 
The location of such connection has not yet been reviewed or approved by Houston. The 
routing of the Second Source Waterline Segment 3 may be modified as allowed by the definition 
of "Second Source Waterline." Subject to the terms of this Article II, the West Authority: (i) will 
initially pay for 2.3 MGD of capacity in the Downstream Portion of Segment 0 and will have the 
right to purchase an additional 11 MGD of capacity in the Downstream Portion of Segment O; 
and (ii) will have the right to purchase 13.3 MGD of capacity in the Upstream Portion of 
SegmentO. 

Section 2.2. Segment 0 - Design and Construction. (a) Status. Design of Segment 0 
has been completed, all Realty Interests necessary for Segment 0 have been acquired, and the 
construction contract for Segment 0 has been awarded by the Fort Bend Authority, all in 
accordance with the applicable competitive bidding laws and in full compliance with the rules 
and regulations of the TCEQ and any other agencies having jurisdiction. Segment 0 is being 
constructed, and all equipment, materials, supplies, and Realty Interest are being acquired, in 
the name of the Fort Bend Authority. 

(b) Completion. Construction of Segment 0 is nearing completion. The Fort Bend 
Authority shall cause the Segment 0 construction to be completed and, subject to receipt of the 
Fort Bend Authority Engineer's Certificate of Substantial Completion and recommendation of 
final acceptance, the Fort Bend Authority shall accept Segment 0 for ownership and operation 
by executing a Certificate of Acceptance. The Fort Bend Authority shall provide the West 
Authority with the Fort Bend Authority Engineer's Certificate of Substantial Completion, 
recommendation of final acceptance, construction record drawings of Segment 0, and the 
Certificate of Acceptance. The Fort Bend Authority shall use its best efforts to cause the 
construction of Segment 0 to be completed by July 31, 2011; however, the Authorities recognize 
that some factors affecting construction timing are outside the direct control of the Fort Bend 
Authority. 

Section 2.3. Segment 0 - West Authority Access. To the extent Segment 0 is not 
completed prior to the Effective Date, the Fort Bend Authority shall allow the West Authority's 
representatives to have access at all ti.mes to construction in progress of Segment 0 and to make 
such inspections of Segment 0 as the West Authority may deem necessary or desirable. The 
West Authority shall also have full access to all of the Fort Bend Authority's contracts, pay 
estimates, change orders, engineering recommendation of final acceptance, books, records, and 
all other documentation relating to the construction of Segment 0. 
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Section 2.4. Segment 0 - Project Costs. The Fort Bend Authority has paid and shall 
pay all Segment 0 Project Costs through completion and final acceptance of the project. Within 
60 days after completion and final acceptance of Segment 0, the Fort Bend Authority shall cause 
its bookkeeper to provide all relevant financial information to an independent accounting firm 
for preparation of a final report confirming the total, actual Segment 0 Project Costs (the 
"Segment 0 Final Accounting''), which accounting shall include the cost of such final report. 
The Segment 0 Final Accounting shall be provided to the Authorities within 135 days after 
completion and final acceptance of Segment 0. 

Within 45 days after the expiration of said 135 days, the Fort Bend Authority Engineer 
shall reasonably determine the portion of the Segment 0 Project Costs, as set forth in the 
Segment 0 Final Accounting, that are attributable to the Downstream Portion of Segment 0 and 
the portion of the Segment 0 Project Costs that are attributable to the Upstream Portion of 
Segment 0. The Fort Bend Authority Engineer shall provide such determination to the 
Authorities within such 45 day period. The West Authority shall have 30 days thereafter to 
provide any written comments regarding the Fort Bend Authority Engineer's determination. 
Within 30 days thereafter, the Fort Bend Authority shall reasonably determine what, if any, 
adjustments to make to the Fort Bend Authority Engineer's determination, shall make any such 
adjustments, and shall provide the final determination to the West Authority. 

Section 2.5. Downstream Portion of Segment 0 - Funding. 

(a) Allocation. The Authorities agree that their initial respective Pro Rata Shares of 
the Downstream Portion of Segment 0 are as follows: 

Gallons Pro Rata Share 

Fort Bend Authority 27.0MGD 92% 

West Authority 2.3MGD 8% 

Each Authority is responsible for payment of its Pro Rata Share of the Project Costs for 
Downstream Portion of Segment 0, calculated by multiplying such costs by the Authority's Pro 
Rata Share shown immediately above. 

(b) Invoicing. Once the Project Costs for Downstream Portion of Segment 0 have 
been determined pursuant to Section 2.4, the Fort Bend Authority shall calculate the 
Authorities' respective Pro Rata Shares of the Project Costs for Downstream Portion of Segment 
0, as described in subsection (a) immediately above, and shall invoice the West Authority for its 
Pro Rata Share of such costs, with interest calculated at the Applicable Bond Interest Rate 
incurred by the Fort Bend Authority. Such invoice shall be due and payable by the West 
Authority within 40 days of its receipt. 

(c) Delinquency or Failure to Pay. If the West Authority fails to timely pay the 
invoice for its Pro Rata Share of the Project Costs for Downstream Portion of Segment 0, interest 
shall accrue for the benefit of the Fort Bend Authority on the delinquent payment, as described 
in Section 11.l(c} of this Agreement. Moreover, until the West Authority has paid the invoice 
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described in subsection (b) immediately above, plus the aforementioned interest, the West 
Authority shall not be entitled to capacity in Segment 0. 

Section 2.6. Segment 0 - Ownership. Upon completion and final acceptance of 
Segment 0, the Fort Bend Authority shall own and operate Segment 0 in accordance with the 
terms and conditions of this Agreement. The Fort Bend Authority shall hold legal title to 
Segment 0 and all Realty Interests related to Segment 0, subject to, so long as the West 
Authority has paid its Pro Rata Share of the Segment 0 Project Costs as described in Section 2.5 
(and, if applicable, Sections 2.7 and 2.8.), the equitable interest of the West Authority to the 
extent of its Pro Rata Share, shown in Section 2.5 (and, if applicable, Sections 2.7 and 2.8). 

Section 2.7. Downstream Portion Segment 0 - West Authority Purchase of 
Additional Capacity. Pursuant to the terms of this Section, the West Authority shall have the 
option (but not the obligation) to increase its Pro Rata Share in some or all of the Downstream 
Portion of Segment 0 by an additional 11 MGD (for a total of 13.3 MGD). If the West Authority 
desires to exercise the option, it shall so notify the Fort Bend Authority in writing prior to the 
Fort Bend Authority's termination of the option, as allowed below in this Section. Upon receipt 
of such notice from the West Authority, the Fort Bend Authority shall calculate the West 
Authority's payment for the increase of its Pro Rata Share of Project Costs for Downstream 
Portion of Segment 0 by: (i) multiplying the Project Costs for Downstream Portion of Segment 0 
attributable to the section of the Downstream Portion of Segment 0 in which the West Authority 
obtains additional capacity pursuant to this Section by 25%; and (ii) adding to the product of the 
foregoing "(i)" interest calculated at the Applicable Bond Interest Rate incurred by the Fort 
Bend Authority. The Fort Bend Authority shall invoice the West Authority for such payment 
and such invoice shall be due and payable within 40 days of receipt by the West Authority. 
After such payment is made to the Fort Bend Authority: (i) the West Authority's Pro Rata Share 
of such section of the Downstream Portion of Segment 0 shall be 13.3 MGD (33%); (ii) the Fort 
Bend Authority's Pro Rata Share of such section of the Downstream Portion of Segment 0 shall 
be 27.0 MGD (67%); and (iii) the West Authority shall have the right, at its cost, to construct and 
install a waterline connection and related appurtenances that connect to such section of the 
Downstream Portion of Segment 0 to enable the West Authority to obtain its additional 11 MGD 
of capacity acquired pursuant to this Section, subject to the Fort Bend Authority Engineer's 
approval of West Authority plans and specifications for same, which approval shall not be 
unreasonably withheld or delayed. 

If, by the Segment 0 Additional Capacity Purchase Date, the West Authority has not 
exercised such option by making payment to the Fort Bend Authority pursuant to this Section, 
then the Fort Bend Authority may terminate the option by providing the West Authority with 
120 days advance written notice of the Fort Bend Authority's intent to terminate and the 
calculation of the payment due if the West Authority were to exercise the option. If the West 
Authority fails to make the payment to the Fort Bend Authority during such 120 day period, 
then the option shall automatically terminate and the West Authority's Pro Rata Share of the 
Downstream Portion Segment 0 shall remain at 2.3 MGD (8%), but the West Authority shall not 
be considered in default under this Agreement. 

Section 2.8. Upstream Portion Segment 0 - West Authority Purchase of Additional 
Capacity. The West Authority's Pro Rata Share in the Upstream Portion of Segment 0 shall 
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initially be zero (0). If the Second Source Waterline Segment 3 does not connect to the Upstream 
Portion of Segment 0, then the West Authority's Pro Rata Share of the Upstream Portion of 
Segment 0 shall remain at zero (0) and the West Authority shall not be obligated to pay for 
capacity in the Upstream Portion of Segment 0. 

If the Second Source Waterline Segment 3 connects to the Upstream Portion of Segment 
0, then, pursuant to the terms of this Section, the West Authority shall be obligated to pay for 
13.3 MGD of capacity in the section of the Upstream Portion of Segment 0 that is located 
downstream of such connection. Within 45 days after the Fort Bend Authority receives the 
Second Source Final Accounting pursuant to- Section 4.12(b), the Fort Bend Authority shall 
calculate the West Authority's payment for its Pro Rata Share of Project Costs for Upstream 
Portion of Segment 0 by: (i} multiplying the Project Costs for Upstream Portion of Segment 0 
attributable to the section of the Upstream Portion of Segment 0 in which the West Authority 
obtains capacity pursuant to this Section by 33%, and (ii) adding to the product of the foregoing 
"(i)" interest calculated at the Applicable Bond Interest Rate incurred by the Fort Bend 
Authority. The Fort Bend Authority shall invoice the West Authority for such payment and 
such invoice shall be due and payable within 40 days of receipt by the West Authority. After 
such payment is made to the Fort Bend Authority: (i) the West Authority's Pro Rata Share of 
such section of the Upstream Portion of Segment 0 shall be 13.3 MGD (33%); and (ii) the Fort 
Bend Authority's Pro Rata Share of such section of the Upstream Portion of Segment 0 shall be 
27.0 MGD (67%). 

If the West Authority fails to timely pay the invoice described in the preceding 
paragraph, interest shall accrue for the benefit of the Fort Bend Authority on the delinquent 
payment, as described in Section 11.l(c) of this Agreement. Moreover, until the West Authority 
has paid the invoice described in the preceding paragraph, plus the aforementioned interest, the 
West Authority shall not be entitled to the 13.3 MGD of capacity in the Upstream Portion of 
Segment 0 described in this Section. 

Section 2.9. Segment lA - General. Segment lA is designed to convey the ultimate 
Water capacities required by the Fort Bend Authority and the West Authority from the Bellaire 
Pump Station to the Points of Delivery on Segment 1A. 

Section 2.10. Segment lA - Design and Construction. (a) Design of Segment lA has 
been completed, all Realty Interests necessary for Segment lA have been acquired, and the 
construction contract for Segment lA has been awarded by the Fort Bend Authority, all in 
accordance with the applicable competitive bidding laws and in full compliance with the rules 
and regulations of the TCEQ and any other agencies having jurisdiction. Segment lA is being 
constructed, and all equipment, materials, supplies, and Realty Interest are being acquired, in 
the name of the Fort Bend Authority. 

(b) Completion. Construction of Segment 1A is nearing completion. The Fort Bend 
Authority shall cause the Segment 1A construction to be completed and, subject to receipt of the 
Fort Bend Authority Engineer's Certificate of Substantial Completion and recommendation of 
final acceptance, the Fort Bend Authority shall accept Segment lA for ownership and operation 
by executing a Certificate of Acceptance. The Fort Bend Authority shall provide the West 
Authority with the Fort Bend Authority Engineer's Certificate of Substantial Completion, 
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recommendation offinal acceptance, construction record drawings of Segment lA, and the 
Certificate of Acceptance. The Fort Bend Authority shall use its best efforts to cause the 
construction of Segment lA to be completed by July 31, 2011; however, the Authorities 
recognize that some factors affecting construction timing are outside the direct control of the 
Fort Bend Authority. 

Section 2.11. Segment lA - West Authority Access. To the extent Segment lA is not 
completed prior to the Effective Date, the Fort Bend Authority shall allow the West Authority's 
representatives to have access at all times to construction in progress. of Segment lA and to 
make such inspections of Segment lA as the West Authority may deem necessary or desirable. 
The West Authority shall also have full access to all of the Fort Bend Authority's contracts, pay 
estimates, change orders, engineer's recommendation of final acceptance, books, records, and 
all other documentation relating to the construction of Segment lA. 

Section 2.12. Segment lA- Project Costs. The Fort Bend Authority has paid and shall 
pay all Segment lA Project Costs through completion and final acceptance of the project. 
Within 60 days after completion and final acceptance of Segment lA, the Fort Bend Authority 
shall cause its bookkeeper to provide all relevant expenditure information to an independent 
accounting firm for preparation of a final report confirming the total, actual Segment lA Project 
Costs (the "Segment lA Final Accounting"), which accounting shall include the cost of such 
final report. The Segment lA Final Accounting shall be provided to the Authorities within 135 
days after completion and final acceptance of Segment lA. 

Section 2.13. Segment lA - Funding. 

(a) Allocation. The allocation of capacity between the Authorities in Segment lA 
changes after each Point of Delivery in Segment lA. The Water capacity allocations and Pro 
Rata Shares within each portion of Segment lA are shown in the attached Exhibit B. Each 
Authority is responsible for payment of its Pro Rata Share of the Segment lA Project Costs 
calculated .by multiplying such costs, as shown in the Segment lA Final Accounting, by the 
Authority's Pro Rata Share shown in said Exhibit B. 

(b) Invoicing. Upon receipt of the Segment lA Final Accounting, the Fort Bend 
Authority shall calculate the Authorities' respective Pro Rata Shares of the Segment lA Project 
Costs, as shown in Exhibit B, and shall invoice the West Authority for its Pro Rata Share of such 
costs, with interest calculated at the Applicable Bond Interest Rate incurred by the Fort Bend 
Authority. Such invoice shall be due and payable by the West Authority within 40 days of its 
receipt. 

(c) Delinquency or Failure to Pay. If the West Authority fails to timely pay the 
invoice for its Pro Rata Share of the Segment lA Engineering Costs, Construction Costs and 
Realty Costs, interest shall accrue for the benefit of the Fort Bend Authority on the delinquent 
payment, as described in Section 11.l(c) of this Agreement. Moreover, until the West Authority 
has paid the invoice described in subsection (b) immediately above, plus the aforementioned 
interest, the West Authority shall not be entitled to capacity in Segment 1A. 

Section 2.14. Segment lA - Ownership. Upon completion and final acceptance of 
Segment lA, the Fort Bend Authority shall own and operate Segment lA in accordance with the 
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terms of this Agreement. The Fort Bend Authority shall hold legal title to Segment lA and all 
Realty Interests related to Segment lA, subject to, so long as the West Authority has paid its Pro 
Rata Share of the Segment lA Project Costs as described in Section 2.13 (and, if applicable, 
Section 2.15), the equitable interests of the West Authority to the extent of its Pro Rata Shares, 
shown in Exhibit B (and, if applicable, Section 2.15). 

Section 2.15. Segment lA - West Authority Purchase of Additional Capacity. The 
West Authority shall have the option (but not the obligation) to increase its Pro Rata Share in 
some or all of the portion of Segment 1A shown as "Segment 1A-1" on Exhibit B by an 
additional 11 MGD (for a total of 13.3 MGD) pursuant to the terms of this Section. If the West 
Authority desires to exercise the option, it shall so notify the Fort Bend Authority in writing 
prior to the Fort Bend Authority's termination of this option, as allowed below in this Section. 
Upon receipt of such notice from the West Authority, the Fort Bend Authority shall calculate 
the West Authority's payment for the increase of its Pro Rata Share of the Segment lA Project 
Costs by: (i) multiplying the Segment 1A Project Costs, as shown in the Segment 1A Final 
Accounting, attributable to the portion of Segment 1A in which the West Authority obtains 
additional capacity pursuant to this Section by 25%; and (ii) adding to the product of the 
foregoing "(i)" interest calculated at the Applicable Bond Interest Rate incurred by the Fort 
Bend Authority. The Fort Bend Authority shall invoice the West Authority for such payment 
and such invoice shall be due and payable within 40 days of receipt by the West Authority. 
After such payment is made to the Fort Bend Authority: (i) the West Authority's Pro Rata Share 
of such portion of Segment 1A shall be 13.3 MGD (33%); (ii) the Fort Bend Authority's Pro Rata 
Share of such portion of Segment lA shall be 27.0 MGD (67%); and (iii) the West Authority shall 
have the right, at its cost, to construct and install a waterline connection and related 
appurtenances that connect to Segment 1A to enable the West Authority to obtain its additional 
11 MGD of capacity acquired pursuant to this Section, subject to the Fort Bend Authority 
Engineer's approval of West Authority plans and specifications for same, which approval shall 
not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. 

If, by the Segment lA Additional Capacity Purchase Date, the West Authority has not 
exercised such option by making payment to the Fort Bend Authority pursuant to this Section, 
then the Fort Bend Authority may terminate the option by providing the West Authority with 
120 days advance written notice of the Fort Bend Authority's intent to terminate and the 
calculation of the payment due if the West Authority were to exercise the option. If the West 
Authority fails to make the payment to the Fort Bend Authority during such 120 day period,· 
then the option shall automatically terminate and the Wt;st Authority's Pro Rata Share of 
Segment lA shall remain as shown in Exhibit B, but the West Authority shall not be considered 
in default under this Agreement. 

Article III 
Bellaire Pump Station 

Section 3.1. General - Phase 1. The Bellaire Pump Station is planned to have an 
ultimate capacity of 40.3 MGD to serve the ultimate Water conveyance requirements of the 
Authorities from that facility. The Authorities have determined to design and construct the 
Bellaire Pump Station in two phases. The Bellaire Pump Station, Phase 1 shall be designed to 
provide 29.3 MGD of capacity, with 2.3 MGD of capacity allocated to the West Authority and 
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27.0 MGD of capacity allocated to the Fort Bend Authority. The Bellaire Pump Station, Phase 1, 
except for the storage tanks and related piping, will be sized to accommodate the Bellaire Pump 
Station's expansion by 11.0 MGD via the Bellaire Pump Station, Phase 2. Engineering Costs and 
Construction Costs: (i) for the Bellaire Pump Station, Phase 1, except for the storage tanks and 
related piping, will be paid 67% by the Fort Bend Authority and 33% by the West Authority; (ii) 
for the storage tanks and related piping of the Bellaire Pump Station, Phase 1, will be paid 92% 
by the Fort Bend Authority and 8% by the West Authority; and (iii) for the supervisory control 
and data acquisition ("SCADA") system installed as part of the Bellaire Pump Station, Phase 1, 
will be paid at least 67% by the Fort Bend Authority and no more than 33% by the West 
Authority. After completion of the SCADA system, which is currently under development, 
exact percentages for the SCADA system will be determined by written instrument signed by 
the Fort Bend Authority Engineer and West Authority Engineer based on the pro-rata benefit to 
each Authority. The Fort Bend Authority's design of the Bellaire Pump Station, Phase 1, is near 
completion. The Authorities plan to initiate work on the Bellaire Pump Station, Phase 2, in the 
future, as described in Section 3.10 below. 

Section 3.2. Site Acquisition. (a) The Fort Bend Authority has acquired fee title to 
the Bellaire Pump Station Site, and has paid (or will pay) all Bellaire Pump Station Realty Costs 
related thereto, in order to have adequate land to accommodate the Bellaire Pump Station, 
Phase 1 and Phase 2. 

(b) Within 40 days after receipt of an invoice from the Fort Bend Authority, the West 
Authority shall reimburse the Fort Bend Authority for a portion of the Incurred Bellaire Pump 
Station Realty Costs, as more fully set forth on Exhibit C, based upon the West Authority's Pro 
Rata Share of the Bellaire Pump Station, Phase 1, as set forth in Section 3.4(b), with interest 
calculated at the Applicable Bond Interest Rate incurred by the Fort Bend Authority. 

(c) Subject to the West Authority's reimbursement payment to the Fort Bend 
Authority, as described in subsection (b) immediately above, the Fort Bend Authority shall hold 
legal title to the Bellaire Pump Station Site for the benefit of the West Authority and itself based 
upon the Pro Rata Shares of each entity in the Bellaire Pump Station, Phase 1, shown in Section 
3.4(b), and·the West Authority shall have an equitable interest in the Bellaire Pump Station Site 
to the extent of its Pro Rata Share, shown in Section 3.4(b). 

Section 3.3. Phase 1 - Status. The design of the Bellaire Pump Station, Phase 1, is near 
completion. The Fort Bend Authority has or will advertise the construction contract for the 
Bellaire Pump Station, Phase 1, in accordance with the applicable competitive bidding laws and 
in full compliance with the rules and regulations of the TCEQ and any other agencies having 
jurisdiction. The Bellaire Pump Station, Phase 1 shall be constructed, and all equipment, 
materials, supplies, and Realty Interest acquired, in the name of the Fort Bend Authority. 

Section 3.4. Phase 1 - Funding. (a) Cost Estimate. The Fort Bend Authority shall 
cause the Fort Bend Authority Engineer to prepare a cost estimate for the total, estimated 
Bellaire Pump Station, Phase 1 Engineering Costs and Construction Costs (the "Phase 1 Cost 
Estimate"). The Phase 1 Cost Estimate shall include Bellaire Pump Station, Phase 1 Engineering 
Costs and Construction Costs paid to date by the Fort Bend Authority as well as estimated 
Bellaire Pump Station, Phase 1 Engineering Costs and Construction Costs to be incurred to 
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construct and complete the Bellaire Pump Station, Phase 1. The Bellaire Pump Station Realty 
Costs will not be included in the Phase 1 Cost Estimate, as the West Authority is paying its 
share of the Bellaire Pump Station Realty Costs pursuant to Section 3.2. 

(b) Invoicing. Each Authority's Pro Rata Shares in the Bellaire Pump Station, Phase 
1, is as follows: 

Gallons Pro Rata Share 

Fort Bend Authority 27.0MGD 92% 

West Authority 2.3MGD 8% 

TOTAL 29.3MGD 100% 

Upon receipt of the Phase 1 Cost Estimate, the Fort Bend Authority shall invoice the West 
Authority for its share of the Phase 1 Cost Estimate, based upon the cost-sharing percentages set 
forth in Section 3.1. Such invoice shall be due and payable within 40 days of receipt by the West 
Authority. The Fort Bend Authority shall deposit the West Authority's payment into a Fort 
Bend Authority interest-bearing fund and shall separately account for such deposit, except that 
the Fort Bend Authority shall utilize a portion of the West Authority's payment (according to 
the cost-sharing percentages set forth in Section 3.1) to reimburse itself for the West Authority's 
share of any Bellaire Pump Station, Phase 1 Engineering Costs and Construction Costs paid to 
date by the Fort Bend Authority. At the same time that the Fort Bend Authority sends such 
invoice to the West Authority, the Fort Bend Authority shall invoice itself for its share of the 
Phase 1 Cost Estimate, based upon the cost-sharing percentages set forth in Section 3.1 (less 
amounts already paid by the Fort Bend Authority . for Bellaire Pump Station, Phase 1 
Engineering Costs and Construction Costs), and such invoice shall be due and payable within 
40 days of receipt by the Fort Bend Authority. The Fort Bend Authority shall deposit its 
payment into the interest-bearing fund described in this paragraph, which payment shall be 
separately accounted for by the Fort Bend Authority. The West Authority's payment shall only 
be applied to its share of the Bellaire Pump Station, Phase 1 Engineering Costs and Construction 
Costs based upon the cost-sharing percentages set forth in Section 3.1. The Fort Bend 
Authority's payment shall only be applied to its share of the Bellaire Pump Station, Phase 1 
Engineering Costs and Construction Costs based upon the cost-sharing percentages set forth in 
Section 3.1. In the event the Fort Bend Authority determines that there is insufficient money in 
such fund to pay for the Bellaire Pump Station, Phase 1 Engineering Costs and Construction 
Costs, the Fort Bend Authority shall from time to time cause a new Phase 1 Cost Estimate to be 
prepared and shall invoice both Authorities for the amount of additional funds reasonably 
needed to complete the project, which invoices shall be due 40 days after receipt. 

The Fort Bend Authority shall cause its bookkeeper to provide monthly written reports 
of the application of each Authority's payment to the Bellaire Pump Station, Phase 1 Project 
Costs and of interest earnings on such deposit. 

(c) Delinquency or Failure to Pay. If the West Authority fails to timely pay the 
invoice for its share of the Phase 1 Cost Estimate, as set forth in subsection (b) immediately 
above, interest shall accrue for the benefit of the Fort Bend Authority on the delinquent 
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payment, as described in Section 11.l(c) of this Agreement. Moreover, until the West Authority 
has paid the invoice described in subsection (b) immediately above, plus the aforementioned 
interest, the West Authority shall not be entitled to capacity in the Bellaire Pump Station, Phase 
1. 

Section 3.5. Phase 1 - Bids. The Fort Bend Authority shall cause the Bellaire Pump 
Station, Phase 1 construction to be advertised for bids no later than December 31, 2011. Upon 
the receipt of bids, the Fort Bend Authority Engineer shall provide a bid tabulation and 
recommendation of award to the Authorities. The West Authority shall have 30 days from 
receipt to provide comments to the Fort Bend Authority on the bid tabulation and 
recommendation of award. After such 30-day period, the Fort Bend Authority may award a 
construction contract for the project, subject to the Fort Bend Authority's right to reject any or 
all bids for the construction of same. 

Section 3.6. Phase 1 - Construction. The Bellaire Pump Station, Phase 1 shall be 
constructed, and equipment, materials, and supplies required in connection with the Bellaire 
Pump Station, Phase 1 shall be acquired, in the name of the Fort Bend Authority. The Fort Bend 
Authority shall install the Bellaire Pump Station, Phase 1, award construction contracts for 
same, and obtain payment and performance bonds for same all in accordance with the 
applicable competitive bidding laws and in full compliance with the rules and regulations of the 
TCEQ and any other agencies having jurisdiction. The Fort Bend Authority Engineer shall 
provide the West Authority Engineer for its review and comment copies of all pay estimates 
and change orders for the Bellaire Pump Station, Phase l. 

If the West Authority objects to a proposed change order in the amount of $150,000 or 
more, it shall instruct the West Authority Engineer to submit to the Fort Bend Authority 
Engineer within 30 days of receipt of such proposed change order, the objections and the 
reasons for the objections. If the Fort Bend Authority Engineer does not receive written 
objections from the West Authority Engineer within 30 days of the West Authority Engineer's 
receipt of such a proposed change order, approval shall be deemed to have been made. If the 
West Authority objects to such a proposed change order, and the Fort Bend Authority Engineer 
and the West Authority Engineer (within 10 days of the Fort Bend Authority Engineer's receipt 
of the written objections) fail to agree in writing on the resolution of the objections, the review 
and comment period for the West Authority shall be extended an additional 30 days (running 
from the expiration of the first 30 days). During such second 30-day period, each Authority 
agrees to reasonably consider the position of the other Authority. If no agreement can be 
reached by the Authorities within the second 30-day period, the Fort Bend Authority shall have 
the right to make a final decision regarding such change order. Notwithstanding the other 
provisions of this paragraph, the Fort Bend Authority may declare such 30-day period(s) 
unnecessary and may proceed with a change order immediately if: (A) the Fort Bend Authority 
determines that either (i) the change order is necessary to protect public health and safety or to 
prevent unreasonable economic loss, or (ii) the condition or situation necessitating the change 
order requires immediate action; and (B) the Fort Bend Authority Engineer issues to the Fort 
Bend Authority a written opinion in support of said /1 (i)" or /1 (ii)". 

Upon completion of the Bellaire Pump Station, Phase 1, and the Fort Bend Authority's 
receipt of the Fort Bend Authority Engineer's Certificate of Substantial Completion and 
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recommendation of final acceptance for the Bellaire Pump Station, Phase 1, the Fort Bend 
Authority shall accept the Bellaire Pump Station, Phase 1 for ownership and operation by 
executing a Certificate of Acceptance. The Fort Bend Authority shall provide the West 
Authority with the Fort Bend Authority Engineer's Certificate of Substantial Completion and 
recommendation of final acceptance, construction record drawings of such phase, and the 
Certificate of Acceptance. 

Section 3.7. Phase 1 - Engineering Services. The Fort Bend Authority Engineer shall 
provide construction phase services and inspection for the Bellaire Pump Station, Phase 1, 
including advertising for bids, receiving and analyzing bids, recommending construction 
contract award, reviewing and approving all pay estimates, reviewing and submitting all 
change orders, reviewing and approving shop drawings, and recommending acceptance of the 
project to the Fort Bend Authority. 

Section 3.8. Phase 1 - Funding. (a) Application of Funds. The Fort Bend Authority 
shall apply the funds received from both the West Authority and itself pursuant to Section 3.4 
to the Bellaire Pump Station, Phase 1 Engineering Costs and Construction Costs according to 
the cost-sharing percentages set forth in Section 3.1. 

(b) Final Accounting. Within 60 days after completion and final acceptance of the 
Bellaire Pump Station, Phase 1, the Fort Bend Authority shall cause its bookkeeper to provide 
all relevant financial information to an independent accounting firm for preparation of a final 
report confirming the total, actual Bellaire Pump Station, Phase 1 Project Costs (the "Phase 1 
Final Accounting"), which accounting shall include the cost of such final report. The Phase 1 
Final Accounting shall state: (i) the difference between the estimated and the final, actual 
Bellaire Pump Station, Phase 1 Project Costs and (ii) the amount of any underpayment or 
overpayment made by each Authority, taking into account any interest earnings in the interest 
bearing fund described in Section 3.4 that are attributable to an Authority's deposit. The Phase 
1 Final Accounting shall be provided to the Authorities within 135 days after completion and 
final acceptance of the Bellaire Pump Station, Phase 1. 

If the final actual Bellaire Pump Station, Phase 1 Project Costs, as determined by the 
Phase 1 Final Accounting, are more than the estimated Bellaire Pump Station, Phase 1 Project 
Costs, resulting in an underpayment by the West Authority (taking into account any interest 
earnings on the West Authority's funds), the West Authority shall pay to the Fort Bend 
Authority the amount of the underpayment within 40 days of the date the Phase 1 Final 
Accounting is received by the West Authority. If the final actual costs are less than the 
estimated Bellaire Pump Station, Phase 1 Project Costs, resulting in an overpayment by the West 
Authority (taking into account any interest earnings on the West Authority's funds), the Fort 
Bend Authority shall pay the West Authority the amount of the overpayment within 40 days of 
the Fort Bend Authority's receipt of the Phase 1 Final Accounting. The Phase 1 Final 
Accounting shall also be used to determine if the Fort Bend Authority overpaid or underpaid 
on the project and it shall adjust its books accordingly. 

Section 3.9. Ownership. Upon completion and final acceptance of the Bellaire Pump 
Station, Phase 1, the Fort Bend Authority shall own and operate the Bellaire Pump Station, 
Phase 1 in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement. The Fort Bend 
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Authority shall hold legal title to the Bellaire Pump Station, Phase 1, subject to, so long as the 
West Authority has paid its share according to the cost-sharing percentages set forth in Section 
3.1, the equitable interest of the West Authority, to the extent of its Pro Rata Share, shown in 
Section 3.4. 

Section 3.10. General - Phase 2. The Bellaire Pump Station, Phase 2 is planned to add 
11 MGD of capacity to the Bellaire Pump Station, Phase 1, to provide the ultimate Bellaire Pump 
Station capacity of 40.3 MGD. The Fort Bend Authority shall design and construct the Bellaire 
Pump Station, Phase 2 in its name, provided that the West Authority pays all Bellaire Pump 
Station, Phase 2 Project Costs. Work on the Bellaire Pump Station, Phase 2, shall begin upon 
written notice from the West Authority to the Fort Bend Authority that the West Authority 
desires additional capacity in the Bellaire Pump Station. Upon receipt of such notice, the Fort 
Bend Authority shall cause the Phase 2 Engineering Cost Estimate described in Section 3.12 to 
be prepared and, subject to the West Authority timely making the payments to the Fort Bend 
Authority described in Sections 3.11, 3.13, and 3.16, the Fort Bend Authority shall exert its best 
faith efforts to complete the project within 30 months thereafter. 

Since the purpose of the Bellaire Pump Station, Phase 2 project is to provide an 
additional 11 MGD of capacity to the West Authority and the West Authority is required 
hereunder to pay the costs of the Bellaire Pump Station, Phase 2, the Fort Bend Authority will 
not enter into change orders or otherwise include work in the construction contract for such 
project that is unrelated to providing the West Authority an additional 11 MGD of capacity. 
Notwithstanding any provision hereof, and subject to the provisions of Article V, the Fort Bend 
Authority may, at the time of bidding such construction contract, include in the contract any 
improvements, repairs, or Major Rehabilitation work ("Additional Work") allowed under 
Article V. In such event, the costs of the Additional Work shall be shared between the 
Authorities according to the applicable cost-sharing methodology set forth in Article V (or as 
otherwise agreed in writing by the Authorities); provided, however, for purposes of calculating 
each Authority's Pro Rata Share of the Bellaire Pump Station for a Major Rehabilitation, the Pro 
Rata Shares set forth in Section 3.20 (and not Section 3.4) shall apply. 

Section 3.11. Site - Phase 2. (a) Size. The Bellaire Pump Station Site is adequate to 
accommodate the construction and operation of the Bellaire Pump Station, Phase 2. 

(b) Realty Cost Reallocation. Pursuant to this Agreement, the Authorities will have 
shared the Bellaire Pump Station Realty Costs based upon their respective Pro Rata Shares in 
the Bellaire Pump Station, Phase 1, as described in Section 3.2. The Fort Bend Authority shall 
calculate the West Authority's additional payment for the Bellaire Pump Station Realty Costs 
by: (i) multiplying the Bellaire Pump Station Realty Costs by 25%; and (ii) adding to the product 
of the foregoing "(i)" interest calculated at the Applicable Bond Interest Rate incurred by the 
Fort Bend Authority. After construction of the Bellaire Pump Station Phase 2 has commenced, 
the Fort Bend Authority shall invoice the West Authority for such payment and such invoice 
shall be due and payable within 40 days of receipt by the West Authority. 

(c) Legal Title. Subject to the West Authority's advance of funds as required in 
subsection (b) immediately above, the Fort Bend Authority shall hold legal title to the Bellaire 
Pump Station Site for the benefit of the West Authority and itself based upon the Pro Rata 
Shares of each Authority in the Bellaire Pump Station as expanded to its ultimate 40.3 MGD 
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capacity, and the West Authority shall have an equitable interest in such site to the extent of its 
Pro Rata Share, as shown in Section 3.20. 

Section 3.12. Engineering Cost Estimate - Phase 2. (a) Preparation. The Fort Bend 
Authority shall cause the Fort Bend Authority Engineer to prepare a cost estimate for the 
engineering work associated with the Bellaire Pump Station, Phase 2, which shall include total, 
estimated Engineering Costs (the "Phase 2 Engineering Cost Estimate"). 

(b) Review. After review and approval of the Phase 2 Engineering Cost Estimate by 
the Fort Bend Authority, the Fort Bend Authority shall provide the Phase 2 Engineering Cost 
Estimate to the West Authority for review and comment. The West Authority shall have 40 
days to review and comment upon the estimate. The Fort Bend Authority shall consider and 
respond to all comments received from the West Authority, but the Fort Bend Authority shall 
have the right to make a final decision regarding the amount of such estimate. 

Section 3.13. Funding - Phase 2. (a) Invoicing-Engineering Costs. Upon the Fort 
Bend Authority's approval of the Phase 2 Engineering Cost Estimate, including any revisions 
resulting from the West Authority's comments incorporated by the Fort Bend Authority, the 
Fort Bend Authority shall invoice the West Authority for 100% of the Phase 2 Engineering Cost 
Estimate. Such invoice shall be due and payable within 40 days of receipt by the West 
Authority. The Fort Bend Authority shall deposit the West Authority's payment into a Fort 
Bend Authority, interest-bearing fund and shall separately account for such deposit. The West 
Authority payment shall only be applied to the Bellaire Pump Station, Phase 2 Engineering 
Costs and (after all Bellaire Pump Station, Phase 2 Engineering Costs are paid) to Bellaire Pump 
Station, Phase 2 Construction Costs. The Fort Bend Authority shall cause its.bookkeeper to 
provide monthly written reports of the application of the West Authority's deposit and of 
interest earnings on such deposit. 

(b) Delinquency or Failure to Pay. If the West Authority fails to timely pay the 
invoice for the Phase 2 Engineering Cost Estimate, the Fort Bend Authority shall not initiate 
design of the Bellaire Pump Station, Phase 2 until the West Authority has paid the invoice 
described in subsection (a) immediately above. 

Section 3.14. Design - Phase 2. The plans and specifications for the Bellaire Pump 
Station, Phase 2 ("Bellaire Pump Station, Phase 2 Plans") shall be prepared by the Fort Bend 
Authority Engineer or other engineers selected by the Fort Bend Authority. The Bellaire Pump 
Station, Phase 2 Plans shall be subject to review and approval by the West Authority Engineer 
at the following intervals during design: 30% plan completion, 70% plan completion, and 
proposed final plans. The West Authority Engineer shall have 30 days from the receipt of plans 
to provide written comments and/ or approval, which approval shall not be unreasonably 
withheld, conditioned, or delayed. If the West Authority Engineer does not submit written 
comments or approval timely, approval shall be deemed to have been made. If the West 
Authority Engineer provides written comments and the Fort Bend Authority Engineer and the 
West Authority Engineer (within 10 days of the Fort Bend Authority Engineer's receipt of the 
written comments) fail to agree in writing on the resolution of those comments, the comment 
and approval period for the West Authority Engineer shall be extended an additional 30 days 
(running from the expiration of the first 30 days). During such second 30-day period, each 
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Authority agrees to reasonably consider the position of the other Authority. If no agreement 
can be reached by the Authorities within the second 30-day period, the Fort Bend Authority 
shall have the right to make a final decision regarding the Bellaire Pump Station, Phase 2 Plans. 
The Bellaire Pump Station, Phase 2 Plans shall further be subject to review and approval by 
Houston, the TCEQ, and any other regulatory authorities with jurisdiction. The Fort Bend 
Authority Engineer shall be responsible for securing all required approvals. 

Section 3.15. Construction Cost Estimate - Phase 2. (a) Preparation. After the Fort 
Bend Authority has completed the Bellaire Pump Station, Phase 2 Plans, the Fort Bend 
Authority shall cause the Fort Bend Authority Engineer to prepare a cost estimate for the 
construction of the Bellaire Pump Station, Phase 2 which shall include total estimated 
Construction Costs (the "Phase 2 Construction Cost Estimate"). 

(b) Review. After review and approval of the Phase 2 Construction Cost Estimate 
by the Fort Bend Authority, the Fort Bend Authority shall provide the Phase 2 Construction 
Cost Estimate to the West Authority for review and comment. The West Authority Engineer 
shall have 40 days to review and comment upon the estimate. The Fort Bend Authority shall 
consider and respond to all comments received from the West Authority, but the Fort Bend 
Authority shall have the right to make a final decision regarding the amount of such estimate. 

Section 3.16. Funding - Phase 2. (a) Invoicing-Construction. Upon the Fort Bend 
Authority's approval of the Phase 2 Construction Cost Estimate, including any revisions 
resulting from the West Authority's comments incorporated by the Fort Bend Authority, the 
Fort Bend Authority shall invoice the West Authority for 100% of the Phase 2 Construction Cost 
Estimate. Such invoice shall be due and payable within 40 days of receipt by the West 
Authority. The Fort Bend Authority shall deposit the West Authority's payment into a Fort 
Bend Authority, interest-bearing fund and shall separately account for such deposit. In the 
event the Fort Bend Authority determines that there is insufficient money in such fund to pay 
for the Bellaire Pump Station, Phase 2 Construction Costs, the Fort Bend Authority shall from 
time to time cause a new Phase 2 Construction Cost Estimate to be prepared and shall invoice 
the West Authority for the amount of additional funds reasonably needed to complete the 
project, which invoices shall be due 40 days after receipt. The West Authority payment(s) shall 
only be applied to the Bellaire Pump Station, Phase 2 Construction Costs and any remaining 
Bellaire Pump Station, Phase 2 Engineering Costs. The Fort Bend Authority shall cause its 
bookkeeper to provide monthly written reports of the application of the West Authority's 
deposit(s) and of interest earnings on such deposit(s). 

(b) Delinquency or Failure to Pay. If the West Authority fails to timely pay the 
invoice for the Phase 2 Construction Cost Estimate, the Fort Bend Authority shall not commence 
construction of the Bellaire Pump Station, Phase 2, until the West Authority has paid the invoice 
described in subsection (a) immediately above. 

Section 3.17. Advertising for Bids - Phase 2. The Fort Bend Authority shall cause the 
Bellaire Pump Station, Phase 2 construction to be advertised for bids. Upon the receipt of bids, 
the Fort Bend Authority Engineer shall provide a bid tabulation and recommendation of award 
to the Authorities. The Fort Bend Authority shall authorize the award of contract(s) for the 
Bellaire Pump Station, Phase 2, provided that the West Authority authorizes such award. If the 
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West Authority fails to authorize the award of the contract, the Fort Bend Authority shall reject 
the bids and, at the expense of the West Authority, re-bid the project. 

Section 3.18. Construction - Phase 2. The Bellaire Pump Station, Phase 2 shall be 
constructed, and equipment, materials, and supplies required in connection with the Bellaire 
Pump Station, Phase 2 shall be acquired, in the name of the Fort Bend Authority. The Fort Bend 
Authority Engineer shall provide the West Authority Engineer for its review and approval 
copies of all pay estimates and change orders for the Bellaire Pump Station, Phase 2. 

The Fort Bend Authority shall install the Bellaire Pump Station, Phase 2, award 
construction contracts for same, and obtain payment and performance bonds for same all in 
accordance with the applicable competitive bidding laws and in full compliance with the rules 
and regulations of the TCEQ and any other agencies having jurisdiction. Notwithstanding any 
provision hereof, the Fort Bend Authority may cause the Bellaire Pump Station, Phase 2 to be 
installed pursuant to any project delivery method allowed by then-current law, including, 
without limitation, /1 design build," /1 construction manager at risk," or other method not 
requiring competitive bidding. Prior to commencing the construction of the Bellaire Pump 
Station, Phase 2, the Fort Bend Authority shall comply with the following procedure: (1) the 
Fort Bend Authority shall give the West Authority written notice of the project delivery method 
that the Fort Bend Authority desires to implement; (2) after receipt of such written notice, the 
West Authority shall have 45 days to provide written comments to the Fort Bend Authority 
regarding the project delivery alternatives; (3) the Fort Bend Authority shall reasonably 
consider any such comments provided by the West Authority during such 45 day period; and 
(4) thereafter, the Fort Bend Authority shall, at its discretion, determine the project delivery 
method that will be implemented for the Bellaire Pump Station, Phase 2. 

If the West Authority objects to a proposed change order in the amount of $150,000 or 
more, it shall instruct the West Authority Engineer to submit to the Fort Bend Authority 
Engineer within 30 days of receipt of such proposed change order, the objections and the 
reasons for the objections. If the Fort Bend Authority Engineer does not receive written 
objections from the West Authority Engineer within 30 days of the West Authority Engineer's 
receipt of such a proposed change order, approval shall be deemed to have been made. If the 
West Authority objects to such a proposed change order, and the Fort Bend Authority Engineer 
and the West Authority Engineer (within 10 days of the Fort Bend Authority Engineer's receipt 
of the written objections) fail to agree in writing on the resolution of the objections, the review 
and comment period for the West Authority shall be extended an additional 30 days (running 
from the expiration of the first 30 days). During such second 30-day period, each Authority 
agrees to reasonably consider the position of the other Authority. If no agreement can be 
reached by the Authorities within the second 30-day period, the Fort Bend Authority shall have 
the right to make a final decision regarding such change order. Notwithstanding the other 
provisions of this paragraph, the Fort Bend Authority may declare such 30-day period(s) 
unnecessary and may proceed with a change order immediately if: (A) the Fort Bend Authority 
determines that either (i) the change order is necessary to protect public health and safety or to 
prevent unreasonable economic loss, or (ii) the condition or situation necessitating the change 
order requires immediate action; and (B) the Fort Bend Authority Engineer issues to the Fort 
Bend Authority a written opinion in support of said /1 (i)" or /1 (ii)". 
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Upon completion of the Bellaire Pump Station, Phase 2, and the Fort Bend Authority's 
receipt of the Fort Bend Authority Engineer's Certificate of Substantial Completion and 
recommendation of final acceptance for the Bellaire Pump Station, Phase 2, the Fort Bend 
Authority shall accept the Bellaire Pump Station, Phase 2 for ownership and operation by 
executing a Certificate of Acceptance. The Fort Bend Authority shall provide the West 
Authority with the Fort Bend Authority Engineer's Certificate of Substantial Completion and 
recommendation of final acceptance, construction record drawings of such phase, and the 
Certificate of Acceptance . 

. Section 3.19. Engineering Services - Phase 2. The Fort Bend Authority Engineer shall 
provide construction phase services and inspection for the Bellaire Pump Station, Phase 2, 
including advertising for bids, receiving and analyzing bids, recommending construction 
contract award, reviewing and approving all pay estimates, reviewing and submitting all 
change orders, reviewing and approving shop drawings, and recommending acceptance to the 
Fort Bend Authority. · 

Section 3.20. Funding - Phase 2. (a) Application of Funds. The Fort Bend Authority 
shall apply the funds received from the West Authority pursuant to Sections 3.13 and 3.16 to the 
Bellaire Pump Station, Phase 2 Engineering Costs and Construction Costs. 

(b) Final Accounting. Within 60 days after completion and final acceptance of the 
Bellaire Pump Station, Phase 2, the Fort Bend Authority shall cause its bookkeeper to provide 
all relevant financial information to an independent accounting firm for preparation of a final 
report confirming the total, actual Engineering Costs and Construction Costs of the Bellaire 
Pump Station, Phase 2 (the "Phase 2 Final Accounting"), which accounting shall include the cost 
of such final report. The Phase 2 Final Accounting shall state: (i) the difference between the 
estimated and the final, actual Engineering Costs and Construction Costs for the Bellaire Pump 
Station, Phase 2 and (ii) the amount of any underpayment or overpayment made by the West 
Authority, taking into account any interest earnings on the deposit of funds made by the West 
Authority with the Fort Bend Authority. The Phase 2 Final Accounting shall be provided to the 
Authorities within 135 days after completion and final acceptance of the Bellaire Pump Station, 
Phase 2. If the final actual Engineering Costs and Construction Costs, as determined by the 
Phase 2 Final Accounting, are more than the estimated Engineering Costs and Construction 
Costs, resulting in an underpayment by the West Authority (taking into account any interest 
earnings on the West Authority's funds), the West Authority shall pay to the Fort Bend 
Authority the amount of the underpayment within 40 days of the date the Phase 2 Final 
Accounting is received by the West Authority. If the final actual Engineering Costs and 
Construction Costs are less than the estimated Engineering Costs and Construction Costs, 
resulting in an overpayment by the West Authority (taking into account any interest earnings 
on the West Authority's funds), the Fort Bend Authority shall pay the West Authority the 
amount of the overpayment within 40 days of the Fort Bend Authority's receipt of the Phase 2 
Final Accounting. Upon completion of the Bellaire Pump Station, Phase 2, and the West 
Authority's payment, if any is due, pursuant to this Section, the Pro Rata Shares of the Bellaire 
Pump Station shall be as follows: 
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Gallons Pro Rata Share 

Fort Bend Authority 27.0MGD 67% 

West Authority 13.3MGD 33% 

TOTAL 40.3MGD 100% 

Section 3.21. Ownership. Upon completion and final acceptance of the Bellaire Pump 
Station, Phase 2, the Fort Bend Authority shall own and operate the Bellaire Pump Station, 
Phase 2 in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement. The Fort Bend 
Authority shall hold legal title to the Bellaire Pump Station, Phase 2, subject to, so long as the 
West Authority has paid its Pro Rata Share of the Bellaire Pump Station, Phase 2 Project Costs 
as described in Sections 3.11, 3.13, 3.16, and 3.20, the equitable interest of the West Authority, to 
the extent of its Pro Rata Share shown in Section 3.20. If the West Authority has paid its Pro 
Rata Share of the Bellaire Pump Station, Phase 2 Project Costs as described in Sections 3.11, 3.13, 
3.16, and 3.20, the West Authority shall (in addition to its options under Sections 2.7 and 2.15) 
have the right, at its cost, to construct and install a waterline connection and related 
appurtenances that connect to the Bellaire Pump Station (on the Bellaire Pump Station Site) to 
enable the West Authority to obtain its additional 11 MGD of capacity constructed pursuant to 
the Bellaire Pump Stations, Phase 2, subject to the Fort Bend Authority Engineer's approval of 
West Authority plans and specifications for same, which approval shall not be unreasonably 
withheld or delayed. 

Section 3.22. West Authority Access. The Fort Bend Authority shall allow the West 
Authority's representatives to have access at all times to construction in progress of each phase 
of the Bellaire Pump Station and to make such inspections of construction as the West Authority 
may deem necessary or desirable. The West Authority shall also have full access to all of the 
Fort Bend Authority's contracts, pay estimates, change orders, engineering recommendations of 
final acceptance, books, records, and all other documentation relating to the construction of 
each phase of the Bellaire Pump Station. 

Article IV 
Second Source Waterline 

Section 4.1. General. The Second Source Waterline is planned to convey Water from 
Houston's Northeast Water Plant to the Authorities; provided, however, if the Authorities, 
Houston, and NHCRWA (at the option and discretion of each of such entity) collectively enter 
into a written cost-sharing agreement regarding their joint funding and construction of the 
Potential Shared Line, then the Authorities intend that the routing of the Second Source 
Waterline that is reflected in Exhibit A would be modified (and the length of the waterline 
decreased) as allowed by the definition of "Second Source Waterline." The Authorities' 
respective capacities and Pro Rata Shares of each Second Source Waterline Segment are set forth 
in the attached Exhibit A. With respect to the right-of-way designated on Exhibit A as "Surplus 
Right of Way" and all Realty Interests located east of the point where Second Source Waterline 
Segment 3 connects to Second Source Waterline Segment 1 (even if any of such Realty Interests 
are not needed for the Second Source Waterline), each Authority's Pro Rata Share shall be its 
Pro Rata Share of the Second Source Waterline Segment 1 set forth in Exhibit A (as revised 
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pursuant to this Section 4.1). It is currently estimated that the Second Source Waterline Project 
Costs will be approximately $542,419,000; provided, however, the Authorities recognize that 
such figure is merely an estimate and that such figure may change (increase or decrease) 
substantially during the period of time from the Effective Date to the date that the Second 
Source Waterline is completed. 

Each Authority reserves the right to make a one-time adjustment of its capacity in the 
Second Source Waterline by having its Board of Directors adopt a written notice ("Capacity 
Adjustment Notice") that is provided to the other Authority no later than March 1, 2012, after 
which date no further adjustment to capacity allocations in the Second Source Waterline may be 
made without the written agreement of both Authorities. Notwithstanding the foregoing, 
unless both Authorities agree in writing: (i) the Fort Bend Authority shall not increase or 
decrease its capacity in the Second Source Waterline pursuant to this Section more than 20% 
(i.e., the Fort Bend Authority's total capacity cannot exceed 70.8 MGD (59 MGD plus 11.8 
MGD) and cannot be less than 47.2 MGD (59 MGD minus 11.8 MGD)); and (ii) the West 
Authority shall not increase or decrease its capacity in the Second Source Waterline pursuant to 
this Section more than 20% (i.e., the West Authority's total capacity cannot exceed 104.4 MGD 
(87 MGD plus 17.4 MGD) and cannot be less than 69.6 MGD (87 MGD minus 17.4 MGD)). 

If one or both Authority(ies) modify their Pro Rata Shares in the Second Source 
Waterline pursuant to the provisions of the preceding paragraph, then, by June 1, 2012: (i) both 
Authorities shall execute an amended Exhibit A, acknowledging the revised capacities and Pro 
Rata Shares; and (ii) the West Authority shall cause an independent accounting firm to prepare 
a report showing the amount of the underpayment and/or overpayment (of principal and 
interest) for each Authority with respect to funds paid by each Authority for Second Source 
Waterline Realty Project Costs under Section 4.3(b), in light of the adjustment of Pro Rata Shares 
pursuant to the preceding paragraph ("Adjustment Report"). The Adjustment Report shall be 
provided to the Authorities and the Authorities shall "true-up" their payments to each other 
within 40 days of receipt of the Adjustment Report. 

Section 4.2. Timing. The West Authority Engineer has prepared an estimated 
schedule and an estimated budget for the Second Source Waterline Project Costs, a copy of 
which is attached as Exhibit E (the "Second Source Schedule and Budget"). By December 31st of 
each year, beginning in 2012 and continuing each year until the project is complete, the West 
Authority shall review and update the Second Source Schedule and Budget and provide such 
update to the Fort Bend Authority. The Authorities require that the Second Source Waterline be 
completed no later than June 30, 2019 (plus the time period equal to the HGSD Extension 
Period), and shall mutually exert their best faith efforts to meet this schedule. 

Section 4.3. Acquisition of Realty Interests. (a) The West Authority has to date 
acquired certain Realty Interests for the Second Source Waterline and additional Realty Interests 
are required for the project. To the extent not already acquired by the West Authority, the West 
Authority shall determine which Realty Interests are necessary or convenient for the Second 
Source Waterline and the West Authority shall acquire same in its name. 

(b) Previously Incurred and Future Costs. Within 40 days after receipt of an invoice 
from the West Authority, the Fort Bend Authority shall reimburse the West Authority for a 
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portion of the Incurred Second Source Waterline Realty Costs (plus a portion of the Operation 
and Maintenance Expenses previously incurred by the West Authority related to Second Source 
Waterline Realty Interests), based upon the Fort Bend Authority's Pro Rata Share of the Second 
Source Waterline, with :interest calculated as set forth :in the following paragraph. The "Fort 
Bend Authority's Pro Rata Share of the Second Source Waterline" for purposes of the preced:ing 
sentence only shall be its Pro Rata Share of the Second Source Waterline Segment 1 set forth in 
Exhibit A. (Such Exhibit A currently shows each Authority's Pro Rata Share of the Second 
Source Waterline Segment 1 as follows: 59.6% for the West Authority and 40.4% for Fort Bend 
Authority.) 

In paying the Incurred Second Source Waterline Realty Costs, the West Authority has 
used funds from its bond proceeds and from non-bond proceeds out of its Improvement Fund. 
The West Authority has paid Operation and Maintenance Expenses related to Second Source 
Waterline Realty Interests from its Operating Fund. The :interest due from the Fort Bend 
Authority pursuant to the preced:ing paragraph shall be calculated as follows: (i) for Incurred 
Second Source Waterline Realty Costs paid from West Authority bond proceeds, the interest 
rate shall be the Applicable Bond Interest Rate incurred by the West Authority and :interest shall 
run from the date(s) the costs were paid until the date of payment by the Fort Bend Authority; 
(ii) for Incurred Second Source Waterline Realty Costs paid from the West Authority's 
Improvement Fund, the interest rate shall be the TexStar Interest Rate and interest shall run 
from the date(s) the costs were paid until the date of payment by the Fort Bend Authority; and 
(iii) for Operation and Ma:intenance Expenses previously incurred by the West Authority 
related to Second Source Waterl:ine Realty Interests, the interest rate shall be the TexStar Interest 
Rate and interest shall run from the date(s) the costs were paid until the date of payment by the 
Fort Bend Authority. Estimates of the Incurred Second Source Waterline Realty Costs and the 
:incurred Operation and Maintenance Expenses related to Second Source Waterline Realty 
Interests are shown in Exhibit F. 

Included in Exhibit F is a cost estimate of $49,306,000 for the total Realty Costs of the 
Second Source Waterline, save and except the Incurred Second Source Waterline Realty Costs. 
No later than July 29, 2011: (i) the Fort Bend Authority shall pay the West Authority, for 
deposit :into the Second Source Waterline Fund, 30% of its portion of such estimate, based upon 
the Fort Bend Authority's Pro Rata Share of the Second Source Waterl:ine as set forth :in Exhibit 
A; and (ii) the West Authority shall deposit :into the Second Source Waterline Fund 30% of its 
portion of such estimate, based upon the West Authority's Pro Rata Share of the Second Source 
Waterline as set forth in Exhibit A. No earlier than 12 months after the Effective Date, and after 
the West Authority Engineer has re-evaluated the cost estimate for the total Realty Costs of the 
Second Source Waterline and made any adjustments thereto reasonably determined necessary 
by the West Authority, the West Authority shall invoice the Fort Bend Authority for 100% of its 
portion of such estimate based upon the Fort Bend Authority's Pro Rata Share of the Second 
Source Waterline as set forth in Exhibit A (as revised pursuant to Section 4.1), less the funds 
previously paid by the Fort Bend Authority pursuant to the second sentence of this paragraph, 
which invoice shall be due and payable with:in 60 days of receipt. At the same time that it sends 
such invoice to the Fort Bend Authority, the West Authority shall invoice itself for 100% of its 
portion of such estimate based on the West Authority's Pro Rata Share of each Second Source 
Waterline as set forth :in Exhibit A (as revised pursuant to Section 4.1), less the funds previously 
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paid by the West Authority pursuant to the second sentence of this paragraph, which invoice 
shall be due and payable within 60 days of receipt. 

The deposits made pursuant to the preceding paragraph, and related interest, shall only 
be applied to Second Source Waterline Realty Costs and (after all Second Source Waterline 
Realty Costs are paid) Second Source Waterline Project Costs. In the event the West Authority 
determines that there is insufficient money in the Second Source Waterline Fund to pay for the 
Second Source Waterline Realty Costs, the West Authority shall from time to time invoice 
(and/or cause a new estimate of the Second Source Waterline Realty Costs to be prepared) both 
Authorities for the amount of additional funds reasonably needed to pay for the Second Source 
Waterline Realty Costs, which invoices shall be due 40 days after receipt. For the purpose of 
calculating the payments for the estimate(s) described in the preceding paragraph and this 
paragraph (and only such estimate(s)), each Authority's Pro Rata Share of the Second Source 
Waterline shall be its Pro Rata Share of the Second Source Waterline Segment 1 set forth in 
Exhibit A (as revised pursuant to Section 4.1); provided, however, that at the time of the "true­
up" of costs made pursuant to the Second Source Final Accounting under Section 4.12(b), the 
Second Source Waterline Realty Costs (except for the Incurred Second Source Waterline Realty 
Costs) shall be allocated based on each Authority's Pro Rata Share of each Second Source 
Waterline Segment set forth in Exhibit A (as revised pursuant to Section 4.1). 

(c) Delinquency or Failure to Pay. 

(1) If the Fort Bend Authority fails to timely pay the invoice(s) to the West Authority 
for its share of the Realty Costs of the Second Source Waterline as described in Section 4.3(b), 
interest shall accrue for the benefit of the West Authority on the delinquent payment(s), as 
described in Section 11.l(c) of this Agreement. In addition to all other available remedies, after 
the West Authority has given the Fort Bend Authority written notice of the payment 
delinquency and a 40 day period in which to cure by paying the delinquent funds (and interest} 
to the West Authority, if the Fort Bend Authority remains delinquent thereafter, the West 
Authority may: (i) declare the Fort Bend Authority in default and thereafter cease acquiring 
Realty Interests for the Second Source Waterline; (ii) refrain from designing the Second Source 
Waterline or proceed with designing same but exclude the Fort Bend Authority's capacity from 
the Second Source Waterline such that all Water and capacity in the facilities are for the benefit 
of the West Authority or any third party; and/ or (iii) prohibit the Fort Bend Authority from 
receiving any Water or capacity in the Second Source Waterline. If the Fort Bend Authority is 
declared in default by the West Authority pursuant to the preceding sentence, the Fort Bend 
Authority shall not be entitled to a refund from the West Authority for any Fort Bend Authority 
payments made for Second Source Waterline Project Costs. 

(2) If the West Authority fails to timely pay the invoice(s) to itself for its share of the 
Realty Costs of the Second Source Waterline as described in Section 4.3(b), interest shall accrue 
for the benefit of the Fort Bend Authority on the delinquent payment(s), as described in Section 
11.l(c) of this Agreement. In addition to all other available remedies, after the Fort Bend 
Authority has given the West Authority written notice of the payment delinquency and a 40 
day period in which to cure by paying the delinquent funds to the West Authority (and paying 
the interest on the delinquent funds to the Fort Bend Authority), if the West Authority remains 
delinquent thereafter, the Fort Bend Authority may: (i) declare the West Authority in default 
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and thereafter assume the acquisition of Realty Interests for the Second Source Waterline; (ii) 
proceed with designing the Second Source Waterline but exclude the West Authority's capacity 
from the Second Source Waterline such that all Water and capacity in the facilities are for the 
benefit of the Fort Bend Authority or any third party; and/ or (iii) prohibit the West Authority 
from receiving any Water or capacity in the Second Source Waterline. If the West Authority is 
declared in default by the Fort Bend Authority pursuant to the preceding sentence, the West 
Authority shall not be entitled to a refund from the Fort Bend Authority for any West Authority 
payments made for Second Source Waterline Project Costs. 

(d) Legal Title to Realty Interests. Subject to the Fort Bend Authority's payment of 
its Pro Rata Share of all Realty Costs attributable to the Second Source Waterline, as required by 
this Article IV, the West Authority shall hold legal title to the Realty Interests previously and 
hereafter acquired by the West Authority related to the Second Source Waterline (including 
those described in the second sentence of the definition of Realty Interests) for the benefit of the 
Fort Bend Authority and itself based upon the Pro Rata Shares of each Authority in each Second 
Source Waterline Segment, and the Fort Bend Authority shall have an equitable interest in such 
Realty Interests to the extent of its Pro Rata Share in each Second Source Waterline Segment, 
shown in Exhibit A (as revised pursuant to Section 4.1; provided, however, with respect to the 
right-of-way designated on Exhibit A as "Surplus Right of Way" and all Realty Interests located 
east of the point where Second Source Waterline Segment 3 connects to Second Source 
Waterline Segment 1 (even if any of such. Realty Interests are not needed for the Second Source 
Waterline), the Fort Bend Authority's equitable interest shall be the Fort Bend Authority's Pro 
Rata Share of the Second Source Waterline Segment 1 set forth in Exhibit A (as revised pursuant 
to Section 4.1). 

Section 4.4. Engineering Cost Estimate. (a) Preparation. The West Authority shall 
cause the West Authority Engineer to prepare a cost estimate for the design of the Second 
Source Waterline which shall include total, estimated Engineering Costs (the "Second Source 
Engineering Cost Estimate"). 

(b) Review. After review and approval of the Second Source Engineering Cost Estimate 
by the West Authority, the West Authority shall provide the Second Source Engineering Cost 
Estimate to the Fort Bend Authority for review and comment. The Fort Bend Authority shall 
have 40 days to review and comment upon the estimate. The West Authority shall consider and 
respond to all comments received from the Fort Bend Authority, but the West Authority shall 
have the right to make a final decision regarding the amount of such estimate. 

Section 4.5. Funding. (a) Invoicing-Engineering Costs. Upon the West Authority's 
approval of the Second Source Engineering Cost Estimate, including any revisions resulting 
from the Fort Bend Authority's comments incorporated by the West Authority, the West 
Authority shall invoice the Fort Bend Authority for the Fort Bend Authority's Pro Rata Share of 
the Second Source Engineering Cost Estimate based on the Fort Bend Authority's Pro Rata 
Share of each Second Source Waterline Segment set forth in Exhibit A (as revised pursuant to 
Section 4.1). Without the Fort Bend Authority's written consent, the West Authority shall not 
send such invoice to the Fort Bend Authority prior to the earlier of (i) December 31, 2012 (plus 
the time period equal to the HGSD Extension Period), or (ii) April 1, 2016; provided, however, 
without the Fort Bend Authority's written consent, in no event shall the West Authority send 
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such invoice to the Fort Bend Authority unless either . the Fort Bend Authority or West 
Authority, or both, has sent a Reservation to Houston that requires Houston's Northeast Plant 
to be expanded. Such invoice shall be due and payable within 40 days of receipt by the Fort 
Bend Authority; provided, however, if the West Authority, in its sole discretion, agrees in 
writing to allow the Fort Bend Authority to provide a financial guarantee (for example, an 
acceptable letter of credit) in lieu of such cash payment, then such financial guarantee shall be 
provided within the 40 day period. The West Authority shall deposit the Fort Bend Authority's 
payment into the Second Source Waterline Fund, and shall separately account for such deposit. 
At the same time that it sends such invoice to the Fort Bend Authority, the West Authority shall 
invoice itself for its Pro Rata Share of the Second Source Engineering Cost Estimate based on the 
West Authority's Pro Rata Share of each Second Source Waterline Segment set forth in Exhibit 
A (as revised pursuant to Section 4.1). Such invoice shall be due and payable within 40 days of 
receipt by the West Authority; provided, however, if the Fort Bend Authority, in its sole 
discretion, agrees in writing to allow the West Authority to provide a financial guarantee (for 
example, an acceptable letter of credit) in lieu of such cash payment, then such financial 
guarantee shall be provided within the 40 day period. Such Authority payments shall only be 
applied to the Second Source Waterline Engineering Costs and (after all Second Source 
Waterline Engineering Costs are paid) to Second Source Waterline Construction Costs. In the 
event the West Authority determines that there is insufficient money in the Second Source 
Waterline Fund to pay for the Second Source Waterline Engineering Costs, the West Authority 
shall from time to time invoice (and/or cause a new Second Source Engineering Cost Estimate 
to be prepared) both Authorities for the amount of additional funds reasonably needed to pay 
for the Second Source Waterline Engineering Costs, which invoices shall be due 40 days after 
receipt. 

(b) Delinquency or Failure to Pay. 

(1) If the Fort Bend Authority fails to timely pay the invoice(s) to the West Authority 
for its share of the Second Source Waterline Engineering Costs as described in Section 4.S(a), 
interest shall accrue for the benefit of the West Authority on the delinquent payment(s), as 
described in Section 11.l(c) of this Agreement. In addition to all other available remedies, after 
the West Authority has given the Fort Bend Authority written notice of the payment 
delinquency and a 40 day period in which to cure by paying the delinquent funds (and interest) 
to the West Authority, if the Fort Bend Authority remains delinquent thereafter, the West 
Authority may: (i) declare the Fort Bend Authority in default and thereafter design (or re­
design) the Second Source Waterline such that all Water and capacity in the facilities are for the 
benefit of the West Authority or any third party; (ii) prohibit the Fort Bend Authority from 
receiving any Water or capacity in the Second Source Waterline; and/ or (iii) require the Fort 
Bend Authority to pay for all Engineering Costs incurred by the West Authority to re-design the 
Second Source Waterline so that the Fort Bend Authority's capacity is excluded from the Second 
Source Waterline. If the Fort Bend Authority is declared in default by the West Authority 
pursuant to the preceding sentence, the Fort Bend Authority shall not be entitled to a refund 
from the West Authority for any Fort Bend Authority payments made for Second Source 
Waterline Project Costs. 

(2) If the West Authority fails to timely pay the invoice(s) to itself for its share of the 
Second Source Waterline Engineering Costs as described in Section 4.S(a), interest shall accrue 
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for the benefit of the Fort Bend Authority on the delinquent payment(s), as described in Section 
11.l(c) of this Agreement. In addition to all other available remedies, after the Fort Bend 
Authority has given the West Authority written notice of the payment delinquency and a 40 
day period in which to cure by paying the delinquent funds to the West Authority (and paying 
the interest on the delinquent funds to the Fort Bend Authority), if the West Authority remains 
delinquent thereafter, the Fort Bend Authority may: (i) declare the West Authority in default 
and thereafter assume the design (or re-design) of the Second Source Waterline such that all 
Water and capacity in the facilities are for the benefit of the Fort Bend Authority or any third 
party; (ii) prohibit the West Authority from receiving any Water or capacity in the Second 
Source Waterline; and/ or (iii) require the West Authority to pay for all Engineering Costs 
incurred by the Fort Bend Authority to re-design the Second Source Waterline so that the West 
Authority's capacity is excluded from the Second Source Waterline. If the West Authority is 
declared in default by the Fort Bend Authority pursuant to the preceding sentence, the West 
Authority shall not be entitled to a refund from the Fort Bend Authority for any West Authority 
payments made for Second Source Waterline Project Costs. 

Section 4.6. Design. The Second Source Waterline Plans shall be prepared by the 
West Authority Engineer or other engineers selected by the West Authority. The Second Source 
Waterline Plans shall be subject to review and approval by the Fort Bend Authority.Engineer at 
the following intervals during design: 30% plan completion, 70% plan completion, and 
proposed final plans. The Fort Bend Authority Engineer shall have 30 days from the receipt of 
plans to provide written comments and/ or approval, which approval shall not be unreasonably 
withheld, conditioned, or delayed. If the Fort Bend A.uthority Engineer does not submit written 
comments or approval timely, approval shall be deemed to have been made. If the Fort Bend 
Authority Engineer provides written comments and the West Authority Engineer and the Fort 
Bend Authority Engineer (within 10 days of the West Authority Engineer's receipt of the 
written comments) fail to agree in writing on the resolution of those comments,.the comment 
and approval period for the Fort Bend Authority Engineer shall be extended an additional 30 
days (running from the expiration of the first 30 days). During such second 30-day period, each 
Authority agrees to reasonably consider the position of the other Authority. If no agreement 
can be reached by the Authorities within the second 30-day period, the West Authority shall 
have the right to make a final decision regarding the Second Source Waterline Plans. The 
Second Source Waterline Plans shall further be subject to review and approval by Houston, the 
TCEQ, and any other regulatory authorities with jurisdiction. The West Authority Engineer 
shall be responsible for securing all required approvals. 

Section 4.7. Construction Cost Estimate. (a) Preparation. After the Second Source 
Waterline Plans are at least 70% complete, as reasonably determined by the West Authority, the 
West Authority shall cause the West Authority Engineer to prepare a draft cost estimate for the 
construction of the Second Source Waterline, which shall include total estimated Construction 
Costs. Such draft estimate shall be provided to the Fort Bend Authority for review and 
comment and the Fort Bend Authority shall have 40 days to review and comment on the draft 
estimate. After the Second Source Waterline Plans are generally at least 90% complete, as 
reasonably determined by the West Authority, the West Authority shall cause the West 
Authority Engineer to prepare a final cost estimate for the construction of the Second Source 
Waterline, which shall include total estimated Construction Costs. (Such final cost estimate is 
referred to herein as the "Second Source Construction Cost Estimate.") 
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(b) Review. After review and approval of the Second Source Construction Cost 
Estimate by the West Authority, the West Authority shall provide the Second Source 
Construction Cost Estimate to the Fort Bend Authority for review and comment. The Fort Bend 
Authority shall have 40 days to review and comment upon the estimate. The West Authority 
shall consider and respond to all comments received from the Fort Bend Authority, but the 
West Authority shall have the right to make a final decision regarding the amount of such 
estimate. 

Section4.8. Funding. (a) Invoicing-Construction. Upon the West Authority's 
approval of the Second Source Construction Cost Estimate, including any revisions resulting 
from the Fort Bend Authority comments incorporated by the West Authority, the West 
Authority shall invoice the Fort Bend Authority for 70% of the Fort Bend Authority's Pro Rata 
Share of the Second Source Construction Cost Estimate based on the Fort Bend Authority's Pro 
Rata Share of each Second Source Waterline Segment set forth in Exhibit A (as revised pursuant 
to Section 4.1). Such invoice shall be due and payable within 90 days of receipt by the Fort Bend 
Authority; provided, however, if the West Authority, in its· sole discretion, agrees in writing to 
allow the Fort Bend Authority to provide a financial guarantee (for example, an acceptable 
letter of credit) in lieu of such cash payment, then such financial guarantee shall be provided 
within the 90 day period. The West Authority shall deposit the Fort Bend Authority's payment 
into the Second Source Waterline Fund, and shall separately account for such deposit. At the 
same time that it sends such invoice to the Fort Bend Authority, the West Authority shall 
invoice itself for 70% of its Pro Rata Share of the Second Source Construction Cost Estimate 
based on the West Authority's Pro Rata Share of each Second Source Waterline Segment set 
forth in Exhibit A (as revised pursuant to Section 4.1). Such invoice shall be due and payable 
within 90 days of receipt by the West Authority; provided, however, if the Fort Bend Authority, 
in its sole discretion, agrees in writing to allow the West Authority to provide a financial 
guarantee (for example, an acceptable letter of credit) in lieu of such cash payment, then such 
financial guarantee shall be provided within the 90 day period. 

No earlier than 12 months after the date of the invoices sent pursuant to the preceding 
paragraph, and after the West Authority Engineer has re-evaluated the Second Source 
Construction Cost Estimate and made any adjustments thereto reasonably determined 
necessary by the West Authority, the West Authority shall invoice the Fort Bend Authority for 
100% of the Fort Bend Authority's Pro Rata Share of the Second Source Construction Cost 
Estimate based on the Fort Bend Authority's Pro Rata Share of each Second Source Waterline 
Segment set forth in Exhibit A (as revised pursuant to Section 4.1), less the funds previously 
paid by the Fort Bend Authority pursuant to the preceding paragraph. Such invoice shall be 
due and payable within 90 days of receipt by the Fort Bend Authority; provided, however, if the 
West Authority, in its sole discretion, agrees in writing to allow the Fort Bend Authority to 
provide a financial guarantee (for example, an acceptable letter of credit) in lieu of such cash 
payment, then such financial guarantee shall be provided within the 90 day period. The West 
Authority shall deposit the Fort Bend Authority's payment into the Second Source Waterline 
Fund, and shall separately account for such deposit. At the same time that it sends such invoice 
to the Fort Bend Authority, the West Authority shall invoice itself for 100% of its Pro Rata Share 
of the Second Source Construction Cost Estimate based on the West Authority's Pro Rata Share 
of each Second Source Waterline Segment set forth in Exhibit A (as revised pursuant to Section 
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4.1), less the funds previously paid by the West Authority pursuant to the preceding paragraph. 
Such invoice shall be due and payable within 90 days of receipt by the West Authority; 
provided, however, if the Fort Bend Authority, in its sole discretion, agrees in writing to allow 
the West Authority to provide a financial guarantee (for example, an acceptable letter of credit) 
in lieu of such cash payment, then such financial guarantee shall be provided within the 90 day 
period. 

All Authority payments made pursuant to this Section shall only be applied to the 
Second Source Waterline Construction Costs and (after all Second Source Waterline 
Construction Costs are paid) to Second Source Waterline Project Costs. In the event the West 
Authority determines that there is insufficient money in such fund to pay for the Second Source 
Waterline Construction Costs, the West Authority shall from time to time cause a new Second 
Source Construction Cost Estimate to be prepared and shall invoice both Authorities for the 
amount of additional funds reasonably needed to complete the project, which invoices shall be 
due 90 days after receipt. 

(b) Delinquency or Failure to Pay. 

(1) If the Fort Bend Authority fails to timely pay the invoice(s) to the West Authority 
for its share of the Second Source Waterline Construction Costs, as described in Section 4.8(a), 
interest shall accrue for the benefit of the West Authority on the delinquent payment(s), as 
described in Section 11.1(c) of this Agreement. In addition to all other available remedies, after 
the West Authority has given the Fort Bend Authority written notice of the payment 
delinquency and a 60 day period in which to cure by paying the delinquent funds (and interest) 
to the West Authority, if the Fort Bend Authority remains delinquent thereafter, the West 
Authority may: (i) declare the Fort Bend Authority in default and thereafter design (or re­
design) and construct (or re-construct) the Second Source Waterline such that all Water and 
capacity in the facilities are for the benefit of the West Authority or any third party; (ii) prohibit 
the Fort Bend Authority from receiving any Water or capacity in the Second Source Waterline; 
and/ or (iii) require the Fort Bend Authority to pay for all Engineering Costs and Construction 
Costs incurred by the West Authority to re-design or re-construct the Second Source Waterline 
so that the Fort Bend Authority's capacity is excluded from the Second Source Waterline. If the 
Fort Bend Authority is declared in default by the West Authority pursuant to the preceding 
sentence, the Fort Bend Authority shall not be entitled to a refund from the West Authority for 
any Fort Bend Authority payments made for Second Source Waterline Project Costs. 

(2) If the West Authority fails to timely pay the invoice(s) to itself for its share of the 
Second Source Waterline Construction Costs, as described in Section 4.8(a), interest shall accrue 
for the benefit of the Fort Bend Authority on the delinquent payment(s), as described in Section 
11.1(c) of this Agreement. In addition to all other available remedies, after the Fort Bend 
Authority has given the West Authority written notice of the payment delinquency and a 60 
day period in which to cure by paying the delinquent funds to the West Authority (and paying 
the interest on the delinquent funds to the Fort Bend Authority), if the West Authority remains 
delinquent thereafter, the Fort Bend Authority may: (i) declare the West Authority. in default 
and thereafter assume the design (or re-design) and the construction (or re-construction) of the 
Second Source Waterline such that all Water and capacity in the facilities are for the benefit of 
the Fort Bend Authority or any third party; (ii) prohibit the West Authority from receiving any 
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Water or capacity in the Second Source Waterline; and/ or (iii) require the West Authority to 
pay for all Engineering Costs and Construction Costs incurred by the Fort Bend Authority to re­
design or re-construct the Second Source Waterline so that the West Authority's capacity is 
excluded from the Second Source Waterline. If the West Authority is declared in default by the 
Fort Bend Authority pursuant to the preceding sentence, the West Authority shall not be 
entitled to a refund from the Fort Bend Authority for any West Authority payments made for 
Second Source Waterline Project Costs. 

Section 4.9. Advertising for Bids. The West Authority shall cause the Second Source 
Waterline construction to be advertised for bids in one or more construction contracts. Upon 
the receipt of bids for the applicable portion of the project, the West Authority Engineer shall 
provide bid tabulation(s) and recommendation(s) of award to the Authorities. With respect to 
each construction contract, the Fort Bend Authority shall have 30 days from receipt of the bid 
tabulation and recommendation of award to provide comments to the West Authority 
regarding same. After such 30-day period, the West Authority may award the construction 
contract(s) for the Second Source Waterline (or any portion thereof), subject to its right to reject 
any or all bids for the construction of same. 

Section 4.10. Construction. The Second Source Waterline shall be constructed, and 
equipment, materials, supplies, and Realty Interest required in connection with the Second 
Source Waterline shall be acquired, in the name of the West Authority. The West Authority 
Engineer shall provide the Fort Bend Authority Engineer for its review and comment copies of 
all pay estimates and change orders for the Second Source Waterline. 

The West Authority shall install the Second Source Waterline, award construction 
contract(s) for same, and obtain payment and performance bonds for same all in accordance 
with the applicable competitive bidding laws and in full compliance with the rules and 
regulations of the TCEQ and any other agencies having jurisdiction. Notwithstanding any 
provision hereof, the West Authority may cause the Second Source Waterline to be installed 
pursuant to any project delivery method allowed by then-current law, including, without 
limitation, "design build," "construction manager at risk," or other method not requiring 
competitive bidding. Prior to commencing the construction of the Second Source Waterline, the 
West Authority shall comply with the following procedure: (1) the West Authority shall give 
the Fort Bend Authority written notice of the project delivery method that the West Authority 
desires to implement; (2) after receipt of such written notice, the Fort 
Bend Authority shall have 45 days to provide written comments to the West Authority 
regarding the project delivery alternatives; (3) the West Authority shall reasonably consider any 
such comments provided by the Fort Bend Authority during such 45 day period; and (4) 
thereafter, the West Authority shall, at its discretion, determine the project delivery method that 
will be implemented for the Second Source Waterline. 

If the Fort Bend Authority objects to a proposed change order in the amount of $150,000 
or more, it shall instruct the Fort Bend Authority Engineer to submit to the West Authority 
Engineer within 30 days of receipt of such proposed change order, the objections and the 
reasons for the objections. If the West Authority Engineer does not receive written objections 
from the Fort Bend Authority Engineer within 30 days of the Fort Bend Authority Engineer's 
receipt of such a proposed change order, approval shall be deemed to have been made. If the 
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Fort Bend Authority objects to such a proposed change order, and the Fort Bend Authority 
Engineer and the West Authority Engineer (within 10 days of the West Authority Engineer's 
receipt of the written objections) fail to agree in writing on the resolution of the objections, the 
review and comment period for the Fort Bend Authority shall be extended an additional 30 
days (running from the expiration of the first 30 days). During such second 30-day period, each 
Authority agrees to reasonably consider the position of the other Authority. If no agreement 
can be reached by the Authorities within the second 30-day period, the West Authority shall 
have the right to make a final decision regarding such change order. Notwithstanding the other 
provisions of this paragraph, the West Authority may declare such 30-day period(s) 
unnecessary and may proceed with a change order immediately if: (A) the West Authority 
determines that either (i) the change order is necessary to protect public health and safety or to 
prevent unreasonable economic loss, or (ii) the condition or situation necessitating the change 
order requires immediate action; and (B) the West Authority Engineer issues to the West 
Authority a written opinion in support of said /1 (i)" or /1 (ii)". 

Upon completion of the Second Source Waterline, and the West Authority's receipt of 
Certificate(s) of Substantial Completion and recommendations of final acceptance of the Second 
Source Waterline from the West Authority Engineer, the West Authority shall accept the Second 
Source Waterline for ownership and operation by executing Certificate(s) of Acceptance. The 
West Authority shall provide the Fort Bend Authority with the West Authority Engineer's 
Certificate(s) of Substantial Completion and recommendations of final acceptance, construction 
record drawings of the Second Source Waterline, and the Certificate(s) of Acceptance. 

Section 4.11. Engineering. The West Authority Engineer shall provide construction 
phase services and inspection for the Second Source Waterline, including advertising for bids, 
receiving and analyzing bids, recommending construction contract award, reViewing and 
approving all pay estimates, reviewing and submitting all change orders, reviewing and 
approving shop drawings, and recommending acceptance to the West Authority. 

Section 4.12. Funding. (a) Application of Funds. The West Authority shall cause its 
bookkeeper to provide monthly written reports of the application of each Authority's payment 
for Second Source Waterline Project Costs and of interest earnings related thereto. Except as 
otherwise provided in Section 4.3, the West Authority shall apply the funds received under 
Sections 4.3, 4.5, and 4.8 to the Authorities' respective Pro Rata Shares of the Second Source 
Waterline Project Costs based on each Authority's Pro Rata Share of each Second Source 
Waterline Segment set forth in Exhibit A (as revised pursuant to Section 4.1). Notwithstanding 
any provision hereof, the West Authority may (at its option) allocate any Global Second Source 
Waterline Consultant Cost between the Authorities according to each Authority's Pro Rata 
Share of the Second Source Waterline Segment 1 set forth in Exhibit A (as revised pursuant to 
Section 4.1). 

(b) Final Accounting. Within 60 days after completion and final acceptance of the 
Second Source Waterline, the West Authority shall cause its bookkeeper to provide all relevant 
financial information to an independent accounting firm for preparation of a final report 
confirming the total, actual Second Source Waterline Project Costs (the "Second Source Final 
Accounting"), which accounting shall include the cost of such final report. The Second Source 
Final Accounting shall state: (i) the difference between the estimated and the final, actual 
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Second Source Waterline Project Costs and (ii) the amount of any underpayment or 
overpayment made by the Fort Bend Authority, taking into account any interest earnings on the 
deposit of funds made by the Fort Bend Authority with the West Authority. The Second 
Source Final Accounting shall be provided to the Authorities within 135 days after completion 
and final acceptance of the Second Source Waterline. If the final actual Second Source Waterline 
Project Costs, as ~etermined by the Second Source Final Accounting, are more than the 
estimated Second Source Waterline Project Costs, resulting in an underpayment by the Fort 
Bend Authority (taking into account any interest earnings on the Fort Bend Authority's funds), 
the Fort Bend Authority shall pay to the West Authority the amount of the underpayment 
within 40 days of the date the Second Source Final Accounting is received by the Fort Bend 
Authority. If the final actual Second Source Waterline Project Costs are less than the estimated 
Second Source Waterline Project Costs, resulting in an overpayment by the Fort Bend Authority 
(taking into account any interest earnings on the Fort Bend Authority's funds), the West 
Authority shall pay the Fort Bend Authority the amount of the overpayment within 40 days of 
the West Authority's receipt of the Second Source Final Accounting. The Second Source Final 
Accounting shall also be used to determine if the West Authority overpaid or underpaid on the 
project and it shall adjust its books accordingly. 

Section 4.13. Ownership. Upon completion and final acceptance of the Second Source 
Waterline, the West Authority shall own and operate the Second Source Waterline in 
accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement. The West Authority shall hold 
legal title to the Second Source Waterline, subject to, so long as the Fort Bend Authority has 
paid its Pro Rata Share of the Second Source Waterline Project Costs for each Second Source 
Waterline Segment as described in Sections 4.3, 4.5, 4.8, and 4.12, the equitable interest of the 
Fort Bend Authority to the extent of its Pro Rata Share in each Second Source Waterline 
Segment, shown in Exhibit A (as revised pursuant to Section 4.1). 

Section 4.14. Fort Bend Authority Access. The West Authority shall allow the Fort 
Bend Authority's representatives to have access at all times to construction in progress of the 
Second Source Waterline and to make such inspections of construction as the Fort Bend 
Authority may deem necessary or desirable. The Fort Bend Authority shall also have full access 
to all of the West Authority's contracts, pay estimates, change orders, engineering 
recommendation of final acceptance, books, records, and all other documentation relating to the 
construction of the Second Source Waterline. 

Article V 
Joint Facilities Operation, Maintenance, Repair, and Sale/Disposa]/Encumbrance 

Section 5.1. Operation. The Responsible Authority shall maintain, repair, and 
operate the Joint Facilities for which it is responsible in accordance with accepted practices for 
the operation of similar type and size facilities and in compliance with the Regulatory 
Requirements. The Responsible Authority is authorized to control the flow of Water at the Joint 
Facilities for which it is responsible such that neither Authority receives more Water that it is 
entitled to under this Agreement. The Responsible Authority is expressly authorized to enter 
into operating agreements with any person or entity to operate or maintain the Joint Facilities 
for which it is responsible. Such person or entity shall be licensed and qualified under the rules 
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and regulations of the TCEQ to operate or maintain facilities similar to the applicable Joint 
Facilities, if such licensing and qualification is required by the Regulatory Requirements. 

The Responsible Authority, with respect to any Joint Facility for which it is responsible, 
shall take reasonable efforts to promptly repair Water leaks at such Joint Facility. In addition, 
each Authority shall take reasonable efforts to promptly repair Water leaks in its Distribution 
System. 

Section 5.2. Independent Contractor. As between the Authorities, and subject to the 
terms of this Agreement, the Responsible Authority shall be solely responsible for operation of 
the Joint Facilities for which it is responsible to provide water delivery service to the Authorities 
pursuant to this Agreement, and the Responsible Authority shall be an independent contractor 
in the operation of the applicable Joint Facilities. 

Section 5.3. Regulatory Compliance and Liability for Violations and Third Party 
Claims. 

(a) Generally. The Authorities recognize that the obligations of the Responsible 
Authority to operate or maintain the Joint Facilities for which it is responsible as provided in 
this Agreement are subject to all present and future Regulatory Requirements and the 
Authorities agree to cooperate to make such applications and to take such action as may be 
desirable to maintain compliance with the Regulatory Requirements. 

(b) Liability for violations. Liability for regulatory violations at a Joint Facility shall 
be shared by the Authorities based on their Pro Rata Shares in the affected Joint Facility at the 
time the violation occurred; provided, however, that if liability results from the gross negligence 
or intentional misconduct by either Authority, such Authority shall be solely responsible to the 
extent any loss is caused by its gross negligence or intentional misconduct. The Responsible 
Authority for the affected Joint Facility: (i) shall provide the Participant Authority with written 
notice of such regulatory violation within 30 days after the Responsible Authority receives 
written notice of the violation, and (ii) is authorized to litigate, arbitrate, settle, or otherwise 
resolve any such regulatory violation in any manner determined appropriate by the 
Responsible Authority. A Responsible Authority's failure to provide the notice required by 
"(i)" in the preceding sentence shall not void any obligation of the Participant Authority's to 
pay its share of the regulatory violation. 

(c) Liability for Third Party Claims. Liability for expenses or costs resulting from 
claims made by a third party in connection with a Joint Facility shall be shared by the 
Authorities based on their Pro Rata Shares in the affected Joint Facility at the time of the 
occurrence of the event which is the basis of the claim; provided, however, that if liability 
results from the gross negligence or intentional misconduct by either Authority, such Authority 
shall be solely responsible to the extent any loss is caused by its gross negligence or intentional 
misconduct. The Responsible Authority for the affected Joint Facility: (i} shall provide the 
Participant Authority with written notice of such third party claim within 30 days after the 
Responsible Authority receives written notice of the claim, and (ii) is authorized to litigate, 
arbitrate, settle, or otherwise resolve any such claim make by a third party in any manner 
determined appropriate by the Responsible Authority. A Responsible Authority's failure to 
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provide the notice required by "(iY' in the preceding sentence shall not void any obligation of 
the Participant Authority's to pay its share of the third party claim. 

( d) Application. If the event that forms the basis for the violation (with respect to 
Section 5.3(b)) or the third party claim (with respect to Section 5.3(c)) occurs during the time this 
Agreement is in effect, then the provisions of this Section 5.3 shall apply, regardless of whether 
the applicable Joint Facility has (or has not) been constructed. The provisions of this Section 5.3 
shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

Section 5.4. Agreement to Pay Operation and Maintenance Expenses. In 
consideration of the mutual benefits to be derived from the operation and maintenance of the 
Joint Facilities, the Authorities agree that each shall pay, at the time and in the manner 
established in this Agreement, their respective shares of Operation and Maintenance Expenses. 

To properly determine the amount of Water received by each Authority through the 
Joint Facilities, each Responsible Authority shall (as a Construction Cost of the applicable Joint 
Facility) install Joint Facility Meters at locations Ql, Q2, Q3, Q4, Q6, and Q10 shown on Exhibit 
D. Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement, the Engineering Costs, Construction 
Costs and Operation and Maintenance Expenses for the 110 Meter Station and Mission Bend 
Meter Station shall be shared by the Authorities based on their respective Pro Rata Shares of the 
Second Source Waterline Segment 1 set forth in Exhibit A (as revised pursuant to Section 4.1). 

Upon request from either Authority, the Authorities shall monthly provide each other 
with all meter reading information from meters (Joint Facilities Meters or otherwise (including 
meters that serve only one Authority or only one Authority's customers)) that are owned or 
operated by an Authority to enable the Authorities to properly determine the allocation of 
Water used by each Authority (and any lost Water) on a monthly basis at the Joint Facilities. 

Section 5.5. Allocation of Operation and Maintenance Expenses. Except as 
provided elsewhere in this Agreement, the Responsible Authority for any Joint Facility shall 
allocate Operation and Maintenance Expenses for a Joint Facility between the Authorities for 
payment as follows: 
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(a) For any Operation and Maintenance Expenses incurred prior to a Joint 
Facility going into service, the Responsible Authority shall allocate Operation 
and Maintenance Expenses based on each Authority's Pro Rata Share in the 
applicable Joint Facility; provided, however, for purposes of this sentence 
only, each Authority's Pro Rata Share of the Second Source Waterline shall be 
its Pro Rata Share of the Second Source Waterline Segment 1 set forth in 
Exhibit A (as revised pursuant to Section 4.1). 

(b) For Operation and Maintenance Expenses incurred after a Joint Facility is in 
service, each Authority shall pay a fraction of the monthly Operation and 
Maintenance Expenses, the numerator of which fraction shall be the total 
amount of Water received through the Joint Facility by such Authority for the 
calendar month and the denominator of which fraction shall be the total 
amount of Water received at the Joint Facility for the same calendar month. 
The Responsible Authority shall be responsible to reasonably determine the 
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amount of Water received by each Authority through the Joint Facility and 
the total amount of Water received at the Joint Facility based on data 
available from the Joint Facilities Meters, or other meters, set forth in Section 
5.4. The term "received" in this paragraph shall include: (i) Water actually 
received, and (ii) lost Water calculated pursuant to the formulas set forth in 
Exhibit D. Lost Water from flushing or line breaks in facilities that are not 
Joint Facilities shall be borne by the Authority that owns such facilities. 

Each month, the Responsible Authority shall provide a bill to each Authority for its respective 
share of the actual expenditures made from the applicable Joint Facilities Account (defined 
below) during the preceding month, as such expenditures are reflected on the Monthly Joint 
Facilities Account Report. The monthly bill to each Authority shall include a breakdown of 
Operation and Maintenance Expenses by category and an allocation of the total Operation and 
Maintenance Expenses for the month between the Authorities. The Responsible Authority shall 
bill itself for its share of Operation and Maintenance Expenses, as described in this Section, in 
the same manner as the Participant Authority is billed. The Responsible Authority shall 
promptly pay all vendors and other parties providing services and supplies for the Joint 
Facilities for which it is responsible. 

The list of waterlines used for the formulas on Exhibit D that include length and 
diameter of waterlines shall be updated annually to account for additional waterlines that an 
Authority may have constructed during the prior year. If the location of any of the Joint 
Facilities Meters shown on Exhibit Dis modified, the Authorities shall amend the Agreement to 
include revised formulas that are consistent with the cost-sharing method of the formulas set 
forth in Exhibit D. 

Section 5.6. Joint Facilities Account. The Responsible Authority shall establish a 
separate joint facilities account (the "Joint Facilities Account") for any Joint Facility for which it 
is responsible, which account shall be managed by the Responsible Authority. All funds 
received in payment of Operation and Maintenance Expenses for a Joint Facility shall be placed 
in a Joint Facilities Account, and all Operation and Maintenance Expenses shall be paid from the 
Joint Facilities Account. Funds in the Joint Facilities Account shall only be applied to payment 
of Operation and Maintenance Expenses for the applicable Joint Facility and shall be kept 
separate from any other funds owned or managed by the Responsible Authority. Funds in a 
Joint Facilities Account may be invested by the Responsible Authority and shall be continuously 
secured as required by the laws of the State of Texas applicable to the Authorities, as such laws 
may be amended from time to time. The Responsible Authority shall maintain a monthly 
accounting of all revenues to and expenditures from a Joint Facilities Account, which 
accounting shall be provided to the Authorities each month in the form of a written report (the 
"Monthly Joint Facilities Account Report"). The Responsible Authority is expressly authorized 
to enter into agreement(s) with any qualified bookkeeper to maintain the financial records of a 
Joint Facilities Account. 

Section 5.7. Funding the I oint Facilities Account. 

(a) Initial Deposit. In order to establish an initial balance in a Joint Facilities 
Account with which to pay Operation and Maintenance Expenses for a Joint Facility, the 
Responsible Authority and the Participant Authority shall each provide initial deposits to the 
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Joint Facilities Account so that the initial balance in the account is equal to one-fourth (1/ 4th) of 
the annual budget prepared for the Joint Facility in accordance with Section 5.11 below. The 
Responsible Authority shall calculate each Authority's initial deposit amount by multiplying 
the dollar amount of said one-fourth (1/ 4th) by each Authority's Pro Rata Share in the applicable 
Joint Facility. The Responsible Authority shall invoice itself and the Participant Authority for 
the initial deposit amount, as described in this subsection (a), and the payment shall be due 
within 40 days after receipt. 

(b) Deposit Accounting. The Responsible Authority shall separately account for the 
deposit received from each Authority. To the extent that interest or earnings accrue to an 
Authority's deposit amount, the Responsible Authority shall report such increase in the 
Monthly Joint Facilities Account Report. 

(c) Deposit Adjushnent. If the Responsible Authority determines, from time to 
time, that the collective amount of the Authorities' individual deposits should be increased, for 
timely payment of Operation and Maintenance Expenses, or decreased, if unnecessary surplus 
funds accumulate, the Responsible Authority shall either invoice each Authority for an 
additional amount, which shall be for each Authority's share of such increase based upon their 
respective shares of the initial deposit described in subsection (a) of this Section, or shall 
reimburse each Authority for its share of the surplus amount, on the same basis. Any invoice 
submitted to the Authorities under this subsection (c) shall be due and payable within 40 days 
after receipt. 

Section 5.8. Billing. Each month, the Responsible Authority shall prepare a written 
invoice to both Authorities to bill them for their respective shares of Operation and 
Maintenance Expenses calculated in accordance with the provisions of this Article V that were 
paid from the Joint Facilities Account in the prior month and shall submit such invoices to the 
Authorities. Such invoices shall be due and payable 40 days after receipt. 

Section 5.9. Payment. The Authorities shall make all payments under this Article V 
when due to the Responsible Authority and the Authorities shall make payment at the office of 
the bookkeeper for the Responsible Authority or at such other place as the Responsible 
Authority may from time to time designate by sixty (60) days prior written notice. An 
Authority's failure to timely submit payment under this Article V shall constitute a delinquency 
in payment and shall be handled in accordance with Section 11.1. 

Section 5.10. Covenant to Maintain Sufficient Income. Each Authority recognizes its 
duty to, and covenants and agrees that, at all times it shall establish and maintain, and from 
time to time adjust, the rates, fees, and charges for its services to its customers, to the end that 
the gross revenues and funds received from such rates, fees, and charges and any other lawfully 
available funds shall be sufficient at all times to pay the Authority's share of the Operation and 
Maintenance Expenses and any other charges (including, without limitation, Engineering Costs, 
Construction Costs, and Annual Debt Service Payments) due under this Agreement. 

Section 5.11. Annual Budget. In order to allow the Authorities to effectively plan from 
year to year during the time that a Joint Facility is in service, the Responsible Authority shall 
annually prepare an operating budget for a Joint Facility for the ensuing fiscal year; provided, 
however, for the first year that the Responsible Authority implements the budget, the budget 
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may apply only to a partial year. Before adopting a Joint Facilities budget, the Responsible 
Authority shall provide a draft of the Joint Facilities operating budget to the Participant 
Authority for review and comment at least 90 days prior to the beginning of the ensuing fiscal 
year; provided, however, for the first year that the budget is implemented, the Responsible 
Authority may provide the draft at least 90 days prior to the date the Responsible Authority 
intends to adopt the budget. The annual operating budget shall include all maintenance, repair, 
and rehabilitation work for the applicable Joint Facility (other than Major Rehabilitations) that is 
necessary for the continued efficient operation. The Participant Authority shall have 35 days 
from receipt of the draft Joint Facility operating budget to submit comments to the Responsible 
Authority. If the Participant Authority objects to the proposed budget, it shall submit to the 
Responsible Authority within such 35 day period a list of line items to which it objects and the 
reasons for such objections. Thereafter, each Authority shall reasonably consider the position of 
the other Authority and negotiate in good faith to address the objections for an additional 25 
days. If the Authorities do not agree to the budget within such 25 day period, the Responsible 
Authority shall have the right to make a final decision regarding the final Joint Facility 
operating budget. 

Section 5.12. Major Rehabilitations. (a) The Responsible Authority shall determine, 
in its reasonable judgment, whether a Major Rehabilitation is required in order to operate and 
maintain a Joint Facility for which it is responsible in accordance with the standard described in 
the first sentence of Section 5.1. 

(b) Upon its determination that a Major Rehabilitation must be made, the 
Responsible Authority shall cause the Responsible Authority Engineer to prepare a detailed 
description of the work to be undertaken (the "Work") and the estimated cost to have such 
Work performed, including engineering, construction, and contingencies (the "Rehab Cost"). 
The Responsible Authority shall provide the Work description and the estimated Rehab Cost 
information to the Participant Authority for review and comment. 

(c) The Participant Authority shall have 35 days from receipt to provide comments 
to the Responsible Authority upon the Work description and the Rehab Cost information. The 
Responsible Authority shall carefully consider any comments or objections received from the 
Participant Authority regarding the proposed Work or the estimated Rehab Cost and the 
Authorities shall attempt to resolve any differences. After such consideration and attempts, the 
Responsible Authority shall have the right to make a final decision regarding the Work to be 
performed. 

(d) The Responsible Authority shall invoice itself and the Participant Authority for 
the estimated Rehab Costs based upon each Authority's respective Pro Rata Share of the Joint 
Facility or Facilities that are the subject of the Work. Such invoices shall be due and payable 
within 40 days of receipt. The Responsible Authority shall deposit the Authorities' payments 
into a Joint Facilities Account and shall separately account for such deposits. The deposits shall 
only be applied to the Rehab Costs. In the event the Responsible Authority determines that 
such deposits, and interest accrued thereon, are insufficient to pay for the Work, the 
Responsible Authority shall from time to time cause a new estimate of the Rehab Cost to be 
prepared and shall invoice both Authorities for the amount of additional funds reasonably 
needed to complete the project, which invoices shall be due 40 days after receipt. The 
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Responsible Authority shall cause its bookkeeper to provide monthly written reports of the 
application of the Authorities' deposits to the Rehab Costs and of interest earnings on such 
deposits. 

(e) An Authority's failure to timely pay the invoice for its Pro Rata Share of the 
Rehab Costs shall constitute a delinquency in payment and shall be handled in accordance with 
Section 11.1. 

(f) The Responsible Authority shall cause the Work to be performed in accordance 
with the applicable competitive bidding laws and in full compliance with the rules and 
regulations of the TCEQ and any other agencies having jurisdiction. Within 60 days after 
completion and final acceptance of the Work, the Responsible Authority shall cause its 
bookkeeper to provide all relevant financial information to an independent accounting firm for 
preparation of a final report confirming the total, actual Rehab Cost (the "Rehab Final 
Accounting"), which accounting shall include the cost of such final report. The Rehab Final 
Accounting shall be provided to the Authorities within 135 days after completion and final 
acceptance of the Work. The Rehab Final Accounting shall state the difference between the 
estimated Rehab Cost and the actual Rehab Cost, and the amount of any underpayment or 
overpayment made by the Authorities, taking into account any interest earnings on the deposit 
of funds made by the Authorities. If the actual Rehab Cost, as determined by the Rehab Final 
Accounting, is more than the estimated Rehab Cost, the Authorities shall pay their respective 
Pro Rata Shares of the shortfall. The Responsible Authority shall invoice the Participant 
Authority for its Pro Rata Share of the shortfall, which invoice shall be due within 40 days of 
receipt. If the actual Rehab Cost, as determined by the Rehab Final Accounting, is less than the 
estimated Rehab Cost, resulting in an overpayment by the Authorities, the Responsible 
Authority shall pay the Participant Authority its Pro Rata Share of the overpayment within 40 
days of the Responsible Authority's receipt of the Rehab Final Accounting. 

(g) If the Responsible Authority determines that adequate funds are available in the 
applicable Joint Facilities Account to pay for the costs of the Major Rehabilitation, the 
Responsible Authority may utilize such funds for the Major Rehabilitation in lieu of the 
invoicing procedure set forth in subsections (d) and (f) of this Section; provided, however, if the 
Responsible Authority uses funds in the Joint Facilities Account for such purpose, the costs of 
the Major Rehabilitation shall continue to be shared based upon each Authority's respective Pro 
Rata Share of the Joint Facilities as set forth in subsection ( d) of this Section. 

(h) Notwithstanding the provisions of this Section, the Responsible Authority may 
reasonably shorten the comment period set forth in subsection (c) and the invoicing periods set 
forth in subsections (d) and (f) of this Section and may proceed with a Major Rehabilitation 
immediately if: (A) the Responsible Authority determines that either (i) the Major 
Rehabilitation is necessary to protect public health and safety or to prevent unreasonable 
economic loss, or (ii) the condition or situation necessitating the Major Rehabilitation requires 
immediate action; and (B) the Responsible Authority Engineer issues to the Participant 
Authority a written opinion in support of said /1 (i)" or /1 (ii)". 

Section 5.13. Capital Facilities Replacement. The Authorities shall establish a capital 
replacement account for each Joint Facility. The amount and timing of funding of this account 
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shall be mutually agreed to in writing by the Authorities after receiving feedback on this topic 
from the Joint Facilities Corrunittee described in Article VI based on a study to be conducted by 
the Fort Bend Authority Engineer and the West Authority Engineer. 

Section 5.14. Separate Facilities. Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement, 
neither the Fort Bend Authority nor the West Authority shall have any obligation to share any 
costs or responsibilities for an Authority's separate facilities or property that are not the subject 
of this Agreement. 

Section 5.15. Liability Insurance/Indemnity and Property/Boiler Machinery 
Insurance. With respect to each construction contractor for the Bellaire Pump Station or Second 
Source Waterline, design engineer, or operator (collectively, a "Consultant/Contractor") that 
hereafter performs work on any Joint Facility, the Responsible Authority for the Joint Facility 
for which it is responsible shall, within 90 days after the Effective Date, cause each 
Consultant/ Contractor to agree in writing: (i) to carry liability insurance that names both 
Authorities as an "additional insured," and (ii) to defend and indemnify both Authorities for 
the negligence of such Consultant/Contractor. 

The Responsible Authority shall keep insured such parts of the Joint Facility for which it 
is responsible as are customarily insured against by political subdivisions of the State of Texas 
operating like properties in similar locations under the same circumstances with a responsible 
insurance company or companies against losses, and to the extent customarily insured against 
by such political subdivisions, and to the extent such insurance is reasonably available. 
Notwithstanding the preceding sentence, a Responsible Authority shall not be required to carry 
insurance: (i) for a Joint Facility while any contractor engaged in the construction work of such 
Joint Facility is fully responsible for the Joint Facility or (ii) for underground water lines or 
appurtenances to such water lines. In the event of the Responsible Authority's failure to obtain 
and maintain the insurance required by this Section, the Participant Authority shall have the 
right but not the obligation to purchase such required insurance and thereafter receive credit for 
any premiums so paid against bills for Operation and Maintenance Expenses received from the 
Responsible Authority. All net proceeds of such insurance shall be applied to repair or replace 
the insured property that is damaged or destroyed. All such insurance policies shall be open to 
inspection of the Participant Authority and its representatives at all reasonable times. 

Section 5.16. Sale/Disposal of/Encumbrance of Joint Facilities or Realty Interests. 
Since the cost of the Joint Facilities and the Realty Interests will be shared by both Authorities 
pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, neither Authority shall sell, dispose of or encumber 
the Joint Facilities or Realty Interests as a whole or any portion thereof without first: (i) making 
a written determination that the Joint Facilities or Realty Interests that are intended to be sold, 
disposed of, or encumbered are surplus and are not needed for the efficient operation of the 
applicable Joint Facility(ies); and (ii) obtaining from the other Authority a written consent 
wherein the other Authority consents to the determination provided in "(i)" above (which 
consent will not be unreasonably withheld or delayed). The Authorities hereby consent and 
agree that the Realty Interests included in the right-of-way designated on Exhibit A as "Surplus 
Right of Way" are deemed surplus and are not needed for the efficient operation of any Joint 
Facilities and therefore the procedure required by the preceding sentence is not required for the 
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West Authority to sell, dispose of or encumber such Realty Interests. Notwithstanding the first 
sentence of this paragraph, a Responsible Authority may sell or dispose of any obsolete, worn 
out or surplus personal property or equipment that are no longer needed by that Responsible 
Authority for efficient operation of the applicable Joint Facility, as determined by the reasonable 
judgment of that Responsible Authority. The proceeds from any sale, disposal, or encumbrance 
occurring pursuant to the this paragraph shall be shared by the Authorities according to their 
Pro Rata Share of the Joint Facilities or Realty Interests that were sold, disposed of, or 
encumbered. This Section shall in no way prohibit an Authority from selling, disposing of, or 
encumbering real or personal property that is not the subject of a cost-sharing arrangement 
under the terms of this Agreement. 

Section 5.17. Title to and Responsibility for Water. With respect to connection(s) 
between a Joint Facility and a Participant Authority's Distribution System, title to, possession, 
and control of Water shall remain with the Responsible Authority until it passes through the 
Point of Delivery on the Participant Authority's Distribution System, where title to, possession, 
and control of the Water shall pass from the Responsible Authority to the Participant Authority. 
With respect to connection(s) between a Joint Facility where one Authority is the Responsibility 
Authority ("Initial Responsible Authority") and a Joint Facility where the other Authority is the 
Responsible Authority ("Subsequent Responsible Authority"), title to, possession, and control 
of Water shall remain with the Initial Responsible Authority until it passes through the 
connection, where title to, possession, and control of the Water shall pass from the Initial 
Responsible Authority to the Subsequent Responsible Authority. 

Article VI 
Joint Facilities Committee 

Section 6.1. Purpose. The purpose of the Committee is to provide a forum for 
representatives from both Authorities to meet on a routine basis to review and plan for the 
operations and improvements of the Joint Facilities, and any other matters pertaining to the 
Joint Facilities. 

Section 6.2. Membership. Each Authority shall appoint two of its directors to serve 
on the Committee and may appoint another director as an alternate representative in the event 
of the unavailability of either or both of its primary representatives. The Committee 
membership shall be comprised of these two appointed directors from each Authority. 

Section 6.3. Meetings. The Committee shall meet at least once a quarter, to the 
extent practicable. A simple majority of the Committee members shall constitute a quorum. 
Each Authority, or a Committee member representing an Authority, may invite others to attend 
committee meetings, including, without limitation, other Authority directors or the Authorities' 
engineers and operators. 

Section 6.4. Costs. Each Authority's costs in connection with Committee meetings 
(including, without limitation, costs of its directors or consultant(s) to prepare for or attend the 
Committee meetings) shall be borne by that Authority. 
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Section 6.5. Scope. The Committee may review and discuss all aspects of the Joint 
Facilities, including, but not limited to financial, budget, design, construction, operational, 
repair, and maintenance issues regarding the Joint Facilities. 

Section 6.6. Activation. The Committee shall not be organized or take any action 
until either Authority requests in writing to the other Authority that the Committee organize 
itself and become operational. The Authorities agree to cause the first meeting of the 
Committee to occur within 60 days of such written request. 

Article VII 
Lease of Capacity 

Section 7.1. General Statement. The West Authority's initial Pro Rata Share of the 
Upstream Portion of Segment 0 is zero. Under the Fort Bend Contract, the Fort Bend Authority 
purchased 19.5 MGD of capacity in the Fort Bend Contract Facilities. The West Authority may, 
at its option, seek water supply and transmission capacity in such Houston facilities, and in the 
Upstream Portion of Segment 0, for an interim period in order to serve certain future West 
Authority customers located near Segment 1A. The Fort Bend Authority is willing to lease a 
portion of its capacity in the Fort Bend Contract Facilities, and in the Upstream Portion of 
Segment 0, to the West Authority on the terms and conditions of this Article VII. 

Section 7.2. Houston Consent. The Authorities acknowledge and understand that 
before they may initiate the lease described in this Article VII, the Utility Official must consent 
in writing to the Fort Bend Authority's sale of water to the West Authority pursuant to the 
lease. The Fort Bend Authority has obtained such written consent from the Utility Official by 
letter dated November 22, 2010, from the Fort Bend Authority and executed by the Utility 
Official on December 8, 2010. 

Section 7.3. Capacity. The West Authority acknowledges that no capacity in such 
Houston facilities will be available for lease by the Fort Bend Authority to the West Authority 
until the Bellaire Pump Station, Phase 1 construction is complete and has been accepted by the 
Fort Bend Authority, as described in Section 3.6. Subject to the terms and conditions of this 
Article VII, the Fort Bend Authority hereby agrees to and shall lease an amount of 2.3 MGD 
peak rate/1.6 MGD non-peak rate of Water to the West Authority (the "Lease") out of: (i) the 
Fort Bend Authority's 19.5 MGD of capacity in such Houston facilities, and (ii) the Upstream 
Portion of Segment 0. The West Authority shall be entitled to receive Water under the Lease via 
its capacity in the Bellaire Pump Station, Phase 1, the Downstream Portion of Segment 0, and 
SegmentlA. 

Section 7.4 Initiation. At any time after completion and final acceptance of the 
Bellaire Pump Station, Phase 1, Segment 0, and Segment 1A by the Fort Bend Authority, but no 

. later than July l, 2014, the West Authority may, at its option, initiate the Lease by providing 60 
days prior written notice to the Fort Bend Authority of the West Authority's desire to initiate 
the Lease. 

311111_13 46 



Section 7.5. Price and Payment. The West Authority shall pay the Fort Bend 
Authority for the leased Water at the Lease Rate. The Fort Bend Authority shall invoice the 
West Authority on a monthly basis based upon the amount of leased Water, if any, that is 
received by the West Authority during the prior month, as measured by the applicable meters. 
Such invoice shall be due and payable within 40 days of receipt by the West Authority. 
Delinquent or failed payments shall be handled in accordance with the provisions of Section 
11.1. With respect to the Water, if any, received pursuant to the Lease, the West Authority shall 
also be responsible to pay its share of Operation and Maintenance Expenses for the Bellaire 
Pump Station, Segment lA, and Downstream Portion of Segment 0, pursuant to Article V of this 
Agreement. In connection with the "true-up" of payments for O&M Expenses under the Fort 
Bend Contract: (i) if the Fort Bend Authority receives a credit from Houston for overpayment, 
the Fort Bend Authority shall within 40 days of receiving the credit pay the West Authority the 
portion of such credit (including any interest included by Houston in the credit) that is 
attributable to leased Water received by the West Authority; (ii) if the Fort Bend Authority 
receives a charge from Houston for underpayment, the Fort Bend Authority shall invoice the 
West Authority the portion of such charge (including any interest included by Houston in the 
charge) that is attributable to leased Water received by the West Authority, which invoice will 
be due within 40 days of receipt. 

Section 7.6. Termination. The West Authority acknowledges and understands that 
the Fort Bend Authority will require the Water capacity that is subject to the Lease at some 
point in the future, currently estimated to be 2016 or 2017. Whenever the Fort Bend Authority 
identifies the point in the future when it will require the use of the Water capacity that is subject 
to the Lease, the Fort Bend Authority shall give the West Authority no less than 1 year prior 
written notice of the termination of the Lease. After the Fort Bend Authority has provided the 
West Authority the notice of termination required above, the Authorities agree to work 
cooperatively to establish a mutually acceptable date and process by which the West Authority 
will stop receiving Water pursuant to the Lease. Notwithstanding any provision hereot if the 
Fort Bend Authority acquires from Houston additional Water capacity (in excess of its current 
19.5 MGD) in the Fort Bend Contract Facilities, the Fort Bend Authority will not terminate the 
Lease with respect to such additional capacity until the Second Source Waterline is completed 
and delivering Water into either Segment 0 or the Bellaire Pump Station. For example, if the 
Fort Bend Authority acquires from Houston 2 MGD of additional Water capacity (for a total of 
21.5 MGD) in the Fort Bend Contract Facilities, the Fort Bend Authority will not terminate the 
Lease with respect to such 2 MGD until the Second Source Waterline is completed and 
delivering Water into either Segment 0 or the Bellaire Pump Station. 

Section 7.7. Additional Capacity. If the Fort Bend Authority determines, in its sole 
discretion and best interests, that it has available, unused Water capacity under the Fort Bend 
Contract, in addition to the capacity subject to the Lease, the Fort Bend Authority shall notify 
the West Authority of such available Water capacity and the West Authority may lease some or 
all of such available Water capacity on the same terms as the Lease. 

Section 7.8. Coordination. The Authorities, through the Committee, may hold 
periodic meetings to review Water capacities and needs and agree to cooperate and use their 
best efforts to avoid any interruption of Water delivered to.the West Authority pursuant to the 
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Lease and to confirm the West Authority's ability to release the Water capacity timely after 
receipt of notice of termination. 

Article VIII 
Water Supply From Houston 

Section 8.1. Provision of Water From Houston. The Authorities agree to receive 
Water from Houston through the Joint Facilities under the terms and conditions of the 
Authorities' respective Contracts, subject to any terms and conditions provided herein. 

Section 8.2. No Right to Capacity. The Authorities agree and acknowledge that 
neither Authority shall be entitled to use any of the other Authority's Water Demand Allocation 
under the Contracts. For example, and without limiting the preceding sentence, an Authority is 
only entitled to receive Water out of the Second Source Waterline in an amount that does not 
exceed its Water Demand Allocation in Houston's Northeast Plant. Nothing in this paragraph 
shall be construed to limit the West Authority's right to lease Water from the Fort Bend 
Authority under the terms of Article VII hereof. 

Section 8.3. Water Reservations. Pursuant to the terms of the Contracts, either 
Authority may submit Reservation(s) to Houston for the amount(s) of Water desired by such 
Authority. At least 45 days (unless a shorter period is agreed to by the West Authority Official 
or Fort Bend Authority Official, as applicable) prior to submitting a Reservation to Houston 
under the applicable Contract, each Authority shall notify the other Authority in writing of its 
intent to make such Reservation (including the amount, in MGD, of such intended Reservation) 
so that the other Authority may review such Reservation and determine when and if it would 
like to submit its own Reservation to Houston. However, failure to comply with the preceding 
sentence shall in no way void an Authority's Reservation~ Neither Authority shall prohibit or 
prevent the other Authority from making a Reservation; provided, however, the Authorities 
acknowledge that it is in the best interests of the Authorities to coordinate their Reservations, to 
the extent practicable. When Houston grants a Reservation under a Contract, the Authority that 
is a party to that Contract shall make any and all payments of capital costs attributable to said 
Reservation directly to Houston to the extent and in the manner provided for in the applicable 
Contract. 

If the West Authority seeks Water capacity in any Fort Bend Contract Transmission 
Facilities ("Transmission Capacity"), it shall first give the Fort Bend Authority the opportunity 
to acquire the Transmission Capacity by complying with the procedures described hereafter in 
this paragraph. First, with respect to the Transmission Capacity it seeks, the West Authority 
shall provide the Fort Bend Authority the written notice required by the second sentence of the 
preceding paragraph ("Transmission Capacity Notice"). Thereafter, the West Authority shall 
refrain from sending a Reservation to Houston for the Transmission Capacity if, during the 45 
day period described in the preceding paragraph, the Fort Bend Authority: (i) submits a 
Reservation to Houston (with a copy to the West Authority) for an amount, in MGD, that is no 
less than the Transmission Capacity described in the Transmission Capacity Notice; and (ii) 
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provides the West Authority with a written statement that the Fort Bend Authority will pay 
Houston for such Fort Bend Authority Reservation if the Utility Official gives written consent to 
such Reservation. If "(i}" or "(ii)" of the preceding sentence do not occur within the required 45 
day period, or if the Fort Bend Authority fails to pay Houston the full amount of such 
Reservation within the applicable 60 day period set forth in the second paragraph of Section 
3.03 of the Fort Bend Contract, then the West Authority may send a Reservation to Houston for 
the Transmission Capacity described in the Transmission Capacity Notice and may purchase 
same. All of the foregoing provisions in this paragraph shall automatically terminate, and be of 
no force and effect, upon the earlier of: (i) January 1, 2026; or (ii) the date the Second Source 
Waterline is completed and delivering Water into either Segment 0 or the Bellaire Pump Station. 

Nothing in the preceding paragraph shall be construed to limit or restrict in any way the 
West Authority from making Reservation(s) for, or purchase(s) of, Water capacity in: (i) 
Houston's East Water Plant or Houston's Northeast Water Plant; (ii) any of Houston's Water 
transmission facilities in which the West Authority has heretofore acquired Water capacity 
pursuant to the West Contract; or (iii) any of Houston's Water transmission facilities, except for 
the Fort Bend Contract Transmission Facilities. 

Section 8.4. Payments for O&M Expenses to Houston. The West Authority, in its 
capacity as Responsible Authority and using funds in the Joint Facilities Account held by the 
West Authority, shall make all payments of O&M Expenses due to Houston for the Water 
received from Houston into the Second Source Waterline. The payments to Houston for O&M 
Expenses that are attributable to Water lost in or along Joint Facility(ies) are shared by the 
Authorities pursuant to Section 5.5(b). 

Article IX 
Water Supply Reductions and Measuring Equipment 

Section 9.1. Water From Houston. If Houston is unable to deliver Water to the 
Authorities at a Joint Facility in the capacities agreed to in the West Contract and the Fort Bend 
Contract, the reduction in Water received by the Authorities shall be allocated between the 
Authorities in proportion to each Authority's average daily usage at the affected Joint Facility 
during the 60 days immediately preceding the reduction, as reasonably determined by the 
Responsible Authority Engineer. Notwithstanding the previous sentence, if an Authority 
determines that it is not at risk of violating subsidence district groundwater reduction 
requirements and determines that its customers have adequate water supply through other 
means, the Authority may, at its sole discretion, allow the other Authority to receive more 
Water than the other Authority would be entitled to under the preceding sentence. This Section 
only applies to Water received by an Authority through an affected Joint Facility and shall not 
apply to: (i) Water received by the Authorities at another Joint Facility that is not affected by 
water supply reductions from Houston, or (ii) non-Joint Facilities (for example, Water delivered 
by Houston to the West Authority at its Pump Station No. 1 located at 7215 Harms Road, 
Houston, Texas 77041). 

Section 9.2. Due to Joint Facility Malfunction or Failure. The Responsible 
Authority shall immediately notify the Participant Authority of any failure or malfunction at a 
Joint Facility that poses health and safety issues or causes Water supply interruptions at any 
Joint Facility. If there is a reduction in Water in the Joint Facility because of a failure or 
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malfunction of the Joint Facility, such reduction shall be shared by the Authorities in proportion 
to each Authority's average daily usage at the affected Joint Facility during the 60 days 
immediately preceding the reduction, as reasonably determined by the Responsible Authority 
Engineer. The preceding sentence only applies to Water received by an Authority through an 
affected Joint Facility and shall not apply to: (i) Water received by the Authorities at another 
Joint Facility that is not affected by water supply reductions due to a failure or malfunction of 
the affected Joint Facility, or (ii) non-Joint Facilities (for example, Water delivered by Houston to 
the West Authority at its Pump Station No. 1 located at 7215 Harms Road, Houston, Texas 
77041). 

Section 9.3. Measuring Equipment. The Joint Facility Meters installed by the 
Responsible Authority shall be properly equipped with meters and devices of standard type for 
measuring accurately the quantity of Water delivered under this Agreement, with ability to 
measure the quantity of Water delivered within the accuracy tolerance of 2%. During any 
reasonable hours, both Authorities shall have access to the Joint Facility Meters, and any other 
meters of either Authority, and to all records pertinent to determining the measurement and 
quantity of Water actually delivered. The reading of the Joint Facility Meter(s) for purposes of 
the calculation of any payment due to a Responsible Authority under this Agreement shall be 
done by the Responsible Authority. 

Section 9.4. Testing of Meters. The Responsible Authority shall maintain the 
Responsible Authority's Joint Facility Meters within the accuracy tolerance specified in Section 
9.3 by periodic tests. As an Operation and Maintenance Expense, the Responsible Authority 
shall conduct such tests at least once every 12 months. If the Participant Authority requests an 
additional test within 12 months, the Responsible Authority shall charge the Participant 
Authority an amount equal to the cost to perform such test, unless the test reveals that the 
equipment registers greater than 102% or less than 95% for a given flow rate, in which case the 
cost of the test shall be considered an Operation and Maintenance Expense. In addition, the 
Participant Authority shall have the right to independently check, at its own cost, said Joint 
Facility Meters at any time upon 48 hours written notification to the Responsible Authority, 
providing the opportunity for the Responsible Authority to witness such tests. 

Section 9.5. Results of Meter Tests. Should the test of the Joint Facility Meters in 
question show that the equipment registers either more than 102% or less than 95% of the Water 
delivered for a given flow rate, the total quantity of Water delivered to the Participant 
Authority will be deemed to be the average daily consumption as measured by the Joint Facility 
Meters when in working order, and the Joint Facility Meters shall be calibrated to the 
manufacturer's specifications (in the case of Venturi meters) or the A WW A specifications (for all 
other types of meters) for the given rate of flow, or replaced by the Responsible Authority with 
an accurate Joint Facility Meter that is tested before it is placed in service. This adjustment shall 
be for a period extending back to the time when the inaccuracy began, if such time is 
ascertainable; and if such time is not ascertainable, for a period extending back to the last test of 
the Joint Facility Meter or 120 days, whichever is shorter. As used in this paragraph, the 
expression "given rate of flow" means one of the following selected by the Responsible 
Authority for each calibration or test: (i) the total quantity of Water delivered during the 
preceding period (usually a calendar month) as reflected by the totalizer, converted to gallons 
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per minute; (ii) high, low, and intermediate rates of flow in the flow range, as reflected by the 
flow recording devices; or (iii) A WW A-specified test flow rates for that size and type of meter. 

Section 9.6. Disputes as to Testing. In the event of a dispute between the Participant 
Authority and the Responsible Authority as to the accuracy of the testing equipment used by 
Responsible Authority to conduct the accuracy test, an independent check may be mutually 
agreed upon between the Authorities to be conducted by an independent measuring equipment 
company suitable to both Authorities. The cost of such test will be at the Participant Authority's 
expense. The Responsible Authority shall accept the test results of the independent measuring 
equipment company, provided that the calibration procedure and test equipment are mutually 
agreeable to both Authorities. 

Article X 
TWDB Financing 

Section 10.1. TWDB Financing. If authorized by the TWDB, the West Authority 
intends to issue the First Series of WIF Bonds to the TWDB no later than December 31, 2012, to 
pay for a portion of the Second Source Waterline Realty Costs and/ or Second Source Waterline 
Engineering Costs. The West Authority makes no representation whether it will issue the First 
Series of WIF Bonds or any other bonds to the TWDB. The provisions of this Section shall be 
effective only if the West Authority issues the First Series of WIF Bonds by December 31, 2012. 

After paying for issuance costs and establishing any necessary reserve fund 
requirements, the West Authority shall apply the proceeds received by the West Authority from 
the First Series of WIF Bonds to the Second Source Waterline Realty Costs and/or Second 
Source Waterline Engineering Costs. After the Effective Date, when the West Authority 
calculates payments due from each Authority for each Authority's Pro Rata Share of the Second 
Source Waterline Realty Costs and/ or Second Source Waterline Engineering Costs, the West 
Authority shall take into account the proceeds, if any, received by the West Authority from the 
First Series of WIF Bonds. If the West Authority uses proceeds of the First Series of WIF Bonds 
to reimburse its Improvement Fund for costs paid for Incurred Second Source Waterline Realty 
Costs, the Fort Bend Authority shall, within 40 days of receipt of an invoice, pay the West 
Authority interest on the portion of the costs reimbursed to the Improvement Fund that are 
attributable to the Fort Bend Authority, which portion shall be calculated by multiplying the 
Fort Bend Authority's Pro Rata Share of the Second Source Waterline Segment 1 set forth in 
Exhibit A times the amount reimbursed to the Improvement Fund. The interest rate that shall 
apply to the calculation in the preceding sentence shall be the TexStar Interest Rate and interest 
shall run from the date(s) the costs were paid from the Improvement Fund until the date the 
Improvement Fund is reimbursed with First Series WIF Bonds. 
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For the Fort Bend Authority's share of the debt service on the First Series of WIF Bonds, 
the Fort Bend Authority shall pay the West Authority the Annual Debt Service Payment as 
described below: 

Annual Debt Service Payment= 

The Fort Bend Authority's Pro Rata Share of the Second Source Waterline 
Segment 1 set forth in Exhibit A (as revised pursuant to Section 4.1). (Such 
Exhibit A currently shows the Fort Bend Authority's Pro Rata Share of the 
Second Source Waterline Segment 1 as 40.4 %.) 

x 

The Annual Outstanding Debt Service for the First Series of WIF Bonds as of the 
first day of the West Authority fiscal year in which the West Authority calculates 
the Annual Debt Service Payment. (The Annual Debt Service Payment shall 
equal zero for any West Authority fiscal year in which the Annual Outstanding 
Debt Service is zero.) 

The term /1 Annual Outstanding Debt Service" shall mean the amount of debt service 
(principal and interest) actually owed by the West Authority during a West Authority fiscal 
year on the First Series of WIF Bonds. In determining the amount of principal and interest 
actually owed by the West Authority, the amount of any capitalized interest (and its interest 
earnings) attributable to the First Series of WIF Bonds and the amount of any debt service 
reserve fund (and its interest earnings) attributable to the First Series of WIF Bonds shall be 
taken into account. In connection with the interest earnings described in the preceding sentence 
that are attributable to the First Series of WIF Bonds, if rebate or yield reduction payments are 
due from the West Authority to the United States of America pursuant to the requirements of 
the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, or the Treasury Regulations promulgated 
thereunder, the West Authority shall be authorized to use proceeds out of such interest earnings 
to make such payments; and, if such proceeds are insufficient to make the necessary payment, 
then any shortfall may thereafter be included in the calculation of /1 Annual Outstanding Debt 
Service." 

The First Series of WIF Bonds will have two (2) debt service payments in each West 
Authority fiscal year and, accordingly, the Annual Debt Service Payment will be divided into 
two (2) payments in each fiscal year; provided, however, the fiscal year in which the First Series 
of WIF Bonds are issued may have less than two (2) debt service payments. Starting no later 
than the West Authority fiscal year beginning January 1, 2012, and continuing for each fiscal 
year thereafter, the West Authority shall calculate, according to the formula above, the Fort 
Bend Authority's Annual Debt Service Payment and shall provide the Fort Bend Authority with 
a remittance letter (the" Annual Letter'') within 60 days after the beginning of each fiscal year. 
The Annual Letter shall include for that fiscal year: (i) the calculation for the Fort Bend 
Authority's Annual Debt Service Payment; (ii) the calculation of the portion of Annual 
Outstanding Debt Service to be paid by the West Authority; and (iii) the dollar amounts, wiring 
instructions, and the remittance date ("Remittance Date") for each of the two portions of the 
Fort Bend Authority's Annual Debt Service Payment. Each of the two Remittance Dates shall be 
no more than 60 days prior to the date of the applicable actual debt service payment due from 
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the West Authority in each fiscal year. For any fiscal year in which the Annual Outstanding 
Debt Service is zero, the Annual Letter shall state that no payment is due from the Fort Bend 
Authority for such fiscal year. The Fort Bend Authority shall wire its Annual Debt Service 
Payment directly to the West Authority pursuant to the wiring instructions included in the 
Annual Letter on or before the Remittance Dates. 

The West Authority shall maintain each Annual Debt Service Payment in an interest­
bearing account, which interest (and any interest accrued on such interest) shall be credited by 
the West Authority against the Fort Bend Authority's next Annual Debt Service Payment. Each 
Annual Letter issued by the West Authority shall identify the amount of such interest credited 
to the Fort Bend Authority. 

The West Authority shall use the Annual Debt Service Payments, and interest accrued 
thereon in the interest-bearing account described in the preceding paragraph, only for the 
purpose of paying Annual Outstanding Debt Service on the First Series of WIF Bonds. 

The West Authority shall ensure that to the extent not required to pay rebate amounts to 
the United States, surplus or other remaining amounts of any reserve fund requirement 
associated with the First Series of WIF Bonds shall be applied upon the final maturities of 
principal of and interest on the First Series of WIF Bonds to pay principal of and interest then 
due, so that on final maturity of the First Series of WIF Bonds no balances will remain of any 
such reserve fund requirement. 

An Authority's failure to timely submit payment under this Article X shall constitute a 
delinquency in payment and shall be handled in accordance with ~ection 11.1. 

Section 10.2. Future TWDB Financing. If the West Authority, at its option, elects to 
issue additional bonds (other than the First Series of WIF Bonds) to the TWDB to finance Second 
Source Water Line Project Costs, the Authorities agree to negotiate in good faith to determine 
by separate written agreement a mutually agreeable cost-sharing arrangement for the debt 
service payments of such additional bonds that is consistent with the cost-sharing method and 
the procedure established in this Article for the First Series of WIF Bonds. 

Article XI 
Remedies and Term of Agreement 

Section 11.1. Remedies. (a) Subchapter I, Chapter 271 Local Gov't Code. The 
Authorities agree that this Agreement constitutes an agreement for the provision of goods and 
services and is subject to the provisions of the Subchapter I, Chapter 271, Texas Local 
Government Code, as amended, and any successor statute. 

(b) Default - General. Default shall occur only in the event either Authority fails to 
adhere to its respective obligations hereunder. In such event, the non-defaulting Authority 
shall give the defaulting Authority: (i} written notice describing such default and the necessary 
cure therefor; and (ii) the opportunity to cure such default within no less than 40 days of receipt 
of such notice. If the default is cured within the specified time period to the satisfaction of the 
non-defaulting Authority, then no further action shall be taken by the non-defaulting Authority. 
If the default is not cured within the specified time period to the satisfaction of the non-
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defaulting Authority, the non-defaulting Authority may initiate proceedings to pursue any 
available remedies existing at law or in equity. This subsection (b) shall not be considered as 
specifying the exclusive remedy or procedure for remedy for any default, and all remedies 
(except for termination of this Agreement) existing at law and in equity, including without 
limitation specific performance and mandamus, are to be available to either Authority .. If the 
Authorities, at their option, agree to submit their dispute to non-binding mediation, such 
mediation may occur prior to either Authority filing suit for default under this Agreement. 

(c) Default - Delinquency in Payment. If an Authority fails to pay any invoice or 
bill under this Agreement on or before its due date, the non-delinquent Authority may require 
the delinquent Authority to pay the non-delinquent Authority interest on the invoice or bill at 
the rate set forth in Chapter 2251, Texas Government Code, together with reasonable attorney's 
fees and collection costs incurred in the collection. If an Authority fails to pay any invoice or 
bill under this Agreement on or before its due date, the Responsible Authority (without having 
to comply with any of the terms of subsection (b), above) shall be authorized to provide the 
delinquent Authority at least 40 days written notice that the Responsible Authority intends to 
suspend the delivery of Water to the delinquent Authority, and if all delinquent invoices or bills 
remain unpaid after the expiration of said 40 days, the Responsible Authority may suspend 
delivery of Water until all delinquent bills and invoices have been paid in full. 

(d) Unconditional Obligation to Pay. All payments (including, without limitation, 
Annual Debt Service Payments and payments for Operation and Maintenance Expenses) due 
from one Authority to the other Authority pursuant to this Agreement shall be made without 
set-off, counterclaim, abatement, suspension, or diminution. This Agreement shall not 
terminate, nor shall an Authority have any right to terminate this Agreement nor be entitled to 
the abatement of any such payment or any reduction thereof for any reason, including without 
limitation acts or conditions of the other Authority that might be considered failure of 
consideration, eviction or constructive eviction, destruction or damage to the Joint Facilities, 
failure of the other Authority to perform and observe any agreement, whether expressed or 
implied, or any duty, liability, or obligation arising out of or connected with this Agreement, it 
being the intention of the Authorities that all sums required to be paid by one Authority to the 
other Authority shall continue to be payable in all events and the obligations of the Authorities 
hereunder shall continue unaffected, unless the requirement to pay the same shall be reduced or 
terminated pursuant to an express provision of this Agreement. 

If one Authority disputes the amount to be paid to the other Authority, the one 
Authority shall nonetheless promptly make payments as billed by (or otherwise due to) the 
other Authority, and if it is subsequently determined by agreement, regulatory decision, or 
court decision that such disputed payment should have been less, the other Authority will then 
make proper adjustments so that the one Authority will receive credit for its overpayments. 
Nothing contained in this subsection (d) shall be construed to release an Authority from 
performance of any of its obligations under this Agreement and in the event it shall fail to 
perform any such obligation, the other Authority may seek such relief under this Section as the 
other Authority deems necessary so long as same does not abrogate the other Authority's 
obligation to make payments (including, without limitation, Annual Debt Service Payments and 
payments for Operation and Maintenance Expenses) due to the defaulting Authority. 
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Section 11.2. Term. This Agreement shall commence on the date reflected on the first 
page hereof and shall expire at noon on January 1, 2080, unless terminated earlier pursuant to 
the mutual written consent of the Authorities. 

At such time as the Agreement is no longer in force and effect, if requested in writing by 
the West Authority, the Fort Bend Authority agrees to continue to provide Water service to the 
West Authority through the Joint Facilities for which the Fort Bend Authority is responsible 
upon the payment of reasonable rates and charges by the West Authority which take into 
account the capital payments paid by the West Authority to the Fort Bend Authority pursuant 
to this Agreement (and any supplements or amendments thereto) and the West Authority's 
equitable interests in such Joint Facilities. Upon the date that this Agreement is no longer in 
force and effect, the West Authority will own the right to use its Pro Rata Share of capacity in 
such Joint Facilities as such Pro Rata Share existed immediately prior to such date. The two 
immediately preceding sentences shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

At such time as the Agreement is no longer in force and effect, if requested in writing by 
the Fort Bend Authority, the West Authority agrees to continue to provide Water service to the 
Fort Bend Authority through the Joint Facilities for which the West Authority is responsible 
upon the payment of reasonable rates and charges by the Fort Bend Authority which take into 
account the capital payments paid by the Fort Bend Authority to the West Authority pursuant 
to this Agreement (and any supplements or amendments thereto) and the Fort Bend Authority's 
equitable interests in such Joint Facilities. Upon the date that this Agreement is no longer in 
force and effect, the Fort Bend Authority will own the right to use its Pro Rata Share of capacity 
in such Joint Facilities as such Pro Rata Share existed immediately prior to such date. The two 
immediately preceding sentences shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

Article XII 
General Provisions 

Section 12.1. Additional I oint Facilities. The Authorities acknowledge that it may be 
beneficial to them in the future to jointly construct one or more water mains that are not the 
subject of this Agreement. The Authorities agree to negotiate in good faith to determine by 
separate written agreement a mutually agreeable cost-sharing arrangement for such additional 
water mains that is consistent with the cost-sharing methods and the procedures established in 
this Agreement for the design, construction, acquisition, operation, maintenance, and repair of 
Joint Facilities. Notwithstanding the previous sentence, failure of the Authorities to reach a 
written agreement pursuant to the preceding sentence, shall not be considered a default or 
violation of this Agreement. 

Section 12.2. No Liability for General Obligations. Nothing in this Agreement shall 
have the effect of causing either Authority to assume, guarantee, or become in any way liable 
upon any bond, warrant, indebtedness, or other obligation of the other Authority. 

Section 12.3. Right of Entry. Each Authority shall have a right of entry at reasonable 
times and upon reasonable notice in, over, and across the lands, properties, and facilities 
comprising the Joint Facilities and Realty Interests for the purpose of making any inspections 
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permitted by this Agreement and for the purpose of performing any other functions or duties 
authorized by this Agreement. 

Section 12.4. Confidentiality of Plans. Unless consented to in writing by the Fort 
Bend Authority Official and the Fort Bend Authority Engineer, and except to the extent 
required by law, the West Authority shall keep the plans and specifications for Segment 0, 
Segment lA, and the Bellaire Pump Station confidential, except that the West Authority's 
directors, employees, agents and consultants may have access to same. Unless consented to in 
writing by the West Authority Official and the West Authority Engineer, and except to the 
extent required by law, the Fort Bend Authority shall keep the plans and specifications for the 
Second Source Waterline confidential, except that the Fort Bend Authority's directors, 
employees, agents and consultants may have access to same. 

Section 12.5. Authority Sale of Water to Third Party. An Authority may sell Second 
Source Waterline Water to which it is entitled under this Agreement to a Third Party, subject to 
obtaining any necessary approvals from Houston and subject to the procedures set forth below 
in this paragraph; provided, however, the procedures set forth below in this paragraph shall not 
be required for Second Source Waterline Water sold to a Third Party pursuant to a written 
contract that was executed by an Third Party and an Authority before March 1, 2012. Prior to 
entering into an agreement to sell ("Agreement to Sell") Second Source Waterline Water to a 
Third Party, the Authority intending to sell such Water ("Selling Authority") shall first offer in 
writing ("Written Offer") to the other Authority ("Non-Selling Authority") the option to 
purchase said Water on the same terms and conditions that the Selling Authority has offered to 
the Third Party. If, within 45 days of the Non-Selling Authority receiving the Written Offer, the 
Non-Selling Authority provides the Selling Authority with a written document accepting all of 
the terms of the Written Offer and agreeing in writing that the Non-Selling Authority will use 
said Water solely for users within its boundaries or its GRP (collectively, the "Acceptance 
Document''), then the Selling Authority shall not enter into the Agreement to Sell with the Third 
Party and shall instead sell said Water to the Non-Selling Authority according to the terms of 
the Written Offer. If the Non-Selling Authority fails to provide the Selling Authority with the 
Acceptance Document within 45 days of the Non-Selling Authority's receipt of the Written 
Offer, then the Written Offer shall be automatically deemed denied and the Selling Authority 
shall be authorized to sell the Water to the Third Party. 

For purposes of the preceding paragraph, any Water that a Selling Authority intends to 
sell (or that a Selling Authority sells) to a Third Party will be considered Second Source 
Waterline Water, regardless of whether it is: (i) Water out of the Second Source Waterline, or 
(ii) Water that an Authority is otherwise entitled to obtain from Houston under a Contract 
(including, without limitation, the 19.5 MGD that the Fort Bend Authority is currently entitled 
to under the Fort Bend Contract and the 28.25 MGD that the West Authority is currently 
entitled to under the West Contract). 

Neither Authority shall sell capacity that it owns in any Joint Facility(ies) without first 
obtaining the written consent of the other Authority, which consent may or may not be granted 
at the sole discretion of the other Authority. 
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Section 12.6. Force Majeure. If any Party is rendered unable, wholly or in part, by 
force majeure to carry out any of its obligations other than the payment of money under this 
Agreement, then the obligations of such Party, to the extent affected by such force majeure and 
to the extent that due diligence is being used to resume performance at the earliest practicable 
time, shall be suspended during the continuance of any inability so caused to the extent 
provided but for no longer period. Such cause, as far as possible, shall be remedied with 
reasonable diligence. The term "force majeure," as used in this Agreement, shall include, but 
not be limited to, acts of God, strikes, lockouts, or other industrial disturbances, acts of the 
public enemy, orders of any kind of the -government of the United States or any agency, . 
department or branch thereof, or the State of Texas or any agency, department, branch or 
political subdivision thereof (other than the Authorities), or any civil or military authority, 
insurrections, riots, epidemics, landslides, lightning, earthquakes, fires, hurricanes, storms, 
floods, washouts, droughts, arrests, restraint of government and people, civil disturbances, 
explosions, breakage or accidents to machinery, pipe-lines or canals, partial or entire failure of 
Water necessary for operation of the Joint Facilities, and any other inabilities of any Party to this 
Agreement, whether similar to those enumerated or otherwise, which are not within the control 
of the Party claiming such inability, and which such Party could not have avoided by the 
exercise of due diligence and care. It is understood and agreed that the settlement of strikes and 
lockouts shall be entirely within the discretion of any Party to this Agreement, and that the· 
above requirement that any force majeure shall be remedied with all reasonable dispatch shall 
not require the settlement of strikes and lockouts by acceding to the demand of the opposing 
party or parties when such settlement is unfavorable to it in the judgment of the affected Party. 

Section 12.7. Assignability. This Agreement shall not be assignable, in whole or in 
part, without first obtaining the written consent of the other Party, which consent may or may 
not be granted at the sole discretion of the other Party. 

Section 12.8. Successors and Assigns. This Agreement shall apply to all permitted 
successors and assigns of the Parties. 

Section 12.9. Regulatory Agencies. This Agreement shall be subject to all present and 
future valid laws, orders, rules and regulations of the United States of America and its agencies, 
the State of Texas and its agencies (including, without limitation, the TCEQ), and any regulatory 
body having jurisdiction (including, without limitation, Harris County and Houston). 

Section 12.10. No Additional Waiver Implied. The failure of a Party to insist, in any 
one or more instances, upon performance of any of the terms, covenants, or conditions of this 
Agreement shall not be construed as a waiver or relinquishment of the future performance of 
any such term, covenant, or condition by the other Party, but the obligation of the other Party 
with respect to such future performance shall continue in foll force and effect. 

Section 12.11. Modification. Except as otherwise expressly provided in this 
Agreement, the Agreement shall be subject to change or modification only with the written 
mutual consent of the Parties. 

Section 12.12. Parties in Interest. This Agreement shall be for the sole and exclusive 
benefit of the Parties and their permitted successors and assigns and shall not be construed to 
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confer any rights upon any third party nor upon any inhabitants located within the boundaries 
of the Parties nor upon any customers of the Parties. 

Section 12.13. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is determined to be 
invalid, illegal, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions of this Agreement remain in full 
force and effect. 

Section 12.14. Merger. This Agreement, including the exhibits that are attached to this 
Agreement which are hereby incorporated for all purposes, embodies the entire agreement 
between the Authorities relative to the subject matter of this Agreement. 

Section 12.15. Construction of Agreement; Consultant Fees. This Agreement shall not 
be construed in favor of or against any Authority on the basis that the Authority did or did not 
author this Agreement. Each Authority shall be solely responsible for its own legal fees, 
engineering fees, any other consultant fees incurred for review, negotiation, and finalization of 
the terms of this Agreement. 

Section 12.16. Consultation. The Parties each hereby acknowledge, represent, and 
warrant to each other: (i) each has had the opportunity to consult with legal counsel of its own 
choice and has been afforded an opportunity to review and negotiate this Agreement with 
assistance of its legal counsel, (ii) each has reviewed this Agreement, and fully understands its 
effects and all terms and provisions contained in the Agreement, and (iii) each has executed this 
Agreement of its own free will and volition. · 

Section 12.17. Approval or Consent. Whenever this Agreement requires or permits 
approval or consent to be given by a Party, the Parties agree that such approval or consent shall 
not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned, or delayed. 

Section 12.18. Applicable Law. This Agreement shall be governed and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas. 

Section 12.19. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed and delivered in any 
number of counterparts, each of which when so executed and delivered shall be deemed to be 
an original and all of which counterparts taken together shall constitute one instrument and 
agreement. 

Section 12.20. Notices. Notices required or permitted to be given by either Party to the 
other, including invoices, shall be deemed to have been received by the Party to whom they are 
sent upon receipt, or if sent by mail, within 3 days after deposit in the United States Mail, 
properly stamped and addressed. The Parties shall have the right from time to time to change 
their respective address and each shall have the right to specify as its address any other address 
by at least 15 days written notice to the other Party. Notices shall be in writing and, except for 
invoices, shall be delivered or mailed to the Parties at the following address: 
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If to West Authority, to: 

West Harris County Regional Water Authority 
cf o Allen Boone Humphries Robinson LLP 
3200 Southwest Freeway, Suite 2600 
Houston, Texas 77027 

If to Fort Bend Authority, to: 

North Fort Bend Water Authority 
cf o Allen Boone Humphries Robinson LLP 
3200 Southwest Freeway, Suite 2600 
Houston, Texas 77027 

Invoices shall be in writing and shall be delivered or mailed to the Authorities at the following 
addresses: 

If to West Authority, to: 

West Harris County Regional Water Authority 
cf o Myrtle Cruz, Inc. 
1621 Milam, 3rd Floor 
Houston, Texas 77002 

If to Fort Bend Authority, to: 

North Fort Bend Water Authority 
cf o AV ANTA Services 
5635 Northwest Central Dr., Suite 104E 
Houston, Texas 77092 

Section 12.21. Headings. The headings of each section of this Agreement are inserted 
solely for convenience and shall never be given effect in construing the duties, obligations, or 
liabilities of the Parties or any provision hereof, or in ascertaining the intent of any Party with 
respect to the provisions hereof. 

Section 12.22. Currency. All payments due from one Authority to the other Authority 
pursuant to this Agreement shall be made in any currency of the United States of America 
which, on the date of payment, is legal tender for the payrrient of debts due the United States of 
America. 

Section 12.23. Inspection of Records. Upon reasonable notice, each Authority shall 
allow the other Authority the opportunity to inspect its records for the purpose of evaluating 
the costs for which payments are requested or required hereunder. 

[SIGNATURE PAGES FOLLOW] 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Authorities have executed this Agreement in multiple 
copies, each of which shall be deemed to be an original, effective as of the Effective Date. 

... i 
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WEST HARRIS COUNTY 

RE~TY 
By: ·~ 
~nt, Board of Directors 



ATTEST 
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EXHIBITC 

I 

~NtMtH 
North Fort Bend Water Authorttv .... 

Incurred BeHaire Puma Station Aealtv Costs .... 
.... 
.... .-

Cost NFBWA WHCRWA 

27MGD 2.3 
92% 8% 

land Acauisition 1 $ 3932,699 $ 3 618 083 $ 314,616 
land Acauisition Sunnnrt Costs $ 51,467 $ 47349 $ 4,117. 
Enalneerina Sunnart2 $ 29,000 $ 26,680 $ 2320 
Leaal Suooort $ 41388 $ 38077 $ 3 311 
Subtotal $ 4054554 $ 3730189 $ 324364 
2 vears interest at 5.428643% (funded 6/30fl009\ $ 440,214 $ 404997 $ 35217 
Total Cost $ 4,494,768 $ 4,135,187 $ 359,581 

1. What was actuallv oald for orooertv, based on bookkeeolna records from Prooertv Acauisltion Services 
2. Estimate of 200 hrs at $145.00 per hour 
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EXHIBITE 
WEST HARRIS COUNTY REGIONAL WATER AUTHORITY 

SECOND SOURCE SCHEDULE AND BUDGET 

ITEM 

Engineering, surveying, geotechnical, environmental, 
material testing and construction management 

Right of way acquisition, legal, communication/coordination 

Easements and pump station sites 

Construction 

Total Cost 

s 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

ESTIMATED 
COST 

81,029,000 

6,721,000 

41,192,000 

413,477,000 

542,419,000 





Planning I PER 
RePump Station 
Central Pump Station 
40-Mile Water Alignment 

Surveying 
RePump Station 
Central Pump Station 
40-Mile Water Alignment 

Primary Control Survey (2 Phases) 
Aerial Survey (3 Phases) 
R.O.W. and Abstract Mapping (2 Phases) 

Public Relations 

Property Acquisitions 
RePump Station 
Central Pump Station 
40-Mile Water Alignment 

Environmental Report 
RePump Station 
Central Pump Station 
40-Mile Water Alignment 

Environmental Permitting 
40-Mile Water Alignment and Pump Stations 

Design 
RePump Station 
Central Pump Station 
40-Mile Water Alignment 

Advertise/Bid/Contracting Phase 
RePump Station 
Central Pump Station 
40-Mile Water Alignment 

Construction 
RePump Station 
Central Pump Station 
40-Mile Water Alignment 

Delivery of Surface Water To 
WHCRWA & NFBWA 

m 
0 
0 
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EXHIBITF 
ESTIMATES OF INCURRED SECOND SOURCE WATERLINE REALTY COSTS AND INCURRED SECOND SOURCE 

WATERLINE OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE EXPENSES 

ITEM COSTS 

Realty Costs and Operation and Maintenance Expenses through 

June 14, 2011 $ 9,082,000 

Estimated Realty Costs and Operation and Maintenance Expenses 
from June 15, 2011 to Effectve Date $ 110,000 

Estimated Realty Costs from Effective Date to Completion $ 49,306,000 

Estimated Total $ 58,498,000 





NFBWA Phase 2 Distribution Segments
Attachment D57. Census Tracts

Census Tract 6754
Census Tract 4543.02
Census Tract 6758
Census Tract 6732
Census Tract 6734
Census Tract 6733
Census Tract 4545.02
Census Tract 4551.02
Census Tract 6737
Census Tract 6801
Census Tract 4549
Census Tract 4550
Census Tract 4553
Census Tract 4538
Census Tract 4539
Census Tract 4540
Census Tract 4542
Census Tract 4548
Census Tract 6731.01
Census Tract 6731.02
Census Tract 4551.01
Census Tract 6726.01
Census Tract 6730.01
Census Tract 6730.03
Census Tract 6723.02
Census Tract 6727.02
Census Tract 6723.01
Census Tract 6726.02
Census Tract 6727.01
Census Tract 6730.02
Census Tract 6722
Census Tract 6724
Census Tract 6725
Census Tract 6728
Census Tract 6729
Census Tract 6735
Census Tract 6736



North Fort Bend Water Authority Population and Water Demand Projections
2018 SWIFT Application Attachment D59

Year Population Water Demand (MGD)
2018 238,600 42.94
2019 252,300 45.40
2020 263,300 47.39
2021 275,100 49.51
2022 285,700 51.42
2023 297,100 53.47
2024 307,400 55.33
2025 317,200 57.09
2026 322,900 58.10
2027 327,800 58.99
2028 332,300 59.81
2029 339,800 61.16
2030 347,900 62.61
2031 357,600 64.35
2032 367,600 66.16
2033 377,100 67.87
2034 385,200 69.32
2035 391,700 70.50
2036 397,600 71.56
2037 404,500 72.81
2038 412,000 74.16
2039 420,300 75.65
2040 429,200 77.25
2041 438,900 78.99
2042 439,600 79.11
2043 440,300 79.24
2044 441,000 79.37
2045 441,700 79.49
2046 442,400 79.62
2047 443,100 79.75
2048 443,800 79.87
2049 444,500 80.00
2050 445,200 80.13
2051 445,600 80.20
2052 446,000 80.26
2053 446,300 80.33
2054 446,700 80.40
2055 447,100 80.47
2056 447,500 80.53
2057 447,800 80.60
2058 448,200 80.67
2059 448,600 80.74
2060 449,000 80.80
2061 449,200 80.84
2062 449,300 80.87
2063 449,500 80.91
2064 449,700 80.94
2065 449,900 80.98
2066 450,100 81.01
2067 450,300 81.05
2068 450,500 81.08
2069 450,700 81.12
2070 450,900 81.15



Attachment E69
Commitment Schedule - SWSP

Loan Close Date SWIFT Annual Requested Amount
2018 $1,500,000
2019 $51,905,000
2020 $101,130,000
2021 $0
2022 $0
2023 $0
2024 $0
Total $154,535,000

$1,500,000

$51,905,000

$101,130,000

$0 $0 $0 $0
$0

$20,000,000

$40,000,000

$60,000,000
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$100,000,000

$120,000,000

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

NFBWA Surface Water Supply Project (formerly Second Source 
Transmission Line)(51022)

SWIFT Annual
Requested Amount
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EIGHTH SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE OF TRUST 
AUTHORIZING 

$339,480,000 NORTH FORT BEND WATER AUTHORITY 
WATER SYSTEM JUNIOR LIEN REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2018 

 
THIS EIGHTH SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE OF TRUST, dated as of 

____________, 2018 (the “Eighth Supplemental Indenture”), is made by and between 
NORTH FORT BEND WATER AUTHORITY (the “Authority”), a political subdivision 
of the State of Texas, and REGIONS BANK, in its capacity as trustee (together with any 
successor trustee hereunder, the “Trustee”), an Alabama state banking corporation with 
powers and authorized to do business in the State of Texas.  

W I T N E S S E T H: 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Senate Bill 1798, 79th Texas Legislature, which enacted 
Chapter 8813, Texas Special District Local Laws Code, as amended (the “Act”), the 
Authority was created as a political subdivision of the State of Texas; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Act, the Authority was created under and is 
essential to accomplish the purposes of Section 59, Article XVI, of the Texas 
Constitution, including the acquisition and provision of surface water and groundwater 
for residential, commercial, industrial, agricultural, and other uses, the reduction of 
groundwater withdrawals, the conservation, preservation, protection, recharge and 
prevention of waste of groundwater, and of groundwater reservoirs or their 
subdivisions, the control of subsidence caused by withdrawal of water from those 
groundwater reservoirs or their subdivision, and other public purposes stated in the 
Act; and 

WHEREAS, in order to secure the Bonds, Notes and Obligations, the Authority 
has entered into an Indenture of Trust, dated as of June 1, 2009, with the Trustee for the 
purpose of assigning and pledging to the Trustee the Trust Estate, which includes the 
Pledged Revenues and Pledged Funds, and providing that the Trust Estate be held by 
the Trustee to secure the payment of principal of and interest on all Bonds, Notes and 
Obligations; and 

WHEREAS, the Authority has determined to issue the Series 2018 Bonds (as 
defined herein) under said Indenture of Trust and this Eighth Supplemental Indenture 
to: (i) fund Project Costs (as defined herein) of the Project (as defined herein), (ii) fund 
the Junior Lien Reserve Fund Requirement (as defined herein) attributable to the Series 
2018 Bonds, and (iii) pay for the Costs of Issuance (as defined herein) of the Series 2018 
Bonds; and  

WHEREAS, the Authority has requested financial assistance from the TWDB (as 
defined herein) through the TWDB’s State Water Implementation Revenue Fund for 
Texas in connection with certain costs related to the Project; and 
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WHEREAS, the Authority desires to enter into this Eighth Supplemental 
Indenture for such purposes; and  

WHEREAS, the Authority also desires to define certain terms relating to the 
Bonds to be issued; and  

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, the acceptance by the 
Trustee of the trusts hereby created, the purchase and acceptance of the Bonds by the 
owners thereof from time to time, and other good and valuable consideration, the 
receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Authority and the 
Trustee do hereby mutually covenant and agree, for the equal and proportionate benefit 
of the respective owners from time to time of the Bonds, as follows: 

ARTICLE I 
DEFINITIONS AND STATUTORY AUTHORITY 

SECTION 101. Authority.  This Eighth Supplemental Indenture is 
supplemental to, and is adopted in accordance with the Indenture, including Articles III 
and X of the Indenture. 

SECTION 102. Definitions.   

A. Except as provided in subsection B of this Section, all defined terms 
contained in the Indenture shall have the same meanings in this Eighth Supplemental 
Indenture as such defined terms are given in Section 101 (as amended) of the Indenture, 
unless the context shall otherwise require. 

B. In addition to the terms defined elsewhere in this Eighth Supplemental 
Indenture, the following terms, as used in this Eighth Supplemental Indenture, shall 
have the following respective meanings but only for the purposes of the Bonds and this 
Eighth Supplemental Indenture. 

“Bonds or Series 2018 Bonds” shall mean the Bonds authorized by this Eighth 
Supplemental Indenture in the aggregate principal amount of $339,480,000 and 
designated North Fort Bend Water Authority Water System Junior Lien Revenue Bonds, 
Series 2018. 

 
 “City” shall mean the City of Houston, Texas. 
 
“Costs of Issuance or Series 2018 Cost of Issuance” shall mean any and all costs 

incurred in connection with the authorization, issuance, sale and delivery of the Bonds, 
which shall include all of the Authority’s out-of-pocket expenses in connection with the 
authorization, issuance, sale and delivery of the Bonds including, but not limited to, all 
financing, legal, financial advisory, printing and other expenses and costs of the 
Authority necessary to the issuance of the Bonds. 
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“Date of Delivery” shall mean __________, 2018. 

“Dated Date” shall mean ___________, 2018. 

“Escrow Agent” shall mean Compass Bank, an Alabama banking corporation, its 
successors and assigns. 

“Escrow Agreement” shall mean that certain Escrow Agreement between the 
Authority and the Escrow Agent, dated as of ______________, 2018, pertaining to the 
deposit of the proceeds of the Bonds. 

 

“Financing Agreement” means that certain Financing Agreement entered into 
between the Authority and the TWDB dated __________, 2018. 

“First Supplemental Indenture” shall mean the First Supplemental Indenture of 
Trust, dated as of June 1, 2009, authorizing the Series 2009 Bonds.  

“Fifth Supplemental Indenture” shall mean the Fifth Supplemental Indenture of 
Trust, dated as of August 15, 2016, authorizing the Series 2016A Bonds. 

“Fourth Supplemental Indenture” shall mean the Fourth Supplemental Indenture of 
Trust, dated as of November 1, 2015, authorizing the Series 2015 Bonds. 

“Indenture” shall mean the Indenture of Trust, dated as of June 1, 2009, between 
the Authority and the Trustee, as from time to time supplemented and amended, 
including by the First Supplemental Indenture, the Second Supplemental Indenture, the 
Third Supplemental Indenture, the Fourth Supplemental Indenture, the Fifth 
Supplemental Indenture, the Sixth Supplemental Indenture, the Seventh Supplemental 
Indenture, and this Eighth Supplemental Indenture. 

“Initial Bond” means the initial bond issued by the Authority being a single bond 
representing the entire principal amount of the Series 2018 Bonds. 

“Interest Payment Date” shall mean June 15 and December 15 of each year as 
applicable commencing June 15, 2019. 

“Issuance Date” shall mean the date of delivery of the Bonds to the initial 
purchaser or purchasers thereof against payment therefor. 

“NEWPP” shall mean the City’s water purification plant located at 12121 North 
Beltway 8 East (a.k.a. “North Sam Houston Parkway East”), Humble, Texas 77396.  
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“Project or Series 2018 Project” shall mean the realty interest acquisition, 
engineering, environmental work, and construction and acquisition for System 
improvements and capacity, including: (a) storage, pumping and transmission facilities 
(to be located in both Harris and Fort Bend Counties) to transport and convey water 
along some or all of the distance from the NEWPP to areas near, in and through the 
Authority’s boundaries; (b) storage, pumping, and transmission facilities to transport 
and convey water to Authority water customers; and (c) payments due to the City for 
expansion of the NEWPP. 

 
“Project Costs or Series 2018 Project Costs” shall mean payments for the Series 2018 

Project or Series 2018 Costs of Issuance and includes all design, acquisition, construction 
and reconstruction costs as those terms are generally understood in standard 
accounting practice as applied to water storage, pumping, treatment, transmission, and 
water well and other water supply facilities and capacity projects of the nature of the 
Project and without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the term shall include the 
purchase of equipment, property and rights in property, the cost of land, easements and 
rights-of-way, including damages to land and property, and all studies, engineering, 
surveying, environmental consultants, geotechnical consultants, financial consultants, 
administrative, auditing and legal expenses, as well as any such costs paid for with 
proceeds from or incurred in association with the issuance of interim financing as 
contemplated by and subject to the restrictions contained in Section 7 of the Financing 
Agreement, incurred in connection with the acquisition and construction of the Project. 

 
“Purchaser” or “TWDB” shall mean Texas Water Development Board, an agency 

of the State of Texas. 
 
“Second Supplemental Indenture” shall mean the Second Supplemental Indenture 

of Trust, dated as of September 1, 2010 authorizing the Series 2010 Bonds. 
 
“Series 2009 Bonds” shall mean the Bonds authorized by the First Supplemental 

Indenture in the aggregate principal amount of $142,400,000 and designated North Fort 
Bend Water Authority Water System Revenue Bonds, Series 2009.  

 
“Series 2010A Bonds” shall mean the Bonds authorized by the Second 

Supplemental Indenture in the aggregate principal amount of $41,215,000 and 
designated North Fort Bend Water Authority Water System Revenue Bonds, Series 
2010A. 

 
“Series 2010B Bonds” shall mean the Bonds authorized by the Second 

Supplemental Indenture in the aggregate principal amount of $18,785,000 and 
designated North Fort Bend Water Authority Water System Revenue Bonds, Series 
2010B (Direct Subsidy Build America Bonds). 
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“Series 2010 Bonds” shall mean the $41,215,000 North Fort Bend Water Authority 
Water System Revenue Bonds, Series 2010A and the $18,785,000 North Fort Bend Water 
Authority Water System Revenue Bonds, Series 2010B (Direct Subsidy Build America 
Bonds). 

 
“Series 2011 Bonds” shall mean the $81,100,000 North Fort Bend Water Authority 

Water System Revenue Bonds, Series 2011. 
 
“Series 2015 Bonds” shall mean the $8,670,000 North Fort Bend Water Authority 

Water System Junior Lien Revenue Bonds, Series 2015. 

“Series 2016A Bonds” shall mean the $9,420,000 North Fort Bend Water Authority 
Water System Junior Lien Revenue Bonds, Series 2016A.  

“Series 2016B Bonds” shall mean the $11,025,000 North Fort Bend Water 
Authority Water System Junior Lien Revenue Bonds, Series 2016B. 

“Series 2017 Bonds” shall mean the $87,360,000 North Fort Bend Water Authority 
Water System Revenue Bonds, Series 2017. 

“Seventh Supplemental Indenture” shall mean the Seventh Supplemental Indenture 
of Trust, dated as of November 1, 2017, authorizing the Series 2017 Bonds. 

“Sixth Supplemental Indenture” shall mean the Sixth Supplemental Indenture of 
Trust, dated as of October 1, 2016, authorizing the Series 2016B Bonds. 

“Third Supplemental Indenture” shall mean the Third Supplemental Indenture of 
Trust, dated as of October 1, 2011 authorizing the Series 2011 Bonds. 

“TWDB” shall mean the Texas Water Development Board. 

C. Articles and sections referred to by number shall mean the articles and 
sections of this Eighth Supplemental Indenture. 

SECTION 103. Interpretations.  All terms defined herein and all pronouns 
used in this Eighth Supplemental Indenture shall be deemed to apply equally to the 
singular and plural and to all genders.  The headings of the Sections in this Eighth 
Supplemental Indenture have been inserted for convenience of reference only and are 
not to be considered a part hereof and shall not in any way modify or restrict any of the 
terms or provisions hereof.  This Eighth Supplemental Indenture and all the terms and 
provisions hereof shall be liberally construed to effectuate the purposes set forth herein 
and to sustain the validity of the Series 2018 Bonds and the validity of the pledge and 
assignment of the Trust Estate to the Trustee to secure the payment of the Series 2018 
Bonds. 

[END OF ARTICLE I] 
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ARTICLE II 
AUTHORIZATION AND TERMS OF BONDS 

SECTION 201. Authorization, Principal Amount, Designation and Series.  
There is hereby authorized to be issued and shall be issued under and secured by the 
Indenture a Series of Bonds to be designated “North Fort Bend Water Authority Water 
System Junior Lien Revenue Bonds, Series 2018” in the aggregate principal amount of 
$339,480,000.  The Series 2018 Bonds are issued as Junior Lien Bonds under the 
Indenture. 

SECTION 202. Purposes.  The Series 2018 Bonds are being issued to be 
applied, together with other lawfully available funds, to (i) fund Project Costs of the 
Project; (ii) fund the Junior Lien Reserve Fund Requirement attributable to the Series 
2018 Bonds, and (iii) pay for the Costs of Issuance of the Series 2018 Bonds. 

SECTION 203. Initial Bond, Numbers, Date and Denomination of the 
Bonds. The Series 2018 Bonds shall initially be issued in the principal amounts, and 
bearing interest at the rates set forth below, as more fully described in Exhibit A 
attached hereto.  The Series 2018 Bonds shall mature, subject to prior redemption in 
accordance with this Eighth Supplemental Indenture, on December 15 in each of the 
years and in the amounts set out in the following schedule.  The Initial Bond shall be 
numbered IB-1 and all other Bonds shall be numbered in sequence beginning with R-1.  
The Series 2018 Bonds shall be dated the Dated Date.  In the event the book-entry only 
system referred to in Section 210 hereof is discontinued, Bonds delivered on transfer of 
or in exchange for other Bonds shall be numbered in the order of their authentication by 
the Trustee, shall be in the denomination of $5,000 or integral multiples thereof, and 
shall mature on the same date and bear interest at the same rate as the Series 2018 
Bonds in lieu of which they are delivered. 

SECTION 204. Interest Payment Dates, Interest Rates and Maturity of the 
Bonds.  The Bonds shall be issued, shall bear interest from the Date of Delivery at the 
rate or rates per annum set forth below, calculated on the basis of a 360-day year 
composed of twelve 30-day months and payable each Interest Payment Date until 
maturity or prior redemption, and shall mature and become payable on the dates and in 
the respective principal amounts as set forth below. 

[TO BE INSERTED] 

 Series 2018 Bonds 
Maturity 

December 
15 

Principal 
Amount 

Maturing ($) 

Interest 
Rate (%) 
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SECTION 205. Manner of Payment of Series 2018 Bonds.  Interest on the 
Bonds shall be paid as provided in the form of Series 2018 Bonds attached as Exhibit A 
hereto. 

SECTION 206. Form of Bonds, Comptroller’s Registration Certificate, and 
Trustee’s Authentication Certificate.  Subject to the provisions of the Indenture and this 
Eighth Supplemental Indenture, the form of the Bonds, the authentication certificate 
(which shall be affixed to the Bonds other than the Initial Bond), and the registration 
certificate of the Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas (which shall be 
affixed to the Initial Bonds only), and other matters to be printed on the Bonds shall be 
as shown on Exhibit A. 

The approving legal opinion of bond counsel may be printed on the Bonds over 
the certification of the Trustee, which may be executed in facsimile.  CUSIP numbers 
and any bond insurance legend also may be printed on the Bonds.  However, errors or 
omissions in the printing of the opinion or the CUSIP numbers shall have no effect on 
the validity of the Bonds. 

On the Issuance Date, the Initial Bond, being a single bond representing the 
entire principal amount of the Bonds, payable in stated installments to the Purchasers or 
its designee, executed by manual or facsimile signature of the President or Vice 
President and Secretary or Assistant Secretary of the Authority’s Board of Directors, 
approved by the Attorney General of Texas, and registered and manually signed by the 
Comptroller of Public Accounts of Texas, shall be delivered to the Trustee on behalf of 
the Purchaser.  Upon payment for the Initial Bond, the Trustee shall cancel the Initial 
Bond and deliver Bonds to DTC in accordance with Section 210 hereof. 

SECTION 207. Provisions for Issuance of Bonds.  The Bonds shall be 
executed by the Authority and, except for the Initial Bond which shall be registered by 
the Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas, shall be delivered to the 
Trustee.  Thereupon, the Bonds (except the Initial Bond registered by the Comptroller of 
Public Accounts of the State of Texas) shall be authenticated by the Trustee and 
delivered to the Purchaser or upon its order, but only upon receipt by the Trustee of the 
documents required under the Indenture.  After issuance and authentication of such 
Bonds, all subsequent Bonds issued in exchange therefor shall be authenticated and 
delivered by and at the designated corporate trust office of the Trustee. 

SECTION 208. Optional Redemption Prior to Maturity.  The Bonds are 
subject to redemption prior to maturity as set forth in the form of the Bonds in Exhibit 
A. 

SECTION 209. Appointment of Trustee as Paying Agent/Registrar.  The 
Trustee is hereby appointed as the paying agent/registrar for the Bonds (the “Paying 
Agent/Registrar”), and shall maintain books of registration for the Bonds in the State of 
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Texas at the Paying Agent/Registrar’s office, a copy which shall be kept current by the 
Trustee. 

SECTION 210. Book Entry Only System. 

A. There may be appointed a qualified financial institution to be a clearing 
agency and securities depository for the Bonds (the “Securities Depository”) in 
accordance with the provisions of this Section.  Any Securities Depository will accept 
and hold the Bonds as the Registered Owner thereof and will maintain a book-entry-
only system of recording the ownership and transfer of ownership of beneficial interests 
in the Bonds.  Any Securities Depository so appointed shall be qualified to act as such 
under Section 17A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, capable of 
properly discharging its duties in such capacity and acceptable to the Trustee and the 
Authority. 

B. Pursuant to the Authority’s approval of the Blanket Letter of 
Representation, the Depository Trust Company, (“DTC”) is hereby appointed to act as 
the initial Securities Depository for the Bonds.  The Purchaser, or the Authority on 
behalf of the Purchaser, shall cause the definitive bonds to be registered in the name of 
Cede & Co., and shall deposit such definitive bonds with the initial Securities 
Depository, Cede & Co., in the form of a single fully registered Bond for each maturity. 

With respect to the Bonds registered in the name of the Securities Depository or 
its nominee, the Authority and the Trustee shall be entitled to treat the person in whose 
name any Bond is registered in the Register as the absolute owner of such Bond for all 
purposes, and neither the Authority nor the Trustee shall have any responsibility or 
obligation to any person who holds a beneficial interest in the Bonds.  Without limiting 
the immediately preceding sentence, neither the Authority nor the Trustee shall have 
any responsibility or obligation with respect to (i) the accuracy of the records of the 
Securities Depository, its nominee, or any other person with respect to any ownership 
interest in the Bonds, (ii) the delivery to any person, other than an Owner as shown on 
the Register, of any notice with respect to the Bonds, or (iii) the payment to any person, 
other than an Owner as shown in the Register, of any amount with respect to the 
principal of or interest on the Bonds. 

Notwithstanding any other provision of the Indenture or this Eighth 
Supplemental Indenture to the contrary, so long as DTC or a successor Securities 
Depository is acting in such capacity with respect to the Bonds, all payments of 
principal of and interest on the Bonds, and all notices with respect to such Bonds, shall 
be made and given, respectively, in accordance with the written agreement between the 
Authority and the Securities Depository. 

C. If DTC or any successor Securities Depository appointed by the Authority 
determines to discontinue acting as Securities Depository for the Bonds and the 
Authority desires to continue the book-entry-only system of recording the ownership 
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and transfer of ownership of beneficial interests in the Bonds, the Authority shall 
appoint a successor Securities Depository for the Bonds.  Upon acceptance by the 
successor Securities Depository of its appointment and its duties and responsibilities in 
such capacity, the Authority shall, upon receipt from the preceding Securities 
Depository of a certified copy of its records of ownership of beneficial interests in the 
Bonds, provide a copy of such records to the successor Securities Depository and cause 
the Trustee to authenticate and deliver exchange Bonds, to the successor Securities 
Depository, registered in the name of the nominee of such successor Securities 
Depository. 

D. If the Authority shall have appointed a Securities Depository with respect 
to the Bonds and if any of the events specified below shall occur, the Trustee shall 
authenticate and deliver, in accordance with the Indenture and this Eighth 
Supplemental Indenture, to each person who appears on the records of the Securities 
Depository as an owner of a beneficial interest in such Bonds, an exchange Bond(s), in 
any authorized denomination, of the same type, maturity and interest rate and in the 
same aggregate principal amount as the Bonds beneficially owned by such person or 
entity, as set forth in such record:   

(a) If the Securities Depository determines not to continue to act as Securities 
Depository for the Bonds and the Authority is unable to locate a qualified successor 
Securities Depository;  

(b) If the Authority determines that the Securities Depository is incapable of 
properly discharging its duties as Securities Depository for the Bonds and is unable to 
locate a qualified successor Securities Depository; 

(c) If the Authority determines that it is in the best interest of the Authority to 
discontinue the book-entry system of registration of ownership of beneficial interest in 
the Bonds provided by the Securities Depository; or  

(d) If the Authority determines that the continuance of the book-entry system 
of registration of ownership of beneficial interest in the Series 2018 Bonds provided by 
the Securities Depository might adversely affect the interests of the owners of such 
beneficial interest in the Bonds. 

Upon the occurrence of any of the foregoing events, the Authority shall provide 
written notice of such event to the Securities Depository and to the Trustee. 

[END OF ARTICLE II] 
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ARTICLE III 
SOURCE OF PAYMENT; SPECIAL ACCOUNTS AND 

OTHER MATTERS RELATING TO BONDS 

SECTION 301. Source of Payment for Bonds . The Bonds are payable solely 
from, and secured by a lien on and pledge of, the Trust Estate.  The Owners of the 
Bonds shall never have the right to demand payment out of any funds raised or to be 
raised by ad valorem taxation or to have any claim against any property or revenues of 
the Authority except for Pledged Revenues and Pledged Funds described in the 
Indenture.  The Authority does not have the power to impose an ad valorem tax. 

The Series 2018 Bonds are issued as Junior Lien Bonds and, as such, the Parity 
Bonds, Parity Notes, and Parity Obligations issued under the Indenture are and shall be 
secured by a lien on Pledged Revenues that is senior and superior to the lien on Pledged 
Revenues securing the Junior Lien Bonds (including the Series 2015 Bonds, the Series 
2016A Bonds, the Series 2016B Bonds, the Series 2017 Bonds, and the Series 2018 Bonds), 
Junior Lien Notes, and Junior Lien Obligations; and Pledged Revenues shall first be 
applied to make all required deposits in and transfers to the Debt Service Fund and 
Debt Service Reserve Fund before making required deposits in and transfers to the 
Junior Lien Debt Service Fund and Junior Lien Debt Service Reserve Fund. 

SECTION 302. Confirmation of Funds and Establishment of Special 
Accounts. Pursuant to the terms of the Indenture, the existence of the following Funds 
and Accounts are hereby confirmed: 

A. Revenue Fund; 

B. O&M Fund, including the Reserve Account; 

C. Debt Service Fund; 

D. Debt Service Reserve Fund;  

E. Junior Lien Debt Service Fund;  

F. Junior Lien Debt Service Reserve Fund;   

G. Coverage Fund;  

H. Construction Fund; and 

I. Improvement Fund. 

The Revenue Fund, the Debt Service Fund, the Debt Service Reserve Fund, the 
Junior Lien Debt Service Fund, the Junior Lien Debt Service Reserve Fund, the Coverage 
Fund, and the Construction Fund, and all Accounts within them, shall be held and 
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maintained by the Trustee as provided in the Indenture.  The O&M Fund, including the 
O&M Reserve Account, and the Improvement Fund, and all Accounts within them, 
shall be held and maintained by the Authority as provided in the Indenture.  The 
Authority reserves the right to establish additional funds and accounts not held by the 
Trustee to the extent not inconsistent with the Indenture.  The Authority may from time 
to time request the Trustee to establish accounts and subaccounts within each Fund 
held by the Trustee for such purposes as may be provided in the Master Indenture or 
any supplement thereto. 

For the purpose of maintaining a separate accounting of amounts allocable to 
Bonds, within certain of the Funds confirmed above, the following Accounts are hereby 
established:   the Series 2018 Escrow Account and the Series 2018 Construction Account 
within the Construction Fund.   

Complete books and records shall be maintained with respect to the allocable 
amounts attributable to such Series 2018 Bonds maintained in each such account or sub-
account.  In addition, in order to facilitate compliance with the covenant set forth in 
Article IV hereof, the Authority reserves the right to request the Trustee to establish the 
Rebate Fund and rebate accounts within it to account for excess arbitrage profits and 
interest thereon that must be accounted for or rebated to the United States of America.  
In establishing and maintaining the foregoing accounts, maintaining all books and 
records relating thereto and making disbursements therefrom, particularly to the 
United States of America, the Trustee and the Authority may rely from time to time 
upon opinions issued by nationally-recognized bond counsel to the effect that any 
action by the Trustee and/or the Authority in reliance upon any interpretation of the 
Code or Regulations contained in such opinions will not cause interest on the Bonds to 
be includable in gross income for federal income tax purposes under existing law.   

SECTION 303. Confirmation of Junior Lien Reserve Fund and Coverage 
Fund Requirements.   

As established in the Fourth Supplemental Indenture, the Junior Lien Reserve 
Fund Requirement means for Junior Lien Bonds and Junior Lien Notes the average 
annual Aggregate Debt Service Requirements on the Junior Lien Bonds and Junior Lien 
Notes, calculated as of the date of issuance of each Series, which calculations shall take 
into account the issuance of the Series of Bonds, Notes, or Obligations being issued or 
incurred as of the date of calculation. 

Upon the issuance of the Series 2018 Bonds, the amount of the Junior Lien 
Reserve Fund Requirement for the Junior Lien Debt Service Reserve Fund is hereby 
established to be $___________.  The Junior Lien Reserve Fund Requirement will be 
satisfied through (i) the current cash balance in the Junior Lien Reserve Fund and 
investment earnings thereon, and/or (ii) a cash deposit of $___________ from the Series 
2018 Bond proceeds.   
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Upon the issuance of the Series 2018 Bonds, the amount of the Coverage Fund 
Requirement is hereby established and stipulated to be $___________, which is 25% of 
their Maximum Annual Debt Service Requirements, in accordance with the 
requirements of the Indenture.  The Coverage Fund Requirement will be satisfied 
through (i) the current cash balance in the Coverage Fund and investment earnings 
thereon, and (ii) a cash deposit of $_________ from the Improvement Fund. 

This Section 303 supersedes Section 303 in the Seventh Supplemental Indenture 
regarding the quantification of the Junior Lien Reserve Fund Requirement and 
Coverage Fund Requirement, and the methods of satisfaction thereof.  

SECTION 304. Application of Net Proceeds.  After payment of certain 
Project Costs of Issuance at the closing, net proceeds of the sale of the Bonds shall be 
applied as follows: 

A. To the Junior Lien Debt Service Reserve Fund, $________, which 
represents a portion of the Junior Lien Reserve Fund Requirement 
attributable to the Series 2018 Bonds.  The remaining $__________ will be 
satisfied through the cash balance in the Junior Lien Reserve Fund. 

B. The balance of the proceeds to the Authority for credit by the Authority to 
the Series 2018 Escrow Account, and, to the extent directed in writing by 
the TWDB, to the Series 2018 Construction Account.  Moneys deposited in 
the Series 2018 Escrow Account shall be applied as provided in the Escrow 
Agreement. 

SECTION 305. Use of Proceeds.  The Series 2018 Bonds are being issued to 
be applied, together with other lawfully available funds, to: (i) fund Project Costs of the 
Project; (ii) fund some or all of the Junior Lien Reserve Fund Requirement attributable 
to the Series 2018 Bonds, and (iii) pay for the Costs of Issuance of the Series 2018 Bonds.  
Any surplus proceeds from the Series 2018 Bonds remaining after completion of the 
Project, and after payment of the costs described in the preceding sentence, shall be 
used only for the following purposes, as approved by the TWDB’s executive 
administrator:  (i) to deposit into the Junior Lien Debt Service Fund for payment of 
principal and/or interest on the Series 2018 Bonds; or (ii) to fund other eligible costs as 
authorized by the TWDB.  The proceeds of the Series 2018 Bonds shall be secured in the 
manner prescribed by law and in compliance with the Public Funds Investment Act, 
Chapter 2256, Government Code, and the Public Funds Collateral Act, Chapter 2257, 
Government Code. 

 

 

[END OF ARTICLE III] 
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ARTICLE IV 
PROVISIONS CONCERNING FEDERAL INCOME TAX EXCLUSION  

SECTION 401. General Tax Covenant.  The Authority intends that the 
interest on the Series 2018 Bonds shall be excludable from gross income for federal 
income tax purposes pursuant to sections 103 and 141 through 150 of the Internal 
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), and the applicable Income Tax 
Regulations (the “Regulations”).  The Authority covenants and agrees not to take any 
action, or knowingly omit to take any action within its control, that if taken or omitted, 
respectively, would cause the interest on the Series 2018 Bonds to be includable in gross 
income, as defined in section 61 of the Code, for federal income tax purposes.  In 
particular, the Authority covenants and agrees to comply with each requirement of this 
Article; provided, however, that the Authority shall not be required to comply with any 
particular requirement of this Article if the Authority has received an opinion of 
nationally recognized bond counsel (“Counsel’s Opinion”) that such noncompliance will 
not adversely affect the exclusion from gross income for federal income tax purposes of 
interest on the Series 2018 Bonds or if the Authority has received a Counsel’s Opinion to 
the effect that compliance with some other requirement set forth in this Article will 
satisfy the applicable requirements of the Code and the Regulations, in which case 
compliance with such other requirement specified in such Counsel’s Opinion shall 
constitute compliance with the corresponding requirement specified in this Article. 

SECTION 402. No Private Use or Payment and No Private Loan Financing. 
The Authority shall certify, through an authorized officer, employee or agent that based 
upon all facts and estimates known or reasonably expected to be in existence on the 
date the Series 2018 Bonds are delivered, that the proceeds of the Series 2018 Bonds will 
not be used, in a manner that would cause the Series 2018 Bonds to be "private activity 
bonds" within the meaning of section 141 of the Code and the Regulations promulgated 
thereunder. Moreover, the Authority covenants and agrees that it will make such use of 
the proceeds of the Series 2018 Bonds including interest or other investment income 
derived from Series 2018 Bond proceeds, regulate the use of property financed, directly 
or indirectly, with such proceeds, and take such other and further action as may be 
required so that the Series 2018 Bonds will not be "private activity bonds" within the 
meaning of section 141 of the Code and the Regulations promulgated thereunder.  

 
SECTION 403. No Federal Guaranty. The Authority covenants and agrees 

that it has not and will not take any action, and has not knowingly omitted and will not 
knowingly omit to take any action within its control, that, if taken or omitted, 
respectively, would cause the Series 2018 Bonds to be “federally guaranteed” within the 
meaning of section 149(b) of the Code and the applicable Regulations thereunder, 
except as permitted by section 149(b)(3) of the Code and such Regulations.  

SECTION 404. The Series 2018 Bonds are not Hedge Bonds. The Authority 
covenants and agrees that it has not and will not take any action, and has not 
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knowingly omitted and will not knowingly omit to take any action, within its control, 
that, if taken or omitted, respectively, would cause the Series 2018 Bonds to be “hedge 
bonds” within the meaning of section 149(g) of the Code and the applicable Regulations 
thereunder. 

SECTION 405. No-Arbitrage Covenant.  The Authority shall certify, 
through an authorized officer, employee or agent that based upon all facts and 
estimates known or reasonably expected to be in existence on the date the Series 2018 
Bonds are delivered, the Authority will reasonably expect that the proceeds of the Series 
2018 Bonds will not be used in a manner that would cause the Series 2018 Bonds to be 
“arbitrage bonds” within the meaning of section 148(a) of the Code and the applicable 
Regulations promulgated thereunder.  Moreover, the Authority covenants and agrees 
that it will make such use of the proceeds of the Series 2018 Bonds including interest or 
other investment income derived from Bond proceeds, regulate investments of 
proceeds of the Series 2018 Bonds, and take such other and further action as may be 
required so that the Series 2018 Bonds will not be “arbitrage bonds” within the meaning 
of section 148(a) of the Code and the applicable Regulations promulgated thereunder.   

SECTION 406. Arbitrage Rebate. If the Authority does not qualify for an 
exception to the requirements of Section 148(f) of the Code relating to the required 
rebate to the United States, the Authority will take all necessary steps to comply with 
the requirement that certain amounts earned by the Authority on the investment of the 
“gross proceeds” of the Series 2018 Bonds (within the meaning of section 148(f)(6)(B) of 
the Code), be rebated to the federal government.  Specifically, the Authority will (i) 
maintain records regarding the investment of the gross proceeds of the Series 2018 
Bonds as may be required to calculate the amount earned on the investment of the gross 
proceeds of the Series 2018 Bonds separately from records of amounts on deposit in the 
funds and accounts of the Authority allocable to other bond issues of the Authority or 
moneys which do not represent gross proceeds of any bonds of the Authority, (ii) 
calculate at such times as are required by applicable Regulations, the amount earned 
from the investment of the gross proceeds of the Series 2018 Bonds which is required to 
be rebated to the federal government, and (iii) pay, not less often than every fifth 
anniversary date of the delivery of the Series 2018 Bonds or on such other dates as may 
be permitted under applicable Regulations, all amounts required to be rebated to the 
federal government.  Further, the Authority will not indirectly pay any amount 
otherwise payable to the federal government pursuant to the foregoing requirements to 
any person other than the federal government by entering into any investment 
arrangement with respect to the gross proceeds of the Series 2018 Bonds that might 
result in a reduction in the amount required to be paid to the federal government 
because such arrangement results in a smaller profit or a larger loss than would have 
resulted if the arrangement had been at arm’s length and had the yield on the issue not 
been relevant to either party. 
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SECTION 407. Information Reporting.  The Authority covenants and agrees 
to file or cause to be filed with the Secretary of the Treasury, not later than the 15th day 
of the second calendar month after the close of the calendar quarter in which the Series 
2018 Bonds are issued, an information statement concerning the Series 2018 Bonds, all 
under and in accordance with section 149(e) of the Code and the applicable Regulations 
promulgated thereunder.   

SECTION 408. Continuing Obligation.  Notwithstanding any other 
provision of this Eighth Supplemental Indenture, the Authority’s obligations under the 
covenants and provisions of this Article shall survive the defeasance and discharge of 
the Series 2018 Bonds. 

[END OF ARTICLE IV] 
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ARTICLE V 
CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING 

Attachment “A” to the Financing Agreement requires the Authority to comply 
with requirements for continuing disclosure of certain information on an on-going basis 
substantially in the manner required by the Rule and determined as if the TWDB were a 
participating underwriter within the meaning of the Rule.   

SECTION 501. Annual Reports.   The Authority shall provide annually to 
EMMA, within six months after the end of each fiscal year of the Authority ending in or 
after December 31, 2018, financial information and operating data with respect to the 
Authority of the general type included on Schedules 1 (footnote “b” only), 2, 3, 4, 5 and 
6 and Appendix “A” of the final official statement for the Series 2011 Bonds.  Any 
financial statements to be so provided shall be (1) prepared in accordance with the 
accounting principles described in the Authority’s financial statements included as 
Appendix “A” to the final official statement for the Series 2011 Bonds or such other 
accounting principles as the Authority may be required to employ from time to time 
pursuant to state law or regulation and (2) audited, if the Authority commissions an 
audit of such statements and the audit is completed within the period during which 
they must be provided.  If the audit of such financial statements is not complete within 
such period, then the Authority shall provide unaudited financial statements for the 
applicable fiscal year to EMMA within such six month period, and audited financial 
statements, if and when the audit report on such statements becomes available.  

If the Authority changes its fiscal year, it will notify EMMA of the change (and of 
the date of the new fiscal year end) prior to the next date by which the Authority 
otherwise would be required to provide financial information and operating data 
pursuant to this Article. 

The financial information and operating data to be provided pursuant to this 
Article may be set forth in full in one or more documents or may be included by specific 
reference to any document (including an official statement or other offering document) 
available to the public on the MSRB’s internet website or filed with the SEC. 

All documents provided to EMMA by the Authority pursuant to this Article 
shall be accompanied by identifying information as prescribed by the MSRB. 

The Authority shall notify EMMA, in a timely manner, of any failure by the 
Authority to provide financial information or operating data in accordance with this 
Section by the time required by this Section. 

SECTION 502. Material Event Notices. The Authority shall notify EMMA in 
a timely manner, not in excess of ten business days after the occurrence of the event, of 
any of the following events with respect to the Series 2018 Bonds, if such event is 
Material: 
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 A. Principal and interest payment delinquencies; 
B. Non-payment related defaults; 

 C. Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial  
difficulties; 

 D. Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial  
  difficulties; 
 E. Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform; 

F. Adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of 
proposed or final determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue 
(IRS Form 5701 TEB) or other material notices or determinations with 
respect to the tax status of the Bonds, or other events affecting the tax 
status of the Bonds; 

G. Modifications to rights of holders of the Bonds; 
H. Bond calls and tender offers; 

 I. Defeasances; 
J. Release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the Bonds;  

 K. Rating changes; 
L. Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the Authority or 

other obligated person within the meaning of the Rule; 
M. Consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving the 

Authority or other obligated person within the meaning of the Rule or the 
sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the Authority or other 
obligated person within the meaning of the Rule, other than in the 
ordinary course of business, the entry into a definitive agreement to 
undertake such an action or the termination of a definitive agreement 
relating to any such actions, other than pursuant to its terms; and 

N. Appointment of a successor or additional trustee or the change of name of 
a trustee. 

 
SECTION 503. Limitations, Disclaimers, and Amendments.  The Authority 

shall be obligated to observe and perform the covenants specified in this Article for so 
long as, but only for so long as, the Authority remains an “obligated person” with 
respect to the Series 2018 Bonds within the meaning of the Rule, except that the 
Authority in any event will give the notice required by Section 502 of any Series 2018 
Bond calls and defeasances that cause the Authority to be no longer such an “obligated 
person.” 

The provisions of this Article are for the sole benefit of the Owners of the Series 
2018 Bonds, and nothing in this Article, express or implied, shall give any benefit or any 
legal or equitable right, remedy, or claim hereunder to any other person.  The Authority 
undertakes to provide only the financial information, operating data, financial 
statements, and notices which it has expressly agreed to provide pursuant to this Article 
and does not hereby undertake to provide any other information that may be relevant 
or material to a complete presentation of the Authority’s financial results, condition, or 
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prospects or hereby undertake to update any information provided in accordance with 
this Article or otherwise, except as expressly provided herein.  The Authority does not 
make any representation or warranty concerning such information or its usefulness to a 
decision to invest in or sell Series 2018 Bonds at any future date. 

UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES SHALL THE AUTHORITY BE LIABLE TO THE 
OWNER OF ANY SERIES 2018 BOND OR ANY OTHER PERSON, IN CONTRACT OR 
TORT, FOR DAMAGES RESULTING IN WHOLE OR IN PART FROM ANY BREACH 
BY THE AUTHORITY, WHETHER NEGLIGENT OR WITHOUT FAULT ON ITS 
PART, OF ANY COVENANT SPECIFIED IN THIS ARTICLE, BUT EVERY RIGHT 
AND REMEDY OF ANY SUCH PERSON, IN CONTRACT OR TORT, FOR OR ON 
ACCOUNT OF ANY SUCH BREACH SHALL BE LIMITED TO AN ACTION FOR 
MANDAMUS OR SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE. 

No default by the Authority in observing or performing its obligations under this 
Article shall constitute a breach of or default under the Indenture for purposes of any 
other provision of the Indenture. 

Nothing in this Article is intended or shall act to disclaim, waive, or otherwise 
limit the duties of the Authority under federal and state securities laws. 

The provisions of this Article may be amended by the Authority from time to 
time to adapt to changed circumstances that arise from a change in legal requirements, 
a change in law, or a change in the identity, nature, status, or type of operations of the 
Authority, but only if (1) the provisions of this Article, as so amended, would have 
permitted Purchaser to purchase or sell the Series 2018 Bonds in the primary offering of 
the Series 2018 Bonds in compliance with the Rule, taking into account any 
amendments or interpretations of the Rule to the date of such amendment, as well as 
such changed circumstances, and (2) either (a) the Owners of a majority in aggregate 
principal amount (or any greater amount required by any other provision of the 
Indenture that authorizes such an amendment) of the Outstanding Series 2018 Bonds 
consent to such amendment or (b) a person that is unaffiliated with the Authority (such 
as nationally recognized bond counsel) determines that such amendment will not 
materially  impair the interests of the beneficial owners of the Series 2018 Bonds.  If the 
Authority so amends the provisions of this Article, it shall include with any amended 
financial information or operating data next provided in accordance with this Article an 
explanation, in narrative form, of the reasons for the amendment and of the impact of 
any change in the type of financial information or operating data so provided.  The 
Authority may also amend or repeal the provisions of this Article if the SEC amends or 
repeals the applicable provisions of the Rule or a court of final jurisdiction enters 
judgment that such provisions of the Rule are invalid, but in either case only if and to 
the extent that its right to do so would not prevent Purchaser from lawfully purchasing 
or selling Series 2018 Bonds in the primary offering of the Series 2018 Bonds. 
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SECTION 504. Definitions.   As used in this Article, the following terms 
have the meanings ascribed to such terms below: 

 “EMMA” means the MSRB’s Electronic Municipal Market Access system 
established by the MSRB. 

 “Material” shall have the meaning of such word as used under federal securities 
laws. 

“MSRB” means the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board. 

“Rule” means SEC Rule 15c2-12, as amended from time to time. 

“SEC” means the United States Securities and Exchange Commission. 

 [END OF ARTICLE V] 
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ARTICLE VI 
COVENANTS AND MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

SECTION 601. Notice.  Any notice, demand, direction, request, or other 
instrument authorized or required by the Indenture of or relating to the Series 2018 
Bonds to be given to or filed with the Authority, the Trustee, the Paying Agent, the 
Registrar, and the Authenticating Agent shall be deemed to have been given only upon 
receipt.  Any notice under or in connection with the Indenture of or relating to the 
Series 2018 Bonds shall be sent by personal delivery or first class mail, postage prepaid, 
to the address specified below or, to such other address as may be designated in writing 
by the applicable party below: 

Authority: North Fort Bend Water Authority 
    c/o Allen Boone Humphries Robinson LLP 

3200 Southwest Freeway, Suite 2600 
Houston, Texas  77027 

   Attention: President 
 
  Trustee: Regions Bank, Trustee 

3773 Richmond Avenue, Suite 1100 
Houston, Texas 77046 
Attention: Corporate Trust 
 

SECTION 602. Unclaimed Funds.  Any money held by any Fiduciary in 
trust for the payment and discharge of any of the Bonds shall be treated and handled in 
the manner provided in the Indenture; unless it is determined that any of such money is 
unclaimed property subject to Title 6 of the Texas Property Code, and then such money 
in question shall be treated as property subject to such Code. 

SECTION 603. Execution in Several Counterparts.  This Eighth 
Supplemental Indenture may be simultaneously executed in several counterparts, all of 
which shall constitute one and the same instrument and each of which shall be, and 
shall be deemed to be, an original. 

SECTION 604. TWDB Requirements.  During such time as the Series 2018 
Bonds are outstanding, the Authority shall comply with the following: 
 

A. The Series 2018 Bonds shall not be used by the Authority when 
sampling, testing, removing or disposing of contaminated soils and/or media 
at the Project site.  The Authority hereby covenants, to the extent permitted 
by law, to indemnify, hold harmless and protect the TWDB from any and all 
claims, causes of action or damages to the person or property of third parties 
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arising from the sampling, analysis, transport, storage, treatment and 
disposition of any contaminated sewage sludge, contaminated sediments 
and/or contaminated media that may be generated by the Authority, its 
contractors, consultants, agents, officials and employees as a result of 
activities relating to the Project.   

B. Until such time as the proceeds of the Series 2018 Bonds have been 
expended, the Authority shall submit to the TWDB the amounts of the Series 
2018 Bonds, if any, that were used to compensate historically underutilized 
businesses.   

C. The Authority shall not acquire any of the bonds issued by the 
TWDB to provide financing for the Series 2018 Bonds in an amount related to 
the Series 2018 Bonds. 

D. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, the 
TWDB may exercise all remedies available to it in law or equity. 

E. The Authority shall cause to be prepared an annual audit of its 
financial statements and shall file such audit with the TWDB’s executive 
administrator each year.  Each such audit shall be prepared in accordance 
with generally accepted auditing standards by a certified public accountant 
or licensed public accountant.  

F. The Authority shall, subject to the terms of Section 701(b) of the 
Indenture, maintain property insurance coverage for the above-ground 
structures of the Project.   

G. To the extent applicable to the Authority, the Authority shall abide 
by the TWDB’s rules and relevant statutes. 

SECTION 605. Compliance With Laws Prohibiting Contracts With 
Companies Boycotting Israel and Certain Companies Engaged in Business With Iran, 
Sudan or Foreign Terrorist Organizations.  Pursuant to Chapter 2270, Texas 
Government Code, and solely for purposes relating to Chapter 2270, Texas Government 
Code, the Trustee verifies that it does not boycott Israel and agrees that it will not 
boycott Israel through the term of this Eighth Supplemental Indenture.  Additionally, 
pursuant to Chapter 2252, Texas Government Code, the Trustee certifies that it is not a 
company that contracts with or provides supplies or services to a foreign terrorist 
organization, as defined by Section 2252.151(2), Texas Government Code, and has not 
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been identified as a company known to have contracts with or provide supplies or 
services to a foreign terrorist organization as identified on a list prepared and 
maintained under Section 806.051, 807.051, or 2252.153, Texas Government Code.  At 
the request of the Authority, the Trustee agrees to execute further written certifications 
as may be necessary or convenient for the Authority to establish compliance with these 
laws. 

 

 [END OF ARTICLE VI] 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Authority and the Trustee have caused this Eighth 
Supplemental Indenture to be signed and attested on their behalf by their duly 
authorized representatives, all as of the date first hereinabove written.” 

 

  NORTH FORT BEND  
  WATER AUTHORITY 
 
 
  By: ______________________________  
         Vice President 
ATTEST: 

 

By:___________________________ 
 Secretary 

 
Signature page for Eighth Supplemental Indenture of Trust 
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  REGIONS BANK, as Trustee 
 

 
  By: ______________________________ 
  Title: ____________________________ 
 

 
Signature page for Eighth Supplemental Indenture of Trust 
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EXHIBIT A 

The form of the Series 2018 Bonds, including the form of the Trustee’s 
Authentication Certificate, the Form of Assignment, and the form of the Comptroller's 
Registration Certificate for the Series 2018 Bonds to be initially issued, shall be 
substantially as follows, with such additions, deletions and variations, as may be 
necessary or desirable and not prohibited by this Eighth Supplemental Indenture, 
including any legend regarding bond insurance if such insurance is obtained: 

 (a) Form of Series 2018 Bond 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

STATE OF TEXAS 

NORTH FORT BEND WATER AUTHORITY 
WATER SYSTEM JUNIOR LIEN REVENUE BOND, SERIES 2018 

NUMBER        DENOMINATION 
R-         $                              
REGISTERED       REGISTERED        
 
INTEREST RATE:  MATURITY DATE:  DATED DATE:  CUSIP: 

      ___________, 2018 

Registered Owner: 

Principal Amount: 

NORTH FORT BEND WATER AUTHORITY, a political subdivision of the State 
of Texas, (herein the “Authority”), FOR VALUE RECEIVED hereby acknowledges itself 
indebted to and PROMISES TO PAY to the Registered Owner identified above, or 
registered assigns, on the Maturity Date specified above, unless redeemed prior thereto 
as provided in this bond, upon presentation and surrender of this bond at Regions 
Bank, or at the designated corporate trust office of the successor to Regions Bank, as 
Trustee under the hereinafter described Indentures, the Principal Amount identified 
above (or so much thereof as shall not have been paid or deemed to have been paid 
upon prior redemption) in lawful money of the United States of America, without 
charge for Trustee services, and to pay at the Interest Rate per annum identified above 
on each June 15 and December 15, commencing June 15, 2018 (each an “Interest Payment 
Date”), interest on the unpaid principal balance of this bond from the later of the 
delivery date of the Bonds or the most recent Interest Payment Date to which interest 
has been paid or duly provided for, calculated on the basis of a 360-day year composed 
of twelve 30 day months, until the maturity or redemption date of this bond, or until the 
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Authority’s obligation with respect to the payment of this bond has been satisfied.  All 
interest on this bond shall be payable by check or draft mailed by the Trustee to the 
Registered Owner of this bond at its address as it appears on the registration books 
required to be maintained for the bonds of this series by the Trustee, or in such other 
manner as may be mutually acceptable to the Trustee and the Owner of this bond.  
Interest on this bond payable on any Interest Payment Date shall be paid to the 
Registered Owner of this bond as of the 15th day of the calendar month immediately 
prior to the Interest Payment Date (the “Record Date”). 

THIS BOND IS ONE OF A SERIES OF BONDS designated “North Fort Bend 
Water Authority Water System Junior Lien Revenue Bonds, Series 2018” (the “Series 
2018 Bonds”) issued in the aggregate principal amount of $339,480,000.  The Series 2018 
Bonds pay interest on each Interest Payment Date until maturity or prior redemption. 

THE SERIES 2018 BONDS ARE ISSUED under and pursuant to an Indenture of 
Trust  dated June 1, 2009 (the “Indenture”), between the Authority and Regions Bank, as 
trustee (together with any successor, the “Trustee”), a First Supplemental Indenture of 
Trust dated June 1, 2009, between the Authority and the Trustee (the “First 
Supplement”), a Second Supplemental Indenture of Trust dated September 1, 2010 (the 
“Second Supplement”), a Third Supplemental Indenture of Trust dated October 1, 2011 
(the “Third Supplement”), a Fourth Supplemental Indenture of Trust dated November 1, 
2015 (the “Fourth Supplement”), a Fifth Supplemental Indenture of Trust dated August 
15, 2016 (the “Fifth Supplement”), a Sixth Supplemental Indenture of Trust dated October 
1, 2016 (the “Sixth Supplement”), a Seventh Supplemental Indenture of Trust dated 
November 1, 2017 (the “Seventh Supplement”), and an Eighth Supplemental Indenture of 
Trust dated __________, 2018, between the Authority and the Trustee (the “Eighth 
Supplement” and together with the Indenture, First Supplement, Second Supplement, 
Third Supplement, Fourth Supplement, Fifth Supplement, Sixth Supplement, and 
Seventh Supplement called the “Indentures”) to: (i) fund Project Costs of the Project (as 
defined in the Eighth Supplement); (ii) fund the Junior Lien Reserve Fund Requirement 
(as defined in the Eighth Supplement) attributable to the Series 2018 Bonds, and (iii) pay 
for the Costs of Issuance (as defined in the Eighth Supplement) of the Series 2018 Bonds. 

THIS BOND SHALL NOT BE VALID OR OBLIGATORY for any purpose or be 
entitled to any benefit of the Indentures unless this bond is registered by the 
Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas or is authenticated by the Trustee 
by due execution and dating of the authentication certificate endorsed hereon. 

THE SERIES 2018 BONDS ARE PAYABLE FROM AND SECURED BY a lien on 
and pledge of the Trust Estate as defined in the Indenture.  Owners of the Series 2018 
Bonds shall never have the right to demand payment of the Series 2018 Bonds or 
interest thereon out of any funds raised or to be raised by ad valorem taxation or to 
have any claim against any property or revenues of the Authority except for the 
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Pledged Revenues and Pledged Funds described in the Indenture.  The Authority does 
not have the power to levy or collect ad valorem taxes. 

THE SERIES 2018 BONDS ARE ISSUED AS JUNIOR LIEN BONDS and, as such, 
the Parity Bonds, Parity Notes and Parity Obligations issued under the Indenture are 
and shall be secured by a lien on Pledged Revenues that is senior and superior to the 
lien on Pledged Revenues securing the Junior Lien Bonds (including the Series 2015 
Bonds, the Series 2016A Bonds, the Series 2016B Bonds, the Series 2017 Bonds, and the 
Series 2018 Bonds), Junior Lien Notes and Junior Lien Obligations; and Pledged 
Revenues shall first be applied to make all required deposits in and transfers to the Debt 
Service Fund and Debt Service Reserve Fund before making required deposits in and 
transfers to the Junior Lien Debt Service Fund and Junior Lien Debt Service Reserve 
Fund.  

THE INDENTURE ALSO PERMITS THE AUTHORITY TO ISSUE OR INCUR 
Credit Agreements, Hedge Agreements and Other Authority Obligations, each as 
defined in the Indenture, in an unlimited aggregate principal amount which is and may 
be secured by a lien on and pledge of the Trust Estate on a parity with, senior to, or 
subordinate to the lien securing the Series 2018 Bonds. 

REFERENCE IS HEREBY MADE TO THE INDENTURES, copies of which are 
filed with the Trustee, for the full provisions thereof (including, among others, those 
with respect to the nature and extent of the rights, duties and obligations of the 
Authority, the Trustee and the Owners of the Series 2018 Bonds; the nature and extent 
of the covenants of the Authority to impose fees, user fees, rates and charges (including 
for the sale of water, for the pumpage of water from water wells, and for the 
importation of water into the Authority’s boundaries); the rights of the Authority to 
issue other bonds, notes and obligations; the terms upon which the Series 2018 Bonds 
are issued and secured and the modification or amendment of the Indentures), to all of 
which the Owners of the Series 2018 Bonds assent by the acceptance of the Series 2018 
Bonds. 

ON DECEMBER 15, 2028, OR ON ANY DATE THEREAFTER, the Authority 
shall have the option of calling the Series 2018 Bonds maturing on or after December 15, 
2028, for redemption prior to maturity, in inverse order of maturity, in whole or in part 
in integral multiples of $5,000 (but if less than all the Series 2018 Bonds of a single 
maturity are to be redeemed, those to be redeemed shall be selected by the Trustee by 
lot), for an amount equal to the principal amount redeemed plus accrued interest 
thereon to the date fixed for redemption. 

THE SERIES 2018 BONDS MAY BE REDEEMED IN PART only in integral 
multiples of $5,000.  If a Series 2018 Bond subject to redemption is in a denomination 
larger than $5,000, a portion of such Series 2018 Bond may be redeemed, but only in 
integral multiples of $5,000.  In selecting portions of Series 2018 Bonds for redemption, 
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the Trustee shall treat each Series 2018 Bond as representing that number of Series 2018 
Bonds of $5,000 denomination which is obtained by dividing the principal or maturity 
amount of such Series 2018 Bond by $5,000.  Upon surrender of any Series 2018 Bond 
for redemption in part, the Trustee, in accordance with the provisions of the Indentures, 
shall authenticate and deliver in exchange therefor a Series 2018 Bond or Series 2018 
Bonds of like maturity and interest rate in an aggregate principal or maturity amount 
equal to the unredeemed portion of the Series 2018 Bond so surrendered. 

NOTICE OF ANY REDEMPTION identifying the Series 2018 Bonds to be 
redeemed in whole or in part shall be given by the Trustee at least 30 days prior to the 
date fixed for redemption by sending written notice by United States mail, first class 
postage paid, to the registered owner of each Series 2018 Bond to be redeemed in whole 
or in part at the address shown on the Register.  The notice shall also be given by the 
Trustee at least 30 days prior to the date fixed for redemption by United States certified 
mail, return receipt requested, to each registered Securities Depository (as defined in 
the Indentures).  Such notice shall identify the Series 2018 Bonds or portions thereof to 
be redeemed by stating the CUSIP number, certificate number, date of issuance, interest 
rate and maturity date of such Series 2018 Bonds or portions thereof to be redeemed, 
and shall state the redemption date, the redemption price, the amount of accrued 
interest payable on the redemption date, and the place at which Series 2018 Bonds are to 
be surrendered for payment.  Any notice given as provided in this paragraph shall be 
conclusively presumed to have been duly given, whether or not the owner receives 
such notice.  By the date fixed for redemption, due provision shall be made with the 
Trustee for the payment of the redemption price of the Series 2018 Bonds to be 
redeemed, plus accrued interest to the date fixed for redemption.  When the Series 2018 
Bonds have been called for redemption in whole or in part and due provision has been 
made to redeem same as herein provided, the Series 2018 Bonds or portions thereof so 
redeemed shall no longer be regarded as outstanding except for the purpose of 
receiving payment solely from the funds so provided for redemption, and the rights of 
the owners to collect  interest which would otherwise accrue after the redemption date 
on any Series 2018 Bonds or portion thereof called for redemption shall terminate on the 
date fixed for redemption. 

THIS BOND IS TRANSFERABLE, as provided in the Indentures, only upon the 
books of registration of the Authority kept for that purpose at the office of the Trustee, 
by the Owner hereof in person, or by the Owner’s attorney duly authorized in writing, 
upon surrender of this bond together with a written instrument of transfer satisfactory 
to the Trustee duly executed by the Owner or the Owner’s duly authorized attorney, 
and, upon payment of any tax or governmental charges required to be paid with respect 
to such transfer or exchange, a new bond or bonds in the same aggregate principal 
amount shall be issued to the transferee in exchange therefor as provided in the 
Indentures.  The Trustee is not required to accept any bond for transfer or exchange 
during a period of 15 days preceding the selection of bonds for redemption or after this 
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bond has been called for redemption.  The Authority and the Trustee may deem and 
treat the person in whose name this bond is registered as the absolute owner hereof for 
the purpose of receiving payment of, or on account of, the principal or redemption price 
hereof and interest due hereon and for all other purposes. 

IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED, RECITED AND REPRESENTED that the issuance of 
this bond and the Series 2018 Bonds is duly authorized by law; that all acts, conditions 
and things required to be done precedent to and in the issuance of this bond and of the 
Series 2018 Bonds have been properly done, have happened and have been performed 
in regular and due time, form and manner, as required by law; the Authority has 
granted a lien on and pledge of the Trust Estate to the Series 2018 Bonds as provided in 
the Indenture. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Authority has caused this bond to be signed by the 
President or Vice President and attested by the Secretary or Assistant Secretary by their 
manual or facsimile signatures and sealed with the official seal of the Authority or a 
facsimile thereof. 
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      NORTH FORT BEND 
 WATER AUTHORITY 
 

 
      By:_______________________________________ 
       Vice President 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
By:_______________________________ 

Secretary 
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 (b) Form of Authentication Certificate 
 

AUTHENTICATION CERTIFICATE 
 

 This bond is one of the bonds referred to in the within mentioned Indentures; 
and that, except as to the bonds initially delivered, this bond has been issued in 
conversion of and exchange for or replacement of a bond, bonds or a portion of a bond 
or bonds of an issue which originally was approved by the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas and registered by the Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of 
Texas. 
 
      Regions Bank, 
      as Trustee 
 
 
      By:____________________________________ 
       Authorized Signature 
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 (c) Form of Registration Certificate of the Comptroller of Public Accounts of 
the State of Texas which is to be Affixed to each of the Initially Issued Series 2018 Bonds 
 

 
CERTIFICATE OF REGISTRATION OF COMPTROLLER OF PUBLIC ACCOUNTS 

 
OFFICE OF THE COMPTROLLER 

 
REGISTER NO.___________ 

THE STATE OF TEXAS 
 
 I HEREBY CERTIFY that there is on file and of record in my office an opinion of 
the Attorney General of the State of Texas to the effect that this bond has been examined 
by him as required by law, that he finds that it has been issued in conformity with the 
Constitution and laws of the State of Texas, and it is a valid and binding obligation of 
NORTH FORT BEND WATER AUTHORITY and said Bond has this day been 
registered by me. 
 
 WITNESS MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE, ____________, 2018. 
 
 
 
      _________________________________________ 
      Comptroller of Public Accounts  
      of the State of Texas 
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 (d) Form of Assignment to be Printed on Each of the Series 2018 Bonds 
 

 
ASSIGNMENT 

 
 FOR VALUE RECEIVED the undersigned Registered Owner of this bond, or 
duly authorized representative or attorney thereto, hereby assigns this bond to 

 
/ /   
(Assignee’s social     (print or typewrite Assignee’s  
security or taxpayer     name and address, including 
identification number)     zip code) 

 
and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints  

 
attorney to transfer the registration of this bond on the Register, with full power of 
substitution in the premises. 
 

DATED:
 

 
Registered Owner 
NOTICE:  The signature must correspond 
with the name of the Registered Owner 
appearing on the face of this bond. 

Signature Guaranteed: 
 

NOTICE:  This signature should be 
guaranteed by an eligible guarantor 
institution (banks, stockbrokers, 
savings and loan associations and credit 
unions with membership in an 
approved signature guarantee 
medallion program) pursuant to S.E.C. 
rule 17Ad-15. 
 

 

 
 (e) Form of Statement of Insurance.  This is not applicable, because no bond 
insurance is obtained for the Series 2018 Bonds. 
 
 (f) The Initial Bond shall be in the form set forth in paragraphs (a), (c), (d) 
and (e) of this Section, except for the following alterations: 
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  (i) immediately under the name of the Bond, the headings “INTEREST 
RATE” and “MATURITY DATE” shall both be completed with the words 
“As Shown Below” and the word “CUSIP” deleted; 

 
 (ii) in the first paragraph of the Bond, the words “on the Maturity Date 

specified above” and “at the Interest Rate per annum identified above” 
shall be deleted and the following shall be inserted at the end of the first 
sentence “with such principal to be paid in installments on December 15 
in each of the years and in the principal amounts identified in the 
following schedule and with such installments bearing interest at the per 
annum rates set forth in the following schedule: 

 

[TO BE INSERTED] 

 Series 2018 Bonds 
Maturity 

December 
15 

Principal 
Amount 

Maturing ($) 

Interest 
Rate (%) 

   
 
  (iii) the Initial Bond shall be numbered IB-1. 
  (iv) the Initial Bond shall be registered in the name of the Purchaser. 
  (v) the term bond language shall be removed from the Initial Bond in 

the event there are no term bonds. 
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PRIVATE PLACEMENT MEMORANDUM DATED ________________________, 2018 

NEW ISSUE BOOK-ENTRY-ONLY  

On the date of initial delivery of the Bonds (defined below), Issuer Bond Counsel (defined on page 2) will render its opinion 
substantially in the form attached in APPENDIX C - FORM OF OPINION OF BOND COUNSEL.   

$__________,000 
NORTH FORT BEND WATER AUTHORITY 

JUNIOR LIEN WATER SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS 
SERIES 2018 (the “Bonds”) 

Dated: _______________________, 2018 Due:  December 15 

Interest Date: 

 

 

Record Date: 

 Interest on the Bonds will be payable on June 15 and December 15 each year, 
commencing June 15, 2018 (each an “Interest Payment Date”).  The Bonds will bear 
interest at the rates per annum set forth in “APPENDIX A - MATURITY 
SCHEDULE.”   

The close of business on the fifteenth calendar day of the month next preceding the 
applicable Maturity Date, commencing November 15, 2018. 
 

Date Interest Accrues:  Each Bond shall bear interest from the Delivery Date thereof or the most recent Interest 
Payment Date to which interest has been paid or provided for at the rate set forth, such 
interest payable semiannually on June 15 and December 15 of each year until the 
earliest of maturity or prior redemption, commencing on December 15, 20__, 
immediately following the Delivery Date. 

Redemption:  The Bonds are subject to redemption prior to maturity as provided herein.  See “THE 
BONDS - Redemption Provisions” herein.   

Authorized 
Denominations: 

 The Bonds are being issued as fully registered bonds in denominations of $5,000, or 
any integral multiple thereof.  

Paying 
Agent/Registrar/Registrar: 

 The paying agent (“Paying Agent/Registrar/Registrar”) for the Bonds is The Bank of 
New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., Dallas, Texas. 

Book-Entry-Only System  Upon initial issuance, the ownership of the Bonds will be registered in the registration 
books of the Issuer kept by the Paying Agent/Registrar, in the name of Cede & Co., as 
nominee of The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York (“DTC”) to which 
principal, redemption premium, if any, and interest payments on the Bonds will be 
made.  The purchasers of the Bonds will not receive physical delivery of bond 
certificates.  Principal of, interest, and premium if any, on the Bonds will be payable at 
the designated office of the Paying Agent/Registrar in Dallas, Texas as the same 
become due and payable.  

   

Official Action:  Bond Order dated _______________________, 2018. 

Purpose:  See “APPENDIX B - OFFICIAL ACTION.” 

Security for the Bonds:  See “APPENDIX B - OFFICIAL ACTION.”  

Ratings:    See “OTHER INFORMATION – Ratings.” 

Delivery Date:  ____________________________, 2018.  

   

See “APPENDIX A - MATURITY SCHEDULE” for Principal Amounts, Maturities, Interest Rates, 
Prices or Yields, and Initial CUSIP Numbers 

   

DRAFT 
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NORTH FORT BEND WATER AUTHORITY  

 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
Name Title Term Expires 
 
Peter Houghton President May 20-- 
 
Robert L. Patton Vice President May 20-- 
 
Melony F. Gay Secretary/Treasurer May 20-- 
 
Bruce Fay Director May 20-- 
 
Pat Hebert Director May 20-- 
 
David Spell Director May 20-- 
 
Robert Darden Director May 20-- 
 
 
 
 

OTHER CONSULTANTS AND ADVISORS 
 

Allen Boone Humphries Robinson, Bond Counsel 
 

Post Oak Municipal Advisors LLC, Financial Advisor 
 

The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, Paying Agent/Registrar 
 

Brown & Gay Engineers, Inc., Engineer 
 

Avonta Services, Bookkeeper 
 

McGrath & Co., PLLC, Auditor 
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Private Placement Memorandum 
relating to 

$_________,000 

NORTH FORT BEND WATER AUTHORITY 
JUNIOR LIEN WATER SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS 

SERIES 2018 (the “Bonds”) 

INTRODUCTION 

This Private Placement Memorandum, including the cover page and appendices, contains brief descriptions 
of the Issuer, provides certain information with respect to the issuance by the Issuer, and summaries of certain 
provisions of the “Bonds” pursuant to the Official Action.  Except as otherwise set forth herein, capitalized terms used 
but not defined in this Private Placement Memorandum have the meanings assigned to them in the Official Action.  
See “APPENDIX B – FORM OF OFFICIAL ACTION” attached hereto.  

APPENDIX A contains the maturity schedule for the Bonds.  APPENDIX B contains the Official Action and 
a description of the purpose for the proceeds of the Bonds.  APPENDIX C contains a copy of the proposed opinion of 
Bond Counsel with respect to the Bonds.  The summaries of the documents contained in the forepart of this Private 
Placement Memorandum are not complete or definitive, and every statement made in this Private Placement 
Memorandum concerning any provision of any document is qualified by reference to such document in its entirety. 

THE BONDS 

General Description 

The Bonds are being issued in the aggregate principal amount set forth in APPENDIX A of this Private 
Placement Memorandum and will mature and be subject to redemption prior to maturity as described therein.  The 
Bonds are being issued as fully registered bonds in denominations of $5,000, or any integral multiple thereof.  The 
Bonds will be dated as of the stated date of issue and will mature on the dates referenced thereon, and will bear interest 
at the rates per annum set forth in “APPENDIX A - MATURITY SCHEDULE.” 

Interest on the Bonds is payable semiannually on each Interest Payment Date, and will be calculated on the 
basis of a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months.  Principal of and the redemption price with respect to the 
Bonds will be payable to the Owners upon presentation and surrender at the principal office of the Paying 
Agent/Registrar. 

Purpose 

See “APPENDIX B - FORM OF OFFICIAL ACTION.” 
 
Authority for Issuance  

The Bonds are being issued pursuant to Texas Law (including particularly the Act and Chapter 1371 of the 
Texas Government Code, as amended), the Indenture and a resolution adopted by the board of directors of the 
Authority.   

Security for the Bonds  

See “APPENDIX B - FORM OF OFFICIAL ACTION.”  
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Redemption Provisions 

On December 15, 20____, or on any date thereafter, the Bonds maturing on and after December 15, 20____ 
may be redeemed prior to their scheduled maturities, upon the written direction of the Issuer, with funds provided by 
the Issuer, at par plus accrued interest to the date fixed for redemption as a whole, or in part, and if less than all of a 
maturity is to be redeemed the Paying Agent/Registrar will determine by lot the Bonds, or portions thereof within such 
maturity to be redeemed (provided that a portion of a Bond may be redeemed only in Authorized Denominations). 

Notice of Redemption; Selection of Bonds to Be Redeemed 

See “APPENDIX B - FORM OF OFFICIAL ACTION.”  

The Paying Agent/Registrar, so long as a Book-Entry-Only System is used for the Bonds, will send any notice 
of redemption of the Bonds, notice of proposed amendment to the Order or other notices with respect to the Bonds 
only to DTC. Any failure by DTC to advise any DTC participant, or of any DTC participant or indirect participant to 
notify the beneficial owner, shall not affect the validity of the redemption of the Bonds called for redemption or any 
other action premised on any such notice. Redemption of portions of the Bonds by the Issuer will reduce the 
outstanding principal amount of such Bonds held by DTC. 

Book-Entry-Only System 

The information in this caption concerning The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York (“DTC”) 
and DTC’s book entry system has been obtained from DTC and the Issuer makes no representation or warranty nor 
takes any responsibility for the accuracy or completeness of such information. 

DTC will act as securities depository for the Bonds.  The Bonds will be issued as fully-registered securities 
registered in the name of Cede & Co. (DTC’s partnership nominee) or such other name as may be requested by an 
authorized representative of DTC.  One fully-registered certificate will be issued for each maturity of the Bonds and 
deposited with DTC. See APPENDIX B - “FORM OF OFFICIAL ACTION.” 

DTC is a limited-purpose trust company organized under the New York Banking Law, a “banking 
organization” within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a member of the Federal Reserve System, a “clearing 
corporation” within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code, and a “clearing agency” registered 
pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.  DTC holds and provides asset 
servicing for over 3.5 million issues of U.S. and non-U.S. equity, corporate and municipal debt issues, and money 
market instrument (from over 100 countries) that DTC’s participants (the “Direct Participants”) deposit with DTC.  
DTC also facilitates the post-trade settlement among Direct Participants of sales and other securities transactions, in 
deposited securities, through electronic computerized book entry transfers and pledges between Direct Participants’ 
accounts.  This eliminates the need for physical movement of securities certificates.  Direct Participants include both 
U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations, and certain other 
organizations.  DTC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of The Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation (“DTCC”).  DTCC 
is the holding company for DTC, National Securities Clearance Corporation, and Fixed Income Clearance 
Corporation, all of which are registered clearing agencies.  DTCC is owned by the users of its regulated subsidiaries.  
Access to the DTC system is also available to others such as both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, 
banks, trust companies, and clearing corporations that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a Direct 
Participant, either directly or indirectly (“Indirect Participants”).  DTC has Standard & Poor’s highest rating: “AAA.”  
The DTC Rules applicable to its Participants are on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission.  More 
information about DTC can be found at www.dtcc.com and www.dtc.org. 

Estimated Draw Schedule 

 See “APPENDIX D – DRAW SCHEDULE.” 
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TAX MATTERS 

Opinion 

Bond Counsel will deliver its opinion on the date of delivery of the Bonds substantially in the form as attached 
in “APPENDIX C - FORM OF OPINION OF BOND COUNSEL.”  

OTHER INFORMATION 

Forward Looking Statements 

The statements contained in this Private Placement Memorandum, including the cover page, appendices, and 
any other information or documents provided by the Issuer, that are not purely historical, are forward-looking 
statements, including statements regarding the Issuer’s expectations, hopes, intentions, or strategies regarding the 
future.  Holders and beneficial owners of the Bonds have placed reliance on forward-looking statements.  All forward 
looking statements included in this Private Placement Memorandum are based on information available to the Issuer 
on the date hereof.  It is important to note that the Issuer’s actual results could differ materially from those in such 
forward-looking statements.  

Ratings  

No application has been made to any ratings agency or municipal bond insurance company for qualification 
of the Bonds for ratings or municipal bond insurance, respectively. 

LITIGATION 

General 

On the date of delivery of the Bonds to the initial purchasers thereof, the Issuer will execute and deliver a 
certificate to the effect that, except as disclosed herein, no litigation of any nature has been filed or is pending, as of 
that date, to restrain or enjoin the issuance or delivery of the Bonds or which would affect the provisions made for 
their payment or security or in any manner questioning the validity of the Bonds.   

The Issuer 

There is no litigation, proceeding, inquiry, or investigation pending by or before any court or other 
governmental authority or entity (or, to the best knowledge of the Issuer, threatened) that adversely affects the power, 
authority or obligation of the Issuer to deliver the Bonds, the security for, or the validity of, the Bonds or the financial 
condition of the Issuer.   
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CONTINUING DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION 

In the Official Action, the Issuer has made the following agreement for the benefit of the holders and 
beneficial owners of the Bonds.  The Issuer is required to observe the agreement for so long as it remains obligated to 
advance funds to pay the Bonds.  Under the agreement, the Issuer will be obligated to provide certain updated financial 
information and operating data, and timely notice of specified material events, to certain other information vendors. 
SEE “APPENDIX B - FORM OF OFFICIAL ACTION.” 

Compliance with Prior Undertakings 

During the last five years, the Issuer has complied in all material respects with its continuing disclosure 
agreements in accordance with the Rule. 

MISCELLANEOUS 

Any statements made in this Private Placement Memorandum involving matters of opinion or of estimates, 
whether or not so expressly stated, are set forth as such and not as representations of fact, and no representation is 
made that any of the estimates will be realized.  Neither this Private Placement Memorandum nor any statement that 
may have been made verbally or in writing is to be construed as a contract with the owners of the Bonds. 

The information contained above is neither guaranteed as to accuracy or completeness nor to be construed as 
a representation by the Issuer.  The information and expressions of opinion herein are subject to change without notice 
and neither the delivery of this Private Placement Memorandum nor any sale made hereunder is to create, under any 
circumstances, any implication that there has been no change in the affairs of the Issuer or the Issuer from the date 
hereof. 

The Private Placement Memorandum is submitted in connection with the sale of the securities referred to 
herein and may not be reproduced or used, as a whole or in part, for any other purpose. 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 

The Private Placement Memorandum speaks only as of its date and the information contained herein is 
subject to change.  Descriptions of the Bonds and the Official Action and any other agreements and documents 
contained herein constitute summaries of certain provisions thereof and do not purport to be complete.  This Private 
Placement Memorandum was approved by the Issuer. 
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APPENDIX A 

MATURITY SCHEDULE 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(1) CUSIP Numbers have been assigned to the Bonds by the CUSIP Service Bureau, a division of the McGraw-
Hill Companies, Inc., and are included solely for the convenience of the purchasers of the Bonds.  Neither 
the District nor the Underwriter shall be responsible for the selection or correctness of the CUSIP Numbers 
set forth herein. 

(2) The District reserves the right, at its option, to redeem Bonds having stated maturities on and after December 
15, 20_____, in whole or in part in principal amounts of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof, on December 
15, 20_____, or any date thereafter, at the par value thereof plus accrued interest to the date of redemption. 
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APPENDIX B 

FORM OF OFFICIAL ACTION 

[ATTACH COPY OF OFFICIAL ACTION] 
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APPENDIX C 

FORM OF OPINION OF BOND COUNSEL 
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APPENDIX D 

DRAW SCHEDULE 
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